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As a leading Market Expansion Services 
provider, we deliver growth for companies 
in Asia and beyond.

Our Business Units 
Our Business Units focus on the fields of Healthcare, Consumer Goods, Perfor-
mance Materials, and Technology, and offer a comprehensive range of Market 
Expansion Services to business partners in their respective areas.

Healthcare 
With a product range covering pharmaceuticals, consumer health, and over-the-
counter health products, as well as medical devices, we offer services including 
product registration, marketing and sales, and capillary physical distribution.

Consumer Goods 
Focusing on fast moving consumer goods, food services, hotel supplies, and 
luxury and lifestyle products, our services range from product feasibility studies 
to sales and marketing, and capillary physical distribution.

Performance Materials 
We source, develop, market, and distribute a wide range of specialty chemicals 
and ingredients for the specialty chemicals, food and beverage, pharmaceutical, 
and personal care industries.

Technology 
We cover a broad range of capital investment goods and analytical instruments 
for which we offer marketing, sales, distribution, and after-sales services.

DKSH at a Glance
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Letter to Shareholders 

several new partnerships across all four Business Units. 
Next to new partnerships with Eli Lilly, Reckitt, and others, 
Business Unit Healthcare extended its partnership with 
Bayer to provide comprehensive services across four Asian 
markets. By securing new partnerships with large multi-
nationals such as Nestlé, Kellanova, and Suntory, Business 
Unit Consumer Goods also accelerated its business develop-
ment, especially in the second half of the year. By partner-
ing with Synthomer, Kronos, Polygal, Thermo Fisher, Hygi-
ena, and Ibarmia, the Business Units Performance Materials 
and Technology also executed on their business develop-
ment pipelines.

In addition to our strong business development, we acceler-
ated our M&A activities in 2025 and announced nine trans-
actions, adding approximately CHF 150 million of annualized 
net sales in higher-margin businesses to our top line. In line 
with our M&A strategy, we made five transactions in Busi-
ness Unit Technology, three in Performance Materials, and 
one in Consumer Goods.

In 2025, DKSH made significant progress on its sustainabil-
ity agenda. We expanded the coverage of our markets certi-
fied under ISO 14001 (environmental management) and ISO 
45001 (occupational health and safety), and our climate tar-
gets were approved by the Science Based Targets Initiative. 
We achieved a 65% reduction in CO2 emissions, improved 
results across major sustainability benchmarks, and were 
named an Industry Leader by ISS ESG. Additionally, DKSH 
has been recognized as a Great Place to Work® in 16 key 
markets.

We are proud to report that we significantly enhanced our 
digital platforms, and that for the first time, digitally initi-
ated and transacted sales exceeded CHF 600 million. Our 
proprietary platforms such as DKSH Discover, Labshop, and 
Connect Customer were acknowledged such as with the 
Asia eCommerce Awards 2025 and the Digital Transforma-
tion Award.

Business Unit Performance
Building upon Business Unit Healthcare’s above-GDP 
growth trajectory of recent years, net sales reached CHF 
5.8 billion (+4.6% at CER) and Core EBIT amounted to CHF 
174.2 million (+7.5% at CER), resulting in a Core EBIT margin 
of 3.0% (+10 basis points). This strong result was fueled by 
diversified growth across multiple markets with new clients 
and organic growth of existing clients like Bayer, Eli Lilly, 
and Reckitt, as well as a continued focus on higher-margin 
businesses. Under the new leadership of Patrik Grande, who 

Stefan P. Butz, CEO, and Marco Gadola, Chairman

Dear shareholders, 

In 2025, DKSH once again demonstrated resilience and de-
livered sustainable, profitable growth in an environment 
characterized by geopolitical uncertainties and macroeco-
nomic challenges. While we observed cautious consumer 
spending and a muted demand in the chemical industry, the 
steady growth of the Asian healthcare industry continued to 
be a catalyst for our business.

Supported by an acceleration of top- and bottom-line growth 
in the second half of the year, we are proud to report another 
period of improved results: Core EBIT (at CER, constant ex-
change rates) grew by 6.7% to CHF 349.0 million. With net 
sales totaling CHF 11.1 billion (+2.9% at CER), we realized a 
Core EBIT margin increase of around 0.1 percentage points 
to 3.2%, marking the fifth consecutive year of Core EBIT mar-
gin increases. Free Cash Flow stood at CHF 215.5 million, en-
abling us to fund our accelerated M&A strategy and to pro-
pose an increased ordinary dividend to shareholders. 

By delivering on our mid-term strategy of growth, margin 
expansion, and M&A, we are building on the achievements 
of recent years. Since 2021, our average Core EBIT has 
grown by 11.6% (at 2021 exchange rates) and our Core EBIT 
margin has increased by 60 basis points to 3.2%. Thanks 
to our asset-light and cash-generative business model, we 
generated more than CHF 1.2 billion in Free Cash Flow over 
the same period, enabling us to return around CHF 700 mil-
lion to our shareholders through dividends and, in addition, 
to execute more than 30 acquisitions.

Propelled by our continuous efforts to win new clients and 
expand our share of wallet with existing ones, we entered 
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was appointed Head of Business Unit Healthcare, as of Janu-
ary 2026, the Business Unit will accelerate the expansion of 
its strong market position and drive into higher-value seg-
ments and services.

Business Unit Consumer Goods achieved net sales growth 
of 1.2% (at CER), with a marked acceleration in the sec-
ond half of 2025 (+2.8% at CER). Growth was supported by 
strong performance in Malaysia, Vietnam, and Singapore, 
alongside improved business development (new clients). 
Zircon-Swis Fine Foods, acquired in 2025, delivered results 
ahead of the business plan, further reinforcing the regional 
platform. Core EBIT increased by 5.4% (at CER), resulting 
in an approximate 10 basis point margin expansion. While 
Core EBIT declined by 4.3% in H1 2025, growth recovered 
strongly in H2 2025, with Core EBIT growth of 14.0% and a 
Core EBIT margin of 3.0%, reflecting improved earnings mo-
mentum and operational leverage.

Business Unit Performance Materials delivered net sales 
growth of 1.4% (at CER) in a very challenging market environ-
ment. Asia Pacific, accounting for around 60% of the Busi-
ness Unit’s net sales, showed the strongest performance 
with growth of 5.5% (at CER), clearly outperforming an over-
all declining market. This was underpinned by strong busi-
ness development momentum with key clients, M&A and 
pricing discipline supporting gross margin expansion. Core 
EBIT increased by 1.9% (at CER), with the Core EBIT mar-
gin improving to 8.2%. The Core EBITA margin rose to 8.9%. 
Looking ahead to 2026, a streamlined leadership, cost op-
timization initiatives, and already signed M&A transactions 
provide additional growth momentum.

Against a macroeconomic backdrop characterized by short-
term uncertainty, delayed investment decisions, and in-
creased foreign exchange headwinds, Business Unit Tech-
nology delivered a resilient result around last year’s level. 
The Business Unit made five strategic acquisitions in Sci-
entific Solutions, strengthened the Semiconductor / Elec-
tronics and Precision Machinery business, divested its ca-
bles businesses in Australia and Taiwan, and increased the 
share of consumables and services. The Business Unit will 
continue to capitalize on consolidation opportunities in Asia 
Pacific and other geographies. With a promising business 
development pipeline, the Business Unit is well positioned 
for a stronger 2026.

Higher Financial Performance Allows DKSH to Propose 
+6.4% Increase of Ordinary Dividend
Driven by our higher financial results for the past fiscal year, 
the Board of Directors will propose an ordinary dividend of 
CHF 2.50 per share at the upcoming Annual General Meet-
ing. This represents an increase of CHF 0.15, or 6.4%, com-
pared to the previous year. Subject to approval at the An-
nual General Meeting, the payment date for the dividend 
is set to start on April 2, 2026, with a record date of April 1, 
2026, and an ex-dividend date of March 31, 2026. Provided 
shareholder approval, we will then have paid a higher or-

dinary dividend for the 13th time, reinforcing DKSH’s sta-
tus as a dividend aristocrat with more than 10 years of con-
secutive dividend increases. We remain committed to both 
our increased ordinary dividend policy as well as our M&A 
strategy to drive long-term value creation for shareholders.

Andreas W. Keller, member of the Board of Directors since 
DKSH‘s founding in 2002, will not stand for re-election at 
the next Annual General Meeting. Andreas W. Keller joined 
Diethelm & Co. Ltd. in 1976. He initiated and led the merger 
of the two Swiss Trading companies Diethelm & Co. Ltd. and 
Edward Keller Ltd. in 2000 and in 2002 supervised the cre-
ation of DKSH, which combined Diethelm Keller‘s Asian op-
erations with the SiberHegner Group. The Board of Direc-
tors expresses its heartfelt gratitude to Andreas W. Keller 
for his longstanding and invaluable contributions, both as 
a member of the Board of Directors, and as representative 
of DKSH’s anchor shareholder Diethelm Keller Holding Ltd. 
His strategic insight and commitment have been greatly val-
ued throughout his longstanding tenure. The Board wishes 
him continued success in his future endeavors and is de-
lighted that as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Di-
ethelm Keller Holding Ltd., he will continue to be connected 
to DKSH. The Board of Directors is pleased to propose Julie 
von Wedel-Keller (Swiss, 1985) as a new member. Julie von 
Wedel-Keller currently serves as a member of the Board of 
Directors at Angela Bruderer Ltd. and DK Premium Brands 
Holding Ltd., and is a member of the Advisory Board of Di-
ethelm Keller Holding Ltd. She holds a Master of Law degree 
from the University of Fribourg, Switzerland. As a direct de-
scendant of the Keller family, the election of Julie von Wedel 
as 5th generation would ensure continuity and stability, un-
derlining the family’s long-term commitment to DKSH.

DKSH is committed  to its mid-term roadmap, highlighting 
that its outlook for 2026 aligns with these goals. The com-
pany expects Core EBIT in 2026 to be higher than in 2025. 
This outlook assumes economic growth in Asia Pacific, con-
stant exchange rates, and barring any unforeseen events. 
The Group remains confident about Asia Pacific's long-term 
potential and is well-positioned to benefit from favorable 
market, industry, and M&A consolidation trends. 

Our sincere thanks go to our employees for their dedication 
and to our stakeholders for the trust they place in us. With 
2026 well underway, we are excited to celebrate DKSH’s 120-
year anniversary in Thailand and to build on our partner-
ships as we reach new milestones together.

Sincerely yours,

 

Marco Gadola			   Stefan P. Butz
Chairman			   CEO
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DKSH Share Information

Share Price and Market Capitalization

in CHF 2025 2024

Share price (end of period)1 57.40 67.30

High1 73.70 69.10

Low1 52.40 54.00

Market capitalization in CHF millions (end of period)1 3,733 4,377

Dividend per share 2.502 2.35

Share Information

Listing SIX Swiss Exchange

Ticker symbol DKSH

ISIN CH0126673539

Swiss security number 12667353

Category Registered shares

Number of fully paid registered shares 65,042,963

Par value CHF 0.10

Significant Shareholders

Shareholdings in %3 2025

Diethelm Keller Holding AG, 8008 Zurich, Switzerland  45.0

UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Basel, Switzerland 5.0

Black Creek Investment Management Inc., Toronto, Canada 3.1

1 Source: SIX Swiss Exchange.
2 Proposed by the Board of Directors.
3 For details please see section Significant Shareholders of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Key Figures

Consolidated Income Statement At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024 Change in % Change in %

Net sales  11,070.6  11,093.6  (0.2)  2.9 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT)  349.0  343.1  1.7  6.7 

Operating profit (EBIT)  335.4  333.9  0.4  5.5 

Core profit after tax  226.4  225.7  0.3  3.3 

Profit after tax  210.9  220.9  (4.5)  (1.5)

Free cash flow  215.5  256.5  (16.0)  n/a 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

in CHF millions
December 31,  

2025
December 31,  

2024

Total assets  5,499.7  5,848.3 

Equity attributable to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  1,755.9  1,820.6 

Net operating capital (NOC)  1,755.0  1,788.0 

Net cash  25.2  48.1 

Core return on net operating capital (Core RONOC) (in %)  19.7  19.7 

Core return on equity (Core ROE) (in %)  12.4  12.1 

Earnings per Share

in CHF 2025 2024

Basic earnings per share  3.12  3.31 

Diluted earnings per share  3.12  3.30 

Other
December 31,  

2025
December 31,  

2024

Headcount  26,838  28,063 

Full-time equivalents  24,799  26,167 

1	� Constant exchange rates (CER): 2025 figures converted at 2024 exchange rates.
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Sustainability

We take responsibility for the 
environmental, social, and 
economic impact of our  
business activities.

Our commitment to creating 
a sustainable future means 
we want to achieve long-term, 
profitable growth in a  
responsible manner.

Sustainability Is an Integral Part of Our Business
Sustainability is one of DKSH’s five values. We take respon-
sibility for the environmental, social, and economic impact 
of our business activities as determined by our material-
ity assessment. Our commitment to creating a sustainable 
future means we want to achieve long-term, profitable 
growth in a responsible manner. We believe sustainable 
value creation goes hand-in-hand with responsible gover-
nance and managing the impacts our activities have on so-

ciety and the environment. Providing access to markets and 
products is our core activity, and creating employment op-
portunities is also vital. After all, our activities are guided by 
our purpose to enrich people’s lives through our contribu-
tion to sustainable development in the markets and commu-
nities where we operate. 

Sustainability Strategy 
Our Group Strategy is confirmed by our highest governance 
body, the Board of Directors (BoD). It includes Business Unit 
strategies as well as Functional and thematic strategic pri-
orities. While our Business Unit strategies include specific 
sustainability goals, sustainability itself is one of the Group 
Strategy’s core focus areas.

Our Sustainability Strategy is defined in a collaborative way. 
All Business Units and relevant Functions work together to 
identify the strategic priorities and translate them into stra-
tegic initiatives, which are then implemented by the Busi-
ness Units or Functions. Through this method, we aim to 
become a more sustainable company by utilizing a decen-
tralized approach across our various Business Units and 
Functions. Group Strategy and Group Sustainability over-
see the Sustainability Strategy and review process.
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Sustainability Governance 
DKSH’s Board of Directors (BoD) governs sustainability by 
approving the Group’s key sustainability objectives and 
strategies, including climate change and human rights-re-
lated matters. It also endorses the results of the Materi-
ality Assessment, oversees the execution of our Sustain-
ability Strategy, and provides guidance on sustainability 
topics. Based on recommendations from the Audit Com-
mittee, the BoD approves the annual Sustainability Report 
for endorsement by shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting.

The Executive Committee (ExCo) is DKSH’s highest exec-
utive management body and is regularly updated by the 
CEO and Group Sustainability on all material matters relat-
ing to sustainability. It reviews and endorses sustainability 
objectives and strategies proposed by Group Sustainabil-
ity for approval by the BoD. DKSH’s climate, environmen-
tal, social, and governance performance is one component 
of our ExCo’s annual variable bonus, which incentivizes the 
achievement of our sustainability targets.

For more information regarding sustainability at DKSH 
please refer to the DKSH Sustainability Report 2025.
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Corporate Governance 

In overseeing an international 
company operating in 
35 markets, DKSH’s Board of 
Directors has committed 
itself to maintaining the 
highest standards of integrity 
and transparency in its 
governance.

DKSH Holding Ltd. (the Company) is committed to good 
corporate governance standards and considers compliance 
with such standards as indispensable for a sustainable and 
valuable relationship with its stakeholders and the Group’s 
future success. This Corporate Governance Report contains 
the information required by the Directive on Information 
Relating to Corporate Governance of the SIX Swiss Exchange 
as amended from time to time, and follows the Directive’s 
structure. The Corporate Governance Report and the Com-
pensation Report also contain the legally required disclo-
sure of compensation and participation rights at the high-
est corporate level. The principles and rules of Corporate 
Governance as practiced by the Company are laid down in 
the Articles of Association and further internal regulations. 
These are reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Direc-
tors of the Company. 

1. �Group Structure and Shareholders
Group Structure
Operational Group Structure
The operational structure of the Group corresponds to the 
segment reporting presented in Note 3  to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements:

•	 Healthcare
•	 Consumer Goods
•	 Performance Materials
•	 Technology 
•	 Other (non-Business Unit)

Listed Companies of the Group
The Company, the ultimate holding company of the Group, 
has its registered office in Zurich, Switzerland, and its shares 
are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, Zurich, according to 
the Main Standard. On December 31, 2025, the Compa-
ny’s market capitalization amounted to CHF 3,733  million 
(65,042,963 marketable shares at CHF 57.40 per share).
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On December 31, 2025, of the total of the Company’s share 
capital on the closing date:
•	 the free float consisted of 35,775,233 shares = 55.0%, and
•	 58,199 treasury shares

The Company’s shares are traded under the symbol “DKSH”, 
the security number is 12667353, and ISIN is CH0126673539.

DKSH Holdings (Malaysia) Berhad, of which the Company 
indirectly holds a 74.31% participation, has its registered of-
fice in Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia, and its shares are 
listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Main Market), 
Malaysia. On December 31, 2025, DKSH Holdings (Malaysia) 
Berhad’s market capitalization amounted to MYR 928.61 
million (157,658,076 ordinary shares at MYR 5.89 per share). 
DKSH Holdings (Malaysia) Berhad’s shares are traded under 
the stock name “DKSH”, the stock code is 5908, and ISIN is 
MYL5908OO008.

PT Wicaksana Overseas International Tbk, of which the 
Company holds a 95.50% participation as of December 31, 
2025, has its registered office in Jakarta Utara, Indonesia, 
and its shares are listed on Indonesia Stock Exchange, In-
donesia. On December 31, 2025, PT Wicaksana Overseas 
International Tbk’s market capitalization amounted to IDR 
294 billion (2,393,710,348 ordinary shares at IDR 123 per 
share). PT Wicaksana Overseas International Tbk’s shares 
are traded under the stock name “WICO”, the stock code is 
WICO, and ISIN is ID1000066301.

Significant Group Companies
The principal subsidiaries of the Group are disclosed in Note 
35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including par-
ticulars as to the market, name of the company, registered 
office, share capital and the Group’s shareholding in per-
cent. Such list includes the most important subsidiaries of 
the Group based on (i) net sales, (ii) total assets, and (iii) 
FTEs.

Significant Shareholders
Under the Federal Act on Financial Market Infrastructures 
and Market Conduct in Securities and Derivatives Trading 
(FinMIA), anyone holding shares in a company listed on the 
SIX Swiss Exchange is required to notify the company and 
the SIX Swiss Exchange if their holding reaches, falls below, 
or exceeds the following thresholds: 3%, 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 
25%, 33⅓%, 50%, or 66⅔% of the voting rights entered into 
the commercial register. Notifications must also include fi-
nancial instruments, regardless of whether cash or phys-
ically settled, constituting a purchase or a sale position. 
Upon receipt of such notifications, the company is required 
to inform the public.

Cross-shareholdings
As of December 31, 2025, the Company does not have any 
cross-shareholdings of a reciprocal 5% of capital or voting 
rights with any other company.

Significant Shareholders1  Shareholdings in % 2

Diethelm Keller Holding AG, 8008 Zurich, Switzerland 3 45.0

UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Basel, Switzerland 5.0

Black Creek Investment Management Inc., Toronto, Canada 3.1

1	� Information as of December 31, 2025, according to the notification filed with SIX Swiss Exchange until and including December 31, 2025. In addition, information on  
disclosures by significant shareholders as to the Company under the FinMIA until and including December 31, 2025, can be found on the website of SIX Swiss Exchange under  
www.ser-ag.com/en/resources/notifications-market-participants/significant-shareholders.html#/.

2	� According to Swiss law, shareholdings must be calculated based on the number of shares reflected in the Company’s excerpt of the commercial register at the time the notification 
is made.

3	� As at the date hereof, 14 members of the families of Andreas W. Keller and Adrian T. Keller constitute the Family Pool. The Family Pool's indirect shareholding in DKSH Holding 
AG is controlled through the Family Pool's controlling stake in Diethelm Keller Group AG, Zurich, Switzerland (in which the Family Pool directly controls 7'650 registered shares, 
corresponding to 88.34% of the share capital and voting rights in Diethelm Keller Group AG), which in turn owns all outstanding shares and voting rights in DKH Holding AG, 
Zurich, Switzerland, which in turn owns all shares and voting rights in Diethelm Keller Holding AG, Zurich, Switzerland (which is the direct owner of the shares in DKSH Holding 
AG). Decisions of the Family Pool, in particular decisions on the voting of the shares in Diethelm Keller Group AG, are delegated to a certain Family Council, consisting of An-
dreas W. Keller and Adrian T. Keller.
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by or for investment projects of the Company or any of its 
group companies, or for the financing or refinancing of any 
of such transactions through a placement of shares.

As of December 31, 2025, the Company’s total conditional 
share capital amounts to 3,282,537 shares or CHF 0.33 million.

Change in Capital Over the Past Three Years
In addition to the tabular overview, information about changes 
in the capital during the years 2023 through 2025 is presented 
in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Shares and Participation Certificates 
As of December 31, 2025, the Company has issued 65,042,963 
fully paid-in registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 
0.10 each. Except for the treasury shares held by the Com-
pany (if any), each share carries one vote (subject to the rel-
evant shareholder being registered in the share register as 
a shareholder with voting rights), and each share carries a 
dividend entitlement. As of December 31, 2025, the Com-
pany held 58,199 treasury shares.

As of December 31, 2025, the Company has not issued any 
non-voting equity securities, such as participation certifi-
cates (Partizipationsscheine).

Dividend-Right Certificates (Genussscheine)
As of December 31, 2025, the Company has not issued any 
dividend-right certificates (Genussscheine).

Limitations of Transferability and Nominee 
Registrations
Except for the treasury shares held by the Company (if any),  
each share recorded and registered under a sharehold-
er’s name in the share register of the Company entitles its 
holder to one vote. There are no preferential rights for indi-
vidual shareholders. There are no voting right restrictions 
and, consequently, no exceptions were made in 2025.

The shares of the Company are issued as uncertificated se-
curities and registered as intermediated securities. They are 
included in the SIX SIS clearing system. Transfers of inter-
mediated shares, including the granting of security inter-
ests, are subject to the Federal Act on Intermediated Secu-
rities (Bucheffektengesetz). The transfer of uncertificated 
shares is effected by a corresponding entry in the books of 

2. Capital Structure
Share Capital
As of December 31, 2025, the ordinary share capital of the 
Company amounts to CHF 6,504,296.30 and is divided into 
65,042,963 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 
0.10 each.

Capital Band and Conditional Capital
Capital Band
As of December 31, 2025, the Company does not have any 
capital band.

Conditional Share Capital 
As of December 31, 2025, the Company’s share capital may 
be increased in the amount of up to CHF 28,253.70 (which 
would lead to a share capital in the maximum amount of 
CHF 6,532,550.00) by issuing up to 282,537 fully paid regis-
tered shares with a nominal value of CHF 0.10 each (which 
would equate to 0.43% of the existing share capital). Such 
shares may be used for the purpose of employee participa-
tion. The Board of Directors determines the issue price as 
well as the date of the dividend entitlement and resolves on 
the allocation of the shares pursuant to the relevant partici-
pation plan. Shareholders have no pre-emptive rights.

The Company’s share capital may be increased in an amount 
not exceeding CHF 300,000 through the issuance of up to 
3,000,000 fully paid-in registered shares with a par value 
of CHF 0.10 each through the exercise or mandatory exer-
cise of conversion, option, subscription or other rights to ac-
quire shares or through obligations to acquire shares, which 
were granted to or imposed on shareholders or third par-
ties alone or in connection with bonds, notes, options, war-
rants or other securities or contractual obligations of the 
Company or any of its group companies (hereinafter collec-
tively referred to as Financial Instruments). 

The Board of Directors is authorized to restrict or withdraw 
advance subscription rights of shareholders in connection 
with the issuance of Financial Instruments by the Company 
or one of its group companies and allocate such rights to 
third parties, the Company or any of its group companies if 
the Financial Instruments are issued for the acquisition of 
companies, part(s) of companies or participations, for the 
acquisition of products, intellectual property or licenses 

Change in Capital Over the Past Three Years 2023 2024 2025

Number of shares, January 1 65,042,963 65,042,963 65,042,963

Share capital in CHF, January 1 6,504,296.30 6,504,296.30 6,504,296.30

Number of shares, change during year 0 0 0

Share capital in CHF, change during year 0 0 0

Number of shares, December 31 65,042,963 65,042,963 65,042,963

Share capital in CHF, December 31 6,504,296.30 6,504,296.30 6,504,296.30
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a bank or depositary institution following an assignment by 
the selling shareholder and notification of such assignment 
to the Company by the bank or depositary institution. The 
transferee must file a share registration form to be regis-
tered in the Company’s share register as a shareholder with 
voting rights. Failing such registration, the transferee may 
not vote at, or participate in any General Meeting but may 
still receive dividends and other rights with financial value. 
The uncertificated shares may be transferred only with the 
assistance of the bank that administers the book entries of 
such shares for the account of the transferring shareholder.

Further, shares may be pledged only to the bank that admin-
isters the book entries of such shares for the account of the 
pledging shareholder; in such case, the Company needs to 
be notified. According to the Articles of Association, a per-
son having acquired shares will be recorded upon request in 
the Company’s share register as a shareholder with voting 
rights. The Company may refuse to record a person in the 
share register as a shareholder with voting rights, if such 
person does not expressly state that he/she/it has acquired 
the shares in his/her/its own name and for his/her/its own 
account, that there is no agreement on the redemption of 
the relevant shares and that they bear the economic risk as-
sociated with the shares.

Upon request, fiduciaries/nominees may be entered as 
shareholders in the share register with voting rights for 
shares up to a maximum of 3% of the share capital. Shares 
held by a fiduciary/nominee that exceed this limit may be 
registered in the share register with voting rights, if such fi-

duciary/nominee discloses to the Company the name, ad-
dress, nationality, or registered office and shareholdings of 
any person or legal entity for whose account he/she/it is 
holding 0.5% or more of the share capital.

Fiduciaries/nominees who are affiliated with other fiducia-
ries/nominees by means of ownership structure or voting 
rights or that have a common management or are other-
wise affiliated, are deemed one fiduciary/nominee as re-
gards the application of such entry limitations. The Board 
of Directors may, at its discretion and after questioning a 
shareholder or nominee who is entered in the share regis-
ter, remove his/her/its entry with retroactive effect as of the 
date of his/her/its entry if this was made based on incorrect 
information. The affected shareholder or fiduciary/nominee 
must be notified of the cancelation immediately. Legal enti-
ties, partnerships or groups of joint owners, or other groups 
that are related to one another through capital ownership 
or voting rights or have a common management or are oth-
erwise interrelated are treated as one single shareholder.

In 2025, no such request was made, and thus no exception 
was made.

Convertible Bonds and Options
As of December 31, 2025, the Company has not issued any 
bonds that are convertible into shares, or any warrants or 
options to acquire shares in the Company.

3. Board of Directors
The following table provides an overview of the Company’s 
Board of Directors (the Board of Directors) as of December 
31, 2025.

Name Function Committee Membership Director Since Expiry Date

Marco Gadola Chairman 2020 2026

Gabriel Baertschi Member
Member

Nomination and Compensation Committee
Mergers and Acquisitions Committee

2023 2026

Adrian T. Keller Member 
Member

Nomination and Compensation Committee 
Mergers and Acquisitions Committee

2002 2026

Dr. Wolfgang Baier Member 2019 2026

Jack Clemons Member 
Chair

Audit Committee 
Mergers and Acquisitions Committee

2019 2026

Andreas W. Keller Member 2002 2026

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler Chair Audit Committee 2018 2026

Suwannee Ratthayabandith Member 2025 2026

Eunice Zehnder-Lai Chair Nomination and Compensation Committee 2018 2026
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Marco Gadola, Chairman
(1963, Swiss)

Marco Gadola has been a member of the Board of Directors 
of DKSH since January 1, 2020, and Chairman of the Board 
of Directors since May 2020. He was CEO of the Straumann 
Group from 2013 until the end of 2019. Previously, he was 
the Regional CEO of Asia Pacific at Panalpina from 2012 to 
2013 and CFO of Panalpina from 2008 to 2012. From 2006 to 
2008, he was CFO of Straumann. Before joining Straumann 
for the first time in 2006, he was CFO of Hero from 2001 
to 2006 and before that, worked for Hilti, Sandoz Interna-
tional Ltd., and Swiss Bank Corporation.  Marco Gadola is 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Medartis Holding AG, 
Chairman of the Board of Volpi Group, Vice Chairman of the 
Board of Directors of Straumann Holding AG, and member 
of the Board of Directors of AVAG Anlage und Verwaltungs 
AG, Bühler Holding AG, and M+R Spedag Group. He is also a 
member of the Standortförderungskommission Baselland 
and Obwalden. Marco Gadola holds a degree in Business 
Administration and Economics from Basel University, Swit-
zerland, and has completed various programs at the London 
School of Economics, UK, INSEAD, France, and IMD, Swit-
zerland.

Gabriel Baertschi
(1974, Swiss)

Gabriel Baertschi has been a member of the Board of Direc-
tors of DKSH since March 2023 and is currently a member 
of the Nomination and Compensation Committee and the 
Mergers and Acquisitions Committee. He is CEO and Chair-
man of the Corporate Executive Board of Grünenthal GmbH. 
Prior to taking the position at Grünenthal, he worked for the 
AstraZeneca Group as Company President of Japan (2013 
to 2016), as Company President of Germany (2010 to 2012), 
as Company President of Thailand (2009 to 2010), and as 
General Manager of Vietnam and Indochina (2006 to 2009). 
Prior to his appointment to the Executive Committee, Ga-
briel Baertschi held various strategic roles in international 
sales and marketing with the AstraZeneca Group. Gabriel 
Baertschi is a member of the Board of Directors of MedXCell 
SA, a Swiss-French biotech company focused on cell ther-
apy. Gabriel Baertschi holds a Master of Science in Biology 
from the University of Neuchâtel, Switzerland. He also suc-
cessfully completed the program “Leading Enterprise Trans-
formation” at Harvard Business School, USA. 
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Dr. Wolfgang Baier
(1974, Austrian)

Dr. Wolfgang Baier has been a member of the Board of Di-
rectors of DKSH since 2019. He served as the Group CEO 
of LUXASIA, a leading Asian omni-channel beauty distribu-
tor and retailer, from August 2016 until June 2025. He was 
then an Advisor to the Chairman at LUXASIA until end of 
2025. Prior to that, Dr. Wolfgang Baier was the Group CEO 
of the Singapore Post Group from 2011 to 2016. Previously, 
he worked for McKinsey & Company in Europe and Asia from 
2001 to 2011, as a partner at the Singapore office, leading 
the Transportation and Logistics area as well as the Oper-
ations activities of McKinsey & Company in Southeast Asia.  
Dr. Baier holds a PhD in Law with distinction and a Master’s 
degree in Law from the University of Vienna in Austria as 
well as a Master’s degree in Business Economics from the 
Universities of Exeter, UK, and Graz, Austria. 

Jack Clemons 
(1966, Swiss/British) 	

Jack Clemons has been a member of the Board of Directors 
of DKSH since 2019. He chairs the Mergers and Acquisitions 
Committee and is a member of the Audit Committee. From 
2006 to 2016, Jack Clemons led the Bata Group, a global 
footwear manufacturer and retailer with substantial op-
erations throughout Asia, as Group CEO and previously as 
Group CFO. Before Bata, he founded an international con-
sulting business (2004-2006) and served as CFO and COO 
of the Firstream Group (2000-2004). Earlier, he was a part-
ner at Deloitte in France and the USA (1995-2000), leading 
Deloitte’s European Technology practice, and worked as an 
Audit Supervisor at Touche Ross (1989-1993). Jack Clemons 
has been a non-executive member of the Board of Direc-
tors, and member of the Audit & Risk Committee of Ban-
que Cantonale Vaudoise (BCV) since 2016. Since 2025, he 
serves as Vice-Chair of the Supervisory Board of Nagarro SE, 
a German listed Data Engineering and AI group and chairs 
its Audit & Risk Committee. He advises the Board of Unit8 
SA, a Swiss AI consulting company. Since 2024, he is a mem-
ber of the Board of Trustees and Audit & Risk Committee 
Chair of CIFOR-ICRAF, the global leader in sustainable for-
estry. From 2017 to 2025, he served as a member of the In-
ternational Board of Trustees and Chairman of the Audit & 
Risk Committee of the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF).
Jack Clemons holds a Master’s degree with honours from 
Cambridge University, UK, and is a Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He also has 
an MBA from INSEAD, France.
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Adrian T. Keller
(1951, Swiss) 

Adrian T. Keller has been a member of the Board of Direc-
tors of DKSH since 2002 and is currently a member of the 
Nomination and Compensation Committee and the Merg-
ers and Acquisitions Committee. He was Chairman of DKSH 
from 2004 until 2017 and again from 2019 to 2020. Since 
2021, he has been Vice Chairman of Diethelm Keller Group 
Ltd., Zurich and since 2000, Vice Chairman of the predeces-
sor company Diethelm Keller Holding Ltd., the anchor share-
holder of DKSH. Since 1991, he has been a Board member 
(and from 1995 on Vice Chairman) of Eduard Keller Holding, 
which in 2000 became Diethelm Keller Holding Ltd., Zurich. 
From 1990 to 1995, he was Partner at Global Reach, New 
York, a private investment firm. Between 1983 and 1990, he 
was Partner at Hoguet, Keller, Wittmann & Co., New York, a 
NASD-registered investment advisor and securities broker-
age firm. From 1976 until 1983, he worked in international 
equity sales at Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., New York. 
In addition to holding various family business-related Board 
seats, Adrian Keller serves as Vice-Chairman on the Board of 
Directors of Bergos AG, a Swiss private bank, and is Chair-
man of Baur & Cie, a family real estate company. He is a 
Trustee of the Asia Society Global and Co-Chair of the Global 
Centers Committee, and Chairman of Asia Society Switzer-
land. Beyond that, he serves on the Board of various not for 
profit organizations. He studied economics at the University 
of St. Gallen in Switzerland and graduated with an MBA (lic. 
oec. HSG) cum laude in 1976.

Andreas W. Keller 
(1945, Swiss) 

Andreas W. Keller has been a member of the Board of Direc-
tors of DKSH since 2002. He has been Chairman of the Board 
of Directors of Diethelm Keller Group Ltd., Zurich, since 2021 
and Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee of Diethelm Keller Holding Ltd., Zurich, the an-
chor shareholder of DKSH, since 2000. Prior to the merger of 
Diethelm & Co. and Edward Keller Ltd. in 2000, he presided 
over the Boards of Directors of both these companies. From 
1985 to 1993, he was a member of the Management Board 
of Eduard Keller Holding. Before returning to Switzerland 
in 1985, he served as CEO and Chairman of Diethelm Keller 
(USA) Ltd. in New York, after having worked at Diethelm & 
Co., Thailand, from 1976 to 1980. Andreas W. Keller stud-
ied law at the University of Zurich (lic. iur.) in Switzerland 
and graduated from the Program for Management Devel-
opment (PMD) at Harvard Business School, USA.
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Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler 
(1967, German) 

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler has been a member of the Board 
of Directors of DKSH since March 2018 and currently chairs 
the Audit Committee. She has been holding a chair in ac-
counting and auditing at the University of Duisburg-Essen 
since 2005. Previously, she taught accounting and auditing 
in several universities and has also worked as a research 
assistant and management consultant. Prof Dr. Annette G. 
Köhler is a member of the Supervisory Board, the Presid-
ial Committee and Chair of the Audit Committee of Gerres-
heimer AG (since June 2022), a member of the Supervisory 
Board and Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee of DMG 
Mori AG (since May 2017), and a member of the Supervisory 
Board, Chair of the Audit and Cybersecurity Committee, and 
a member of the Nomination Committee of GEA Group AG 
(since October 2020). From 2012 to 2017, she was a mem-
ber of the International Auditing and Assurance Standards 
Board (IAASB), New York. Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler holds 
a Master of Arts in Economics from Wayne State University 
in Detroit, USA, and a Diploma in Economics and Business 
Administration from University of Augsburg, Germany. She 
also holds a PhD from the University of Cologne and a Ha-
bilitation from the University of Ulm, Germany.

Suwannee Ratthayabandith
(1963, Thai) 

Suwannee Ratthayabandith has been a member of the 
DKSH Board of Directors since March 2025. She was a Man-
aging Director at Thai Union Life Science, a major global fro-
zen seafood company, based in Thailand from 2020 to 2024. 
Prior to that, she worked with Beiersdorf AG from 1996 to 
2019. Starting as Marketing Director and advancing to Man-
aging Director for Southeast Asia based in Thailand, she led 
the NIVEA and Eucerin brands for Beiersdorf across Thai-
land, Malaysia, Singapore, Vietnam, Myanmar, Cambodia, 
and Laos. In 2016, she relocated to Germany where she took 
the role of Vice President Global Eucerin and then the role 
of Vice President Global NIVEA. Previously, she served as 
Brand Manager and Senior Brand Manager at Bristol Myers 
Squibb from 1993 to 1996. Since 2020, she is also an honor-
able advisor for the Center for Building Competitive Enter-
prises (CBCE), an organization established by the Thai Listed 
Companies Association which provides consulting to com-
panies with significant growth potential. Suwannee Rattha-
yabandith holds a Master of Business Administration from 
the Middle Tennessee State University (MTSU), USA, and a 
Bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy from Mahidol University, 
Thailand.
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Eunice Zehnder-Lai
(1967, Swiss/Hong Kong)

Eunice Zehnder-Lai has been a member of the Board of Di-
rectors of DKSH since March 2018 and currently chairs the 
Nomination and Compensation Committee. Until November 
2018, Eunice Zehnder-Lai was CEO of IPM AG (Institut für 
Persönlichkeitsorientiertes Management). Previously, she 
was in the financial services industry for 20 years with LGT 
Capital Partners, Goldman Sachs, and Merrill Lynch in New 
York, London, Hong Kong, and Switzerland. She also worked 
for Procter & Gamble in marketing and brand management 
as well as for Booz & Co. in strategy consulting. Eunice 
Zehnder-Lai has been a member of the Board of Directors 
at Geberit Group (since 2017) and is currently Vice-Chairper-
son (since 2021). She is also a member of the Board of Di-
rectors of Julius Baer Group (since 2019). She is a Trustee of 
Asia Society Switzerland (since 2016) and President of the 
Board of Trustees of the Friends of Asia Society Switzerland 
Arts and Culture Foundation (since 2017). She is a Trustee of 
Insights for Education (since 2021), the Orpheum Founda-
tion for the Advancement of Young Soloists (since 2022) and 
a Board Member of the American Swiss Foundation (since 
2024). Eunice Zehnder-Lai holds a Master of Business Ad-
ministration from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor 
of Arts degree from Harvard University, both in the USA.
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Information About Managerial Positions and 
Significant Business Connections of Non-Executive 
Directors
All members of the Board of Directors are non-executive. 
None of the non-executive members has held a management 
position within the Group during the last three years.

Adrian T. Keller and Andreas W. Keller are members of the 
Family Pool and Family Council, as described in the section 
Significant Shareholders and are therefore related to Di-
ethelm Keller Group AG, DKH Holding AG, and Diethelm Keller 
Holding AG, the Company’s major shareholder. The Group en-
tered into certain related party transactions for the purchase 
and sale of goods and services with Diethelm Keller Holding 
AG. Furthermore, the Group’s Fantree logo is protected and 
owned by Diethelm Keller Holding AG. The Group is autho-
rized to use such logo pursuant to a license agreement made 
between the Group company DKSH International AG and Di-
ethelm Keller Holding AG.

No other member of the Board of Directors has any significant 
business connection with the Company or any other Group 
company. Therefore, DKSH considers all members as inde-
pendent, except for Adrian T. Keller and Andreas W. Keller.

Other Activities and Functions
Any activities of the members of the Board of Directors in 
governing and supervisory bodies of important Swiss and 
foreign organizations, institutions, and foundations as well 
as permanent management and consultancy functions for 
important Swiss and foreign interest groups, and official 
functions and political posts that are material are stated in 
the Directors’ biographies.

Rules in the Articles of Association on the Number of 
External Mandates – Permitted External Activities
According to § 24 of the Articles of Association, the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors may hold a maximum of 12 
additional mandates in comparable functions at other en-
terprises with an economic purpose, whereby mandates in 
companies which are controlled by the Company or which 
do control the Company are not subject to this limitation.  
No member of the Board of Directors may hold more than 
six such mandates in other listed companies. Mandates in 
separate legal entities under common control are deemed 
as one mandate. In the event that the maximum number 
of mandates is exceeded, the respective member of the 
Board of Directors must restore the lawful status within six 
months.

Elections and Terms of Office
Pursuant to § 15 of the Articles of Association and in com-
pliance with the provisions of the Swiss Code of Obligations 
(CO), all members of the Board of Directors are elected for 
a term of one year ending upon due completion of the next 
Ordinary General Meeting. There are no restrictions with 
respect to the number of terms of service or the age of the 
relevant members. The elections are carried out at a Gen-

eral Meeting. Each member of the Board of Directors is (re-)
elected individually. The year of initial election and expiry 
of the term of the members of the Board of Directors are 
shown next to their names in the table at the beginning of 
section 3.

Internal Organization Structure
Allocation of Tasks Within the Board of Directors
Pursuant to § 8 of the Articles of Association and in com-
pliance with the CO, the Chairperson of the Board of Direc-
tors and the members of the Nomination and Compensa-
tion Committee are directly elected by the Ordinary General 
Meeting. Other than that, the Board of Directors consti-
tutes itself. The Board of Directors has established an Audit 
Committee, a Nomination and Compensation Committee, 
and a Mergers and Acquisitions Committee (collectively, the 
Board Committees). The Ordinary General Meeting elects 
the Chairperson of the Board of Directors, and the Board 
of Directors elects the members of the Board Committees 
(other than the members of the Nomination and Compen-
sation Committee, who are elected by the Ordinary General 
Meeting in compliance with the CO). The Board of Directors 
also appoints its Secretary, who does not need to be a mem-
ber of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson presides over 
the Board of Directors.

Quorum and decision-making of the Board of Directors are 
determined by the Articles of Association and the Organi-
zational Regulations of the Company. Any internal regula-
tions and policies are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure 
their continued compliance with the Articles of Association, 
applicable laws, and good corporate governance. The Arti-
cles of Association can be found on the Company’s website 
at https://www.dksh.com/content/download/26813/file/Ar-
ticles_of_Association_2303_PDF_en.pdf.

Board Committees
The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee, 
a Nomination and Compensation Committee, and a Merg-
ers and Acquisitions Committee.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of two or more members of 
the Board of Directors who must be non-executive and inde-
pendent. Its current members are Prof. Dr. Annette Köhler 
(Chair) and Jack Clemons.

The Audit Committee has the following powers and duties in 
relation to the statutory auditors and Group auditors:

(i) reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the statu-
tory auditors and the Group auditors, in particular their in-
dependence from the Company. In connection therewith, 
it reviews in particular additional assignments given by the 
Company or its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee may issue 
binding regulations or directives in connection with such ad-
ditional assignments;
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(ii) reviewing and assessing the scope and plan of the audit, 
the examination process and the results of the audit, and 
examining whether the recommendations issued by the au-
ditors have been implemented by the Executive Committee;
(iii) reviewing the auditors’ reports and discussing their con-
tents with the auditors; and
(iv) approving the terms and conditions of the engagement 
of the auditors.

Also, it has the following powers and duties in relation to the 
internal control system (internal audit, risk management, 
and compliance):

(i) monitoring, reviewing, and assessing the effectiveness 
of the internal audit function, its professional qualifications, 
resources, and independence, and its cooperation with ex-
ternal audit;
(ii) approving the annual internal audit plan and the annual 
internal audit report, including the responses of the man-
agement thereto;
(iii) assessing the risk management and the procedures re-
lated thereto; and
(iv) assessing the state of compliance with laws, regulations, 
and internal rules and policies of the Group and the proce-
dures related thereto.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviews, in cooperation 
with the auditors, the CEO and the CFO, whether the ac-
counting principles and the financial control mechanism of 
the Company and its subsidiaries are appropriate in view of 
the size and complexity of the Group.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has the following pow-
ers and duties in relation to the preparation of the financial 
statements:

(i) reviewing the annual and interim statutory and consoli-
dated financial statements;
(ii) discussing these financial statements with the CFO and, 
separately, with the Group external auditor for the annual 
financial statements; and
(iii) making proposals to the Board of Directors with respect 
to the annual and interim statutory and consolidated finan-
cial statements (the responsibility for approving the annual 
and interim financial statements at the level of the Board of 
Directors remains with the Board of Directors).

Finally, the Audit Committee collects the necessary informa-
tion and discusses the reporting on non-financial matters.

The Audit Committee usually holds five meetings annually. 
The Chairperson of the Board of Directors may take part in 
the meetings as a guest. Unless otherwise determined by 
the Audit Committee, the CFO and the Head of Group Inter-
nal Audit are invited as guests, whereby the CFO takes part 
in all meetings, and the Head of Group Internal Audit is in-
vited as a guest, whenever needed. In 2025, the lead audit 
partner attended three meetings of the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee’s Chair reports to the other members 
of the Board of Directors about the topics discussed in de-
tail and decisions made and/or to be submitted to the en-
tire Board of Directors for approval. For an overview of the 
number of Audit Committee meetings, the average dura-
tion and the average attendance, please refer to the sec-
tion Work Methods of the Board of Directors and its Board 
Committees.

Nomination and Compensation Committee
The Nomination and Compensation Committee consists of 
at least three members of the Board of Directors, of which 
the majority are non-executive and independent. Since the 
Ordinary General Meeting 2014, the members of the Nom-
ination and Compensation Committee have been directly 
elected by the General Meeting for a one-year term. Re-elec-
tion is possible. In case of vacancies, the Board of Directors 
shall appoint the substitutes until the next Ordinary Gen-
eral Meeting. The Board of Directors designates one mem-
ber of the Nomination and Compensation Committee as its 
Chair each year at the first meeting of the Board of Direc-
tor’s after the Ordinary General Meeting. Accordingly, its 
current members are Eunice Zehnder-Lai (Chair), Adrian T. 
Keller, and Gabriel Baertschi.

In relation to its nomination responsibility, the Nomination 
and Compensation Committee regularly reviews and makes 
proposals as to the composition of the Board of Directors 
and of the Executive Committee, including, but not limited 
to, making proposals as to vacancies in the Board of Direc-
tors and the Executive Committee and as to the appoint-
ment and dismissal of members of the Executive Commit-
tee.

As to compensation, the Nomination and Compensation 
Committee has the following duties and responsibilities:

(i) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the compensation policy, including the principles 
for performance-related compensation and the allocation 
of securities, conversion or option rights, entitlements or 
other financial instruments for the Board of Directors and 
the Executive Committee;
(ii) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the maximum aggregate compensation for the 
Board of Directors and the Executive Committee;
(iii) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the specific design of the participation plans;
(iv) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the specific design of the employment contracts 
of the members of the Executive Committee and conditions 
for termination;
(v) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the individual compensation of the members of 
the Executive Committee within the scope of the Articles of 
Association and subject to approval by the General Meeting, 
including, but not limited to, the allocation and definition of 
compensation-relevant performance objectives and further 
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conditions as well as the verification of the fulfillment of con-
ditions or agreed objectives;
(vi) preparing the draft of the annual Compensation Report 
for submission to the Board of Directors.

In line with the principles described in the Articles of Asso-
ciation, the Nomination and Compensation Committee may 
be entrusted by the Board of Directors with additional tasks.

To perform its duties, the Nomination and Compensation 
Committee may also retain the support of independent 
third parties and remunerate them.

On invitation of the Chair, the Nomination and Compen-
sation Committee convenes as often as business requires, 
but typically two to six times a year. The Board of Directors 
is informed by the Chair of the Nomination and Compen-
sation Committee about all items discussed, in particular, 
about all decisions made within powers and duties, as de-
scribed above. For an overview of the number of Nomina-
tion and Compensation Committee meetings, the average 
duration, and the average attendance, please refer to the 
section Working Methods of the Board of Directors and its 
Board Committees below.

Mergers and Acquisitions Committee
The Mergers and Acquisitions Committee consists of two or 
more members of the Board of Directors. Its current mem-
bers are Jack Clemons (Chair), Adrian T. Keller, and Gabriel 
Baertschi.

The Mergers and Acquisitions Committee has the following 
duties and responsibilities:

(i) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors concerning merger and acquisitions transactions, 
including the review of such transactions proposed by the 
CEO;
(ii) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors concerning strategic investment and divestment 
transactions, including the review of such transactions pro-
posed by the CEO; and
(iii) to propose the assessment of potential acquisitions and 
mergers.

Working Methods of the Board of Directors and its 
Board Committees
According to the Organizational Regulations, the Board of 
Directors must meet regularly and as often as business re-
quires.

Meetings of the Board of Directors are convened by the 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors or, if the Chairperson 
is unable to do so, by another member designated for such 
purposes by the Board of Directors. The notice of meetings 
should be given at least ten days in advance to allow the 
members of the Board of Directors the required prepara-
tion time. The Chairperson must also convene a meeting of 

the Board of Directors, generally within fourteen days, if re-
quested to do so by any of its members in writing, by stat-
ing the reasons and the items to be placed on the agenda. 
In addition to the standing Board Committees, the Board of 
Directors may entrust some or several of its members, as 
individuals or as members of a Committee, with the duty 
to prepare and carry out its resolutions or to supervise cer-
tain matters. Such members must also keep the Board of Di-
rectors duly informed on such entrusted matters. The Audit 
Committee provides the Board of Directors with recommen-
dations on sustainability-related matters, including double 
materiality and the annual sustainability report. Also, the 
Audit Committee was informed of DKSH’s key sustainabil-
ity-related developments during some of its regular meet-
ings in 2025 by representatives from Group Sustainability.

The Chairperson is, inter alia, in charge of organizing and 
preparing the meetings of the Board of Directors (including 
the preparation of the agenda), chairing the meetings, en-
suring the flow of information within the Board of Directors 
and the Group, and coordinating with the CEO the commu-
nication with the public. The Board of Directors consults ex-
ternal experts on specific topics where necessary.

Meetings of the Board of Directors may also be held by tele-
phone conference or in another suitable way. In principle, 
the Board of Directors may pass resolutions when the ma-
jority of its members are present (including participation by 
telephone conference or in another suitable way).

The following elections, transactions, and issues must be 
adopted by the Board of Directors by a majority of at least 
two-thirds of the votes cast:

(i) determination of business policies, long-term planning, 
and strategy;
(ii) approval of annual planning, financial policies, and the in-
ternal control system (ICS);
(iii) submission of consolidated financial statements and div-
idend proposals to the General Meeting;
(iv) enactment and amendment of the Organizational Reg-
ulations; and
(v) election and removal of the CEO.

All other decisions of the Board of Directors may be adopted 
by a majority of the votes cast. In case of a tie vote, the Chair-
person of the relevant meeting has the casting vote. Resolu-
tions on an item may be adopted in writing unless a mem-
ber of the Board of Directors requests an oral deliberation.

Generally, the Board Committees may pass resolutions 
when the majority of its members are present. Resolutions 
of the Board Committees are adopted by a majority of the 
votes cast. In case of a tie, the Chair of the relevant Board 
Committee has the casting vote. Minutes are kept of the 
discussions and resolutions taken at each of the meetings 
of the Board of Directors and its Board Committees. The 
charts on the following two pages provide an overview of 
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Attendance per Board Meeting through 2025 
February 11

13:30-17:30
March 27
12:15-13:00

May 22
08:00-18:00

July 16
12:00-13:00

September 172 
17:30-18:50 (JST) 

September 182

08:00-17:15 (JST)
December 11

08:30-15:30

Marco Gadola, Chairman • • • •1 • • •

Gabriel Baertschi • • • •1 • • •

Dr. Wolfgang Baier • • • •1 • • •

Jack Clemons • •1 • •1 • • •

Adrian T. Keller • • • •1 • • •

Andreas W. Keller • • • •1 • • •

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler • • • •1 • • •

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner 
(resigned from Board of  
Directors as of March 27, 2025) • n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Eunice Zehnder-Lai • • • •1 • • •

Suwannee Ratthayabandith 
(as of March 27, 2025) n/a • • •1 • • •
1	� Via conference call.
2	 Tokyo.

Attendance Executive Committee Members

Stefan P. Butz • • • •1 • • •

Natale Capri
08:10-08:55 / 11:30-

12:20 11:55-12:45 13:40-14:30

Hanno Elbraechter
08:10-08:55 / 13:15-
14:15 / 15:00-15:35 13:15-13:40

Antoine Mangin 13:45-14:20 12:35-12:551

08:10-08:55 / 11:30-
12:20 / 13:15-16:15

09:50-12:45 / 13:15-
15:05 13:20-13:40

Sam Oh

08:10-08:55 / 11:30-
12:20 / 13:15-15:35 / 

16:15-17:15
09:50-12:45 / 

13:15-14:30

Chris Ritchie 14:00-15:00 11:05-11:55 11:05-11:50

Jasprit Sahnsi 
(as of March 17, 2025) n/a • • •1 • • 13:30-14:45

Bijay Singh
08:10-08:55 / 13:15-

15:00 09:50-11:20 11:20-12:25

Thomas Sul
11:55-12:45 / 13:15-

13:40 13:40-14:30

Delia Sun (as of March 1, 2025) n/a

08:10-08:55 / 11:30-
12:20 / 13:15-15:35 / 

16:15-16:45
09:50-12:45 / 

13:15-14:30

Ido Wallach • •1 • •1 • • •
1	� Via conference call. 

Attendance per Audit Committee Meeting through 2025 
February 11

09:15-12:15
May 21

13:00-16:00
July 16

11:00-12:00
September 162

13:00-16:15 (JST)
December 10

16:00-18:30

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler • • •1 • •

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner (resigned from Board of Directors  
as of March 27, 2025) • n/a n/a n/a n/a

Jack Clemons • • •1 • •

Adrian T. Keller (as guest) •

Marco Gadola (as guest) • • •1 • 16:50-18:30

Simon Zogg (as Lead Auditor) (until March 2025)
9:20-9:55 /  

11:30-11:45 n/a n/a n/a n/a

André Schaub (as Lead Auditor) (as of March 2025) n/a 13:05-13:35 16:10-16:40
1	 Via conference call.
2	 Tokyo.
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Attendance Executive Committee Members 

February 11
09:15-12:15

May 21
13:00-16:00

July 16
11:00-12:00

September 162

13:00-16:15 (JST)
December 10

16:00-18:30

Stefan P. Butz • • •1 • •

Sam Oh 15:30-16:00 16:00-16:101

Jasprit Sahnsi (as of March 17, 2025) n/a • •1 •

Ido Wallach • • •1 • •
1	� Via conference call.
2	 Tokyo.

Attendance per Nomination and Compensation Committee Meeting through 2025 
February 11

12:15 -13:25
May 21

16:45-18:00
September 162

09:00-10:40 (JST)
December 10

15:00-16:15

Eunice Zehnder-Lai • • • •

Gabriel Baertschi • • • •

Adrian T. Keller • • • •

Marco Gadola (as guest) • • • 15:00-16:00
1	� Via conference call.
2	 Tokyo.

Attendance Executive Committee Members 
February 11

12:15 -13:25
May 21

16:45-18:00
September 162

09:00-10:40 (JST)
December 10

15:00-16:15

Stefan P. Butz • • • •

Antoine Mangin • • • •

Jasprit Sahnsi (as of March 17, 2025) n/a • •
1	� Via conference call. 

Attendance per Mergers & Acquisitions Committee Meeting through 2025 
February 15

08:30 –09:15
May 21

16:00-16:45
June 16

08:00-08:45
September 162

11:00-12:45 (JST)
December 10

13:30-14:30

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner 
(resigned from Board of Di-
rectors as of March 27, 2025) • n/a n/a n/a n/a

Gabriel Baertschi • • •1 • •

Jack Clemons • • •1 • •

Adrian T. Keller • • •1 • •

Marco Gadola (as guest) • • •1 • •
1	� Via conference call.
2	 Tokyo. 

Attendance Executive Committee Members 
February 15

08:30 –09:15
May 21

16:00-16:45
June 16

08:00-08:45
September 162

11:00-12:45 (JST)
December 10

13:30-14:30

Stefan P. Butz • • •1 • •

Natale Capri 11:40-11:50 / 12:05-12:20

Hanno Elbraechter 16:30-16:45 14:10-14:301

Jasprit Sahnsi  
(as of March 17, 2025) n/a • •1 •

Bijay Singh •1 11:05-11:40 / 11:50-12:05 13:30-13:451

Thomas Sul 11:40-11:50 / 12:05-12:20

Ido Wallach • • •1 • •
1	� Via conference call.
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the attendance at the ordinary meetings of the Board of Di-
rectors and of the Board Committees of each member of the 
Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee, and the 
meeting time in 2025. In 2025, in addition to ordinary meet-
ings, the Board of Directors held two extraordinary meet-
ings, the Mergers & Acquisitions Committee five, and the 
Nomination and Compensation Committee and the Audit 
Committee each held one extraordinary meeting. These 
meetings were attended by the members of the Board or 
the respective Committee members, as applicable, the CEO, 
CFO, General Counsel and, where necessary, the Head of the 
relevant Business Unit and, in the case of Committee meet-
ings, other Board members attended as guests on certain 
occasions. The Mergers & Acquisitions Committee as well as 
the Board of Directors periodically exchanged with external 
consultants on the Group’s M&A projects.

Board of Directors and Executive Committee:
Areas of Responsibilities
The Board of Directors exercises the ultimate management, 
supervision, and control over the conduct of the Company’s 
and the Group’s business. It represents the Company and 
resolves all matters that are not reserved or delegated to 
another body of the Company. In accordance with the Arti-
cles of Association and based on the Organizational Regula-
tions of the Company, the Board of Directors has delegated 
the conduct of the Company’s business to the Executive 
Committee under the leadership of the CEO.

The Board of Directors has the following non-assignable 
and inalienable duties:

(i) Overall management of the Company, and the issuance 
of the required directives;
(ii) Definition of the organizational structure;
(iii) Establishment of principles for accounting, financial con-
trolling and financial planning;
(iv) Appointment and removal of the persons entrusted with 
executive management and representation of the Com-
pany, and determination of signatory authorities; 
(v) Oversight of the persons entrusted with executive man-
agement, specifically with regard to compliance with the 
law, the Articles of Association, regulations and directives; 
(vi) Preparation of the Annual Report;
(vii) Preparation of the Compensation Report and the reso-
lution on the maximum aggregate compensation for annual 
approval by the General Meeting separately for the Board 
of Directors and  Executive Committee in accordance with § 
19 and § 28 of the Articles of Association;
(viii) if applicable, the preparation of the report on non-fi-
nancial matters pursuant to article 964c CO and other re-
ports as required by law; 
(ix) Preparation of the General Meetings and the implemen-
tation of its resolutions;
(x) the submission of a petition for debt-restructuring mora-
torium and notification of the courts in the event of overin-
debtedness; 

(xi) Resolutions on change to the share capital to the ex-
tent that such power is vested in the Board of Directors, 
the determination of capital changes, the preparation of the 
report on the capital increase, and the respective amend-
ments to the Articles of Association. 

The Executive Committee, under the leadership of the CEO, 
is entrusted with all other powers and duties (except the 
powers attributed to the General Meeting by law and the Ar-
ticles of Association), including the preparation and imple-
mentation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and 
the management of the Company and the Group.

The CEO leads the Executive Committee and has, inter alia, 
the following powers and duties with the right to delegate 
the performance and implementation of such CEO duties 
further:

(i) the establishment of a management organization, includ-
ing an Executive Committee that enables each of the Com-
pany and the Group to effectively operate its business in 
accordance with the strategy approved by the Board of Di-
rectors;
(ii) the management and supervision of the day-to-day busi-
ness of the Company and the Group;
(iii) the communication to the public; 
(iv) the issuance of internal rules and regulations for the 
management – including rules for the organization of the 
Executive Committee and the preparation, calling and pre-
siding of the meetings of the Executive Committee – and the 
operations of the Group, to the extent that this is not the re-
sponsibility of the Board of Directors;
(v) the provision of all information and documents neces-
sary to the Board of Directors;
(vi) the implementation of the resolutions passed by the 
Board of Directors or the Board Committees;
(vii) the proposal to the Board of Directors of transactions 
to be approved by the Board; 
(viii) the appointment and dismissal of members of the Ex-
ecutive Committee (except the CFO) upon prior consultation 
with the Nomination and Compensation Committee;
(ix) the appointment and removal of the top managers other 
than members of the Executive Committee;
(x) the implementation of Group policies including but not 
limited to compliance matters and of the limits of author-
ity and determination/implementation of amendments 
thereto, to the extent that such amendments relate to func-
tions directly or indirectly subordinated to the CEO.  

Information and Control Instruments  
vis-à-vis the Executive Committee
The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of being 
fully informed on material matters that may have an impact 
on the Company and/or the Group. It supervises the Exec-
utive Committee and controls and monitors the Executive 
Committee’s and the Group’s performance through report-
ing and controlling processes, and the Board Committees.
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The Board of Directors receives a monthly financial report 
generated by the Company’s management information sys-
tem. The report comprises consolidated financial information 
and includes an income statement, statement of financial 
position, and cash flow statement, including management 
performance comments by Business Units and communica-
tion of key issues. Members of the Executive Committee may 
attend meetings of the Board of Directors, if required, and 
the CFO attends meetings of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee defines and evaluates the most im-
portant risks of the Group in a process based on a detailed 
risk catalog. As a general principle, risks are assessed, mon-
itored, and mitigated in a decentralized manner where risks 
originate, i.e. directly in the business or in the various func-
tional streams, such as Finance, Supply Chain, IT, Human Re-
sources (HR), Legal and Compliance. A centralized risk man-
agement function actively supports the Audit Committee by 

focusing on key strategic risks for the Group and its Busi-
ness Units. These risks are periodically reviewed jointly with 
the Executive Committee or Business Unit management and 
reported to the Audit Committee. Additionally, risk manage-
ment processes are installed in all major market organiza-
tions, with a perspective on the local platforms that enable 
and support the various businesses in a market. Based on 
the evaluation, a detailed catalog of measures for the most 
important risks is presented to the Audit Committee in its 
last meeting of the respective business year, which evalu-
ates the risk matrix resolving a catalog of measures. The 
most important risks, along with possible measures to pre-
vent and minimize potential damage, are presented to the 
Board of Directors for consideration and decision making.

Group Internal Audit, the external auditors, and the Gov-
ernance, Risk, and Compliance function support the Board 
of Directors in exercising its supervisory and control func-

Organizational Chart of the Executive Committee as per 31.12.2025
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Stefan P. Butz, CEO
(1968, German)

Stefan P. Butz joined DKSH as a member of the Executive 
Committee in January 2017, before becoming CEO in March 
2017. From 2013, Stefan P. Butz was the Chief Executive In-
dustry & COO Europe/China with the Intertek Group Plc in 
London, UK. The company ranks among the leading global 
enterprises in the worldwide quality assurance industry. 
He joined Intertek in 2008 as Group Executive Vice Presi-
dent and was initially responsible for setting up its Indus-
try and Assurance division, as well as for Strategy, Merg-
ers & Acquisitions, and Marketing. Before that, he worked 
at TÜV Süd, one of the world’s largest testing, certification, 
and inspection companies, as Head Corporate Development 
from 2000, and then from 2002 as CEO & President of the 
North American operations, headquartered in Boston. Ste-
fan P. Butz began his career as a Management Consultant 
and worked at Accenture Strategy in Munich for many years. 
Stefan P. Butz holds a Master’s degree in Business Adminis-
tration (Dipl.-Kfm., Honors) from the University of Bayreuth, 
Germany. He has also completed executive programs at 
Harvard and Wharton, both in the USA.

Ido Wallach, CFO 
(1975, Israeli/Italian)

Ido Wallach joined DKSH in November 2019 as Vice Presi-
dent Group Controlling, based in Singapore. Since July 1, 
2021, he has been Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mem-
ber of the Executive Committee. In addition to Finance, Ido 
is also responsible for Supply Chain Management and Trans-
formation within DKSH. Ido has more than 25 years of ex-
tensive experience in finance and capital markets spanning 
Europe (including Switzerland), Asia, and North America. Be-
fore joining DKSH, he was CFO at Keter from 2016 until 2019 
and prior to that, he has held finance leadership positions 
at L’Oréal (2007-2016), P&G (2002-2006), and EY (1999-2000). 
Since August 2024, he is a member of the Board of Directors 
of aCommerce Group Public Company Limited and of aCom-
merce Group Limited. Ido Wallach holds an MBA from SDA 
Bocconi School of Management in Milan, Italy, and a Bache-
lor of Economics from University College London, UK.
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Bijay Singh1

(1964, Canadian)

Bijay Singh joined DKSH as Vice President, Global Business 
Development for Business Unit Healthcare in July 2015. He 
was designated Head Business Unit Healthcare and mem-
ber of the Executive Committee in July 2017. Bijay Singh has 
over 30 years of experience in the healthcare industry. From 
2004 to 2015, he held various senior positions at Novartis, a 
leading global Swiss healthcare company. Prior to 2004, he 
worked in various positions for Eli Lilly in Asia from 1997 to 
2003 and in the United States from 1993 to 1996, as well as 
for two global audit companies between 1987 and 1991. He 
has lived and worked on four continents and amassed over 
20 years of work experience in the healthcare field across 
Asia. Bijay Singh holds a Bachelor of Business Administra-
tion (Hons) from Simon Fraser University, Canada, and a 
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Stanford 
University, USA.

1 Ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee on 
December 31, 2025.

Chris Ritchie 
(1972, Canadian)

Chris Ritchie joined DKSH as Head Business Unit Consumer 
Goods and member of the Executive Committee in August 
2023. Chris has over 29 years of experience in the consumer 
goods industry. Prior to joining DKSH, he was Chief Global 
Business Officer of Sazerac, a leading privately held Ameri-
can spirit company, where he oversaw the Operating Units 
in Europe, India, and Asia Pacific for the last four years. From 
2016 to 2019, he was General Manager at Reckitt Benckiser, 
responsible for the growth market Philippines. Prior to that, 
from 2007 to 2016, he held various General Manager and Di-
rector positions at SABMiller in Asia, Europe, and Americas, 
including Managing Director of SABMiller Vietnam. From 
1995 to 2006, he held regional and global marketing roles at 
P&G. Throughout his career, Chris has driven growth, route-
to-market, and built strong teams, especially in developing 
markets. Chris holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from 
Queen's University in Kingston, Canada.
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Natale Capri 
(1970, Italian) 

Natale Capri has been a member of the DKSH Executive 
Committee since November 2013. From November 2013 to 
December 2025, he served as Co-Head, Business Unit Per-
formance Materials. In January 2026, he became Head, Busi-
ness Unit Performance Materials. Natale Capri joined the 
Milan office of DKSH in 1998 as a Sales Manager for Italy, 
where from 2001 to 2005, he was responsible for European 
and American Imaging and Electronic Chemicals. From 
2006, he also headed the European Business Line Specialty 
Chemicals and thereafter, in 2011, became Global Vice Pres-
ident Business Line Specialty Chemicals. Additionally, he 
held the role of Head of DKSH India from 2007 to 2011. Still 
today, he acts as Managing Director of DKSH Italy. Prior to 
DKSH, he worked for the Italian chemical Group Lamberti 
from 1995 to 1998. Natale Capri holds a Master’s degree in 
Organic Chemistry from the Milan University and an MBA 
from SDA Bocconi School of Management, both in Italy. 

Thomas Sul1 
(1965, German/Dutch)

Thomas Sul has been Co-Head Business Unit Performance 
Materials and a member of the DKSH Executive Commit-
tee since November 2013. He joined DKSH in Germany in 
1996 as a Sales Manager in Specialty Chemicals. To this day, 
he acts as Managing Director of DKSH GmbH, Germany. 
From 2003 to 2007, he was a Global Business Line Manager 
in Specialty Chemicals and thereafter, Vice President Eu-
rope. Before that, he worked for Beiersdorf AG as a Market 
and Product Manager from 1990 to 1996. Thomas Sul is a 
member of the Board of the OstAsienVerein (OAV), where 
he heads the Philippines Country Board. Thomas Sul holds 
a Master’s degree in Business Administration (Dipl.-Kfm.) 
from the University of Kiel, Germany.

1  Ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee on 
December 31, 2025.
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Hanno Elbraechter 
(1980, German)

Hanno Elbraechter has been Head Business Unit Technology 
and a member of the Executive Committee since September 
2014. Before joining DKSH, he spent more than ten years 
at Deckel Maho Gildemeister (DMG) from 2004 to 2014 and 
was appointed as CEO Asia of DMG in 2009. He has been a 
member of the Board of Directors at Datacolor AG since No-
vember 2018. Hanno Elbraechter graduated from the Ecole 
de Management (ESC) de Bordeaux, France, and University 
of Applied Sciences Muenster, Germany.

Sam Oh 
(1966, Korean/American)

Sam Oh joined DKSH in February 2021 as Chief Information 
Officer. He has been appointed as a member of the Exec-
utive Committee in March 2022. Sam Oh has been pivotal 
in the further development of the Group-wide digital and 
IT strategy and accelerated the company's digital transfor-
mation. He also oversees DKSH's Corporate Shared Service 
Center (CSSC), which comprises the global IT hub and Busi-
ness Process Operations with over 500 employees. Since 
August 2023, he has also been responsible for e-commerce. 
Furthermore, he serves as Chairman of the Board for DKSH 
Holdings (Malaysia) Berhad since November 2024. Sam Oh 
brings over 25 years of work experience gained at Tesco, 
Fujistu, and Dairy Farm International, across Asia and the 
USA. He has been a member of the Board of Directors of 
aCommerce Group Public Company Limited since August 
2023. Sam Oh holds a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics 
and Computer Science from the University of California, 
San Diego, USA.
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Jasprit Sahnsi 
(1981, British)

Jasprit Sahnsi has been General Counsel of DKSH and a mem-
ber of the Executive Committee since March 2025, respon-
sible for Legal, Governance, Risk and Compliance and serv-
ing as Company Secretary of DKSH Holding AG. Jasprit is an 
experienced legal professional with over 20 years of exper-
tise in law firms and both listed and private equity-owned 
companies across Europe, the Middle East, and Asia. Before 
joining DKSH, she served as Group General Counsel at Se-
lecta Group having worked with the group since 2018. Prior 
to that, she spent nearly 10 years at gategroup, including an 
assignment in Asia, and worked as a solicitor in UK-based 
law firms. She has extensive experience in corporate, M&A, 
commercial law and corporate governance. Jasprit was ad-
mitted as a Solicitor of England and Wales in 2005. Jasprit 
holds an LLB Law from Warwick University, UK. Addition-
ally, she has completed executive education programs at 
the University of St. Gallen, the University of Oxford, UK, 
and INSEAD.

Antoine Mangin
(1976, French)

Antoine Mangin has been Chief Human Resources Officer of 
DKSH since June 2020. As such, he ensures that DKSH’s tal-
ents and capabilities as well as the organisation remains fit 
for the future, in line with the strategic business direction. 
He is also responsible for the setup and effectiveness of local 
market management teams, evolving DKSH’s culture, and 
for modernizing the employee experience. Antoine Mangin 
brings more than 25 years of extensive Human Resources 
experience across Europe and Asia with organizations such 
as Mars Inc, L’Oréal, and Renault. He holds a Master’s de-
gree in Human Resources from the University of Paris and a 
Bachelor’s degree in Political Science from the University of 
Strasbourg, both in France.
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Delia Sun 
(1978, Chinese)

Delia Sun has been Head, Supply Chain Management since 
December 2022. Delia has a demonstrated track record of 
being a passionate leader and has previously led transfor-
mations in her career. She has close to 25 years of expe-
rience in supply chain and logistics across many best-in-
class companies in different industries. Prior to DKSH, Delia 
was VP, APAC Procurement at Tapestry and has driven the 
transformation of various functions including fulfilment 
management and logistics for Distribution Centers in Asia. 
Delia’s previous experience in Nike and Unilever China also 
included establishing innovative supply chain solutions in-
ternally to improve efficiency and externally for clients, in-
tegrated business planning, import/export fulfilment man-
agement and logistics, while reshaping the supply chain 
strategy and account operations. Delia Sun holds a Bach-
elor’s degree in English and International Trade from the 
Shanghai Maritime University in China. 
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tions. The Group Internal Audit function reports directly 
to the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee and comprises of auditors who travel on a global 
basis, completing audit assignments allocated  by the Audit 
Committee. Group Internal Audit presents an update on key 
audit findings and fraud cases in each meeting of the Audit 
Committee. The compliance function reports to the General 
Counsel and comprises compliance professionals who de-
velop compliance policies, monitor reports regarding com-
pliance matters, and conduct investigations into compliance 
matters.

4. Executive Committee
As of December 31, 2025, the Executive Committee (Ges-
chäftsleitung) is composed of the following members: The 
CEO, the CFO, the Business Unit Heads, and the Function 
Heads (Head Supply Chain Management, Chief Human Re-
sources Officer, Chief Information Officer, and General 
Counsel).

Other Activities and Functions
Any activities of members of the Executive Committee in 
governing and supervisory bodies of important Swiss and 
foreign organizations, institutions, and foundations as well 
as permanent management and consultancy functions for 
important Swiss and foreign interest groups, and official 
functions, and political posts, that are material are stated 
in each of the managers’ biographies.

External Mandates
Pursuant to § 30 of the Articles of Association, the members 
of the Executive Committee may hold a maximum of five 
additional mandates in comparable functions at other en-
terprises with an economic purpose, whereby mandates in 
companies which are controlled by the Company or which 
do control the Company shall not count. No member of the 
Executive Committee may hold more than two such man-
dates in other listed companies. Mandates in different legal 
entities, which are under common control, are deemed as 
one mandate. In the event that the maximum number of 
mandates is exceeded, the respective member of the Exec-
utive Committee must restore the lawful status within six 
months. 

Management Contracts
The Company has not entered into any management con-
tract with any third party.

5. Compensation 
For details regarding the compensation and shareholdings 
of the members of the Board of Directors and of the Execu-
tive Committee, please refer to the Compensation Report.

6. Shareholders’ Participation Rights
Voting Right Restrictions and Representation
The voting right may be exercised only if the shareholder (as 
owner, usufructuary or nominee) is recorded on a specific 
day (record date) as a voting shareholder in the share regis-
ter of the Company. Any shareholder with voting rights may 
be represented by their legal representative, the indepen-
dent proxy, or, if authorized in writing, by a third party who 
does not have to be a shareholder. The Company recognizes 
only one representative per share. The Board of Directors 
determines the requirements concerning powers of attor-
ney and instructions in accordance with the legal provisions 
and can issue regulations to this effect. There are no pref-
erential rights for individual shareholders and no voting re-
strictions. Treasury shares held by the Company do not en-
title the holder to vote.

There are no voting right restrictions. Therefore, there are 
no procedures or conditions for canceling restrictions and 
no rules on making exceptions to them. Consequently, no 
such exceptions were made in 2025, provided, however, 
that for the discharge of the members of the Board of Di-
rectors and of the Executive Committee, shareholders who 
take part in the Company’s management in any manner do 
not have voting rights.

There are no statutory group clauses other than in rela-
tion to the rules applicable to nominees. For limitations of 
transferability and nominee registrations, see section Lim-
itations of Transferability and Nominee Registrations.

Independent Shareholder Representative
The General Meeting elects the Independent Shareholder 
Representative. Natural or legal persons or partnerships 
may be elected. The term of office of the Independent Share-
holder Representative ends with the closure of the next Or-
dinary General Meeting. Re-election is possible.

If the Company does not have an Independent Shareholder 
Representative, or if the Independent Shareholder Repre-
sentative is not able to perform his/her duties, the Board of 
Directors may appoint one for the next or current General 
Meeting. Unless a shareholder expressly issues an instruc-
tion to the contrary, the proxies and voting instructions re-
tain their validity for the new Independent Shareholder Rep-
resentative.

The Independent Shareholder Representative may be repre-
sented at the General Meeting by auxiliary people. They re-
main entirely responsible for performing their duties. The In-
dependent Shareholder Representative is obliged to exercise 
the voting rights assigned to him/her by the shareholders in 
accordance with their instructions. If he/she does not receive 
any instructions, he/she abstains from voting.

The Board of Directors determines the procedure and the 
conditions for the assignment of proxies and instructions to 
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7. Change of Control and Defense Measures
Duty to Make an Offer
A purchaser of shares in the Company must submit a public 
takeover offer, pursuant to the Articles 135 and 163 FinMIA 
and § 6 of the Articles of Association, if it exceeds the thresh-
old of 49% of the voting rights in the Company (opting-up).

Clauses on Changes of Control
There are no change of control clauses (which would be trig-
gered in the event of a direct or indirect change of control 
in the Company) in favor of the members of the Board of Di-
rectors, the Executive Committee or any other senior man-
ager or officer.

The contracts of employment with the members of the Ex-
ecutive Committee may have a fixed or indefinite term. The 
maximum duration for fixed-term contracts and the maxi-
mum notice period for contracts of an indefinite term shall 
be twelve months (§ 27 of the Articles of Association).

In case of an ordinary termination, all such members of the 
Executive Committee would be entitled to the fixed salary 
throughout the remainder of the applicable termination pe-
riod. Furthermore, all such members of the Executive Com-
mittee may be entitled to annual variable pay, timely pro-
rated, if applicable, in accordance with the principles, as 
explained in the Compensation Report.

Transparency on non-financial Matters
The Board of Directors has prepared a separate sustainabil-
ity report that is subject to approval by the Ordinary Gen-
eral Meeting. 

8. Statutory Auditors
Duration of Mandate and Term of Office  
of the Lead Auditor
The re-election of Ernst & Young AG, Zurich (EY), as the 
external statutory auditor of the Company as well as the 
Group auditor for the business year 2025, was confirmed 
at the Ordinary General Meeting in 2025, with the declara-
tion of acceptance dated February 14, 2025. The appoint-
ment of the auditor is for one year and is renewed annually. 
EY have been the auditors of the Company for fifteen years, 
with Mr. Andre Schaub acting as its Lead Partner since 2025. 
In 2025, the Audit Committee undertook a competitive ex-
ternal audit tender, including the incumbent auditor, to 
benchmark the market. Based on the tender, the Board of 
Directors will propose the external statutory auditor of the 
Company for the upcoming financial year to the Ordinary 
General Meeting for election.

Auditing Fees
The fees charged for auditing services for the year 2025 
amounted to CHF 3.3 million.

Independent Shareholder Representatives in relation to a 
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the shareholders 
have the opportunity to issue to the Independent Share-
holder Representative:

(i) voting instructions on any motion concerning agenda 
items included in the invitation;
(ii) general voting instructions on agenda items that have not 
been pre-announced and new agenda items pursuant to Art. 
704b CO;
(iii) proxies and instructions also electronically.

Proxies and instructions may only be given to the Indepen-
dent Shareholder Representative for the forthcoming Gen-
eral Meeting. The Board of Directors is authorized to waive 
the requirement for a qualified electronic signature ei-
ther fully or partially. The general or implied instruction of 
a shareholder to the Independent Shareholder Representa-
tive to vote in favor of the motions of the Board of Directors 
is permitted. This also applies to motions, which have not 
been pre-announced in the invitation of the General Meeting.

Statutory Quorum
Unless stipulated otherwise by mandatory legal provisions, 
the General Meeting passes its resolutions and carries out 
its votes based on the majority of the votes represented. 

The Chairperson determines whether votes are to be open, 
electronic or in writing, unless one or more shareholders 
who together hold at least 5% of the votes represented re-
quest a written or electronic vote.

Convocation of the General Meeting of Shareholders
General Meetings of shareholders are convened by the 
Board of Directors by way of a single announcement pur-
suant to § 37 of the Articles of Association at least 20 calen-
dar days before the relevant meeting. The convocation of a 
General Meeting may be requested by one or more share-
holders who together represent at least 5% of the share cap-
ital or votes.

Inclusion of Items on the Agenda
Shareholders who represent shares of at least 0.5% of the 
share capital or votes may request that items be put on the 
agenda. This request must be submitted to the Board of 
Directors in writing, along with the respective motions, at 
least 45 calendar days before the relevant General Meeting.

Registrations in the Share Register
In the invitation to the General Meeting, the Board of Direc-
tors states the applicable record date by which shareholders 
must be registered in the share register to be eligible to par-
ticipate in and vote at the meeting. In recent years, the Com-
pany has set the record date between six to sixteen working 
days before the General Meeting.
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The Audit Committee discusses and reviews the scope of the 
audits and the feedback resulting therefrom. Based on this 
information, it determines changes and improvements as 
necessary. For further information on the responsibilities of 
the Audit Committee with respect to the external auditors, 
please refer to the section Internal Organization Structure.

Audit-related and material non-audit-related services (e.g. 
tax services and other consulting services) that are provided 
by the auditors must be approved in advance by the Audit 
Committee. In the business year, the auditors had various 
contacts with members of the Executive Committee and 
particularly the Chief Financial Officer, whom the auditors 
met several times during the business year. The purpose 
of such meetings was to report on selected topics, such as 
preparation of meetings with the Audit Committee and sta-
tus updates on half-year review and full-year closing.

In the business year, the auditors attended three meetings    
with the Audit Committee and other informal meetings to 
provide status updates on audit matters and the collabora-
tion with the Group Internal Audit function of the Company 
to report on the review of the half-year results and the audit 
of the year-end closing, to assess their own independence 
and, if required, obtain approvals from the Audit Commit-
tee regarding non-audit-related assignments. 

Additional Fees
In addition to the auditing fees mentioned above, the statu-
tory auditors charged an amount of CHF 0.1 million in 2025. 
This included tax services and other audit-related services 
in various markets.

Additional Fees EY – 2025 Sum of Fee Quote in CHF

Tax related 50,250

Audit related 82,000

Grand Total 132,250

Informational Instruments Pertaining  
to an External Audit
The Audit Committee evaluates the performance, fees, and 
independence of the auditors each year according to the fol-
lowing criteria:

(i) quality of the Management Letter;
(ii) global coverage and coordination of the audit instruc-
tions;
(iii) meeting the deadlines required to allow the annual re-
sults’ media release to be published on the scheduled date;
(iv) benchmark analysis of the audit fees; and
(v) independence as defined by relevant rules of the Swiss 
Federal Act on the Licensing and Oversight of Auditors 
(AOA).
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1 �“Insider” means each member of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Execu-
tive Committee, any other person having a leading position in the Company or any 
company controlling or controlled by it and any person with intended access to In-
sider Information such as persons with a special relationship with the Company, e.g. 
its auditors, consultants or attorneys, or any employee or agent of DKSH designat-
ed, from time to time, by the Chairperson of the Company's Board of Directors (the 
"Chairperson"), the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"), the Head Mergers & Acquisitions 
or the General Counsel of the Company and each member of the Board of Directors 
and the executive management of those major shareholders which are represented 
on the Board of Directors of DKSH.

2 �“DKSH Securities” means (i) shares in the Company or any of its listed subsidiaries, (ii) 
financial instruments which relate to shares in the Company or any of its listed sub-
sidiaries as underlying (e.g. conversion, purchase or sale rights including OTC instru-
ments).

3 �“Insider information” means confidential, price-relevant information relating to the 
Company or any of its group companies.

9. Information Policy
The Group is committed to ensuring a consistent and trans-
parent information policy that meets the needs of the 
media, analysts, investors, and other stakeholders. The 
Company’s objective is to provide financial and business in-
formation about the Company’s and the Group’s historical 
record, current performance, and future prospects that ful-
fill the best practice standards in reporting. The Company’s 
official publication medium is the Swiss Official Gazette of 
Commerce (Schweizerisches Handelsamtsblatt).

The Group publishes financial results on a semi-annual 
basis. The annual results are generally released in February 
and the half-year results in July.

The Group has established a website at www.dksh.com to 
ensure a rapid and equitable distribution of information. 
The Group’s website has a section fully dedicated to Inves-
tor Relations: www.dksh.com/investors. Media releases, 
presentations, webcasts, and financial reports are available 
online under this section.

For the distribution of ad-hoc notices, DKSH maintains push 
and pull services, in accordance with applicable laws and 
regulations, accessible on the Company’s website at 
www.dksh.com/global-en/home/media/news.

Representatives of the Group also regularly meet with the 
financial community at conferences, roadshows as well as 
one-on-one meetings. A calendar of upcoming events, such 
as the publication of the annual and half-year results, media 
conferences, and analyst calls as well as the General Meet-
ing of shareholders is available online at 
www.dksh.com/financial-calendar.

Management transactions made in 2025 by qualifying mem-
bers of the Executive Committee or other senior managers, 
which are required to be disclosed by the Group and pub-
lished by the SIX Swiss Exchange, may be found at www.
ser-ag.com/en/resources/notifications-market-partici-
pants/management-transactions.html#/.

The Group acknowledges and complies with the rules re-
garding information and reporting specified under the Di-
rective on Regular Reporting Obligations for Issuers of Eq-
uity Securities, Bonds, Conversion Rights, Derivatives, and 
Collective Investment Schemes issued by SIX Swiss Ex-
change.

10. Quiet Periods (General Blackout Periods)
Pursuant to Article 3.5.2 of the Group’s Policy on Insider 
Trading, no Insider1 shall trade in DKSH Securities2 (irre-
spective of whether or not the Insider has Insider Informa-
tion3) during the period beginning ten calendar days before 
the beginning of any financial reporting period of the Group 
and ending on (and including) the business day following 
the public release of financial performance data for the pre-
vious financial reporting period.

Shareholders may direct investor relations inquiries to:

DKSH Holding Ltd.
Wiesenstrasse 8, 8034 Zurich, Switzerland
+41 44 386 72 72
investors@dksh.com
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Compensation Report 

DKSH creates a leading 
organization by consistently 
attracting, developing, and 
rewarding the best possible 
professionals and specialists 
within its dynamic and 
complex business 
environment.

The Compensation Report provides an overview of DKSH’s 
remuneration principles and programs as well as informa-
tion about the method of determination of compensation. 
Further, this report includes details around the compensa-
tion of the members of the Board of Directors and of the Ex-
ecutive Committee related to the business year 2025.

This report is written in accordance with the provisions of 
the Swiss Code of Obligations (CO), the Directive on Infor-
mation relating to Corporate Governance (DCG) issued by 
the SIX Swiss Exchange as well as the principles of the Swiss 
Code of Best Practice for Corporate Governance of econo-
miesuisse.

1. Compensation Governance
Authority for decisions related to compensation are gov-
erned by the Articles of Association and the Organizational 
Regulations of DKSH Holding Ltd.

As determined in the Articles of Association and in the Or-
ganizational Regulations of DKSH Holding Ltd., the Nomi-
nation and Compensation Committee (NCC) supports the 
Board of Directors in the fulfillment of its duties and respon-
sibilities in relation to compensation, including:

(i) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the compensation policy, including the principles 
for performance-related compensation and the allocation 
of securities, conversion or option rights, entitlements, or 
other financial instruments for the Board of Directors and 
the Executive Committee;

(ii) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the maximum aggregate compensation for the 
Board of Directors and the Executive Committee pursuant 
to § 19 and § 28 of the Articles of Association;

(iii) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the specific design of the participation plans pur-
suant to § 28 of the Articles of Association;
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(iv) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the specific design of the employment contracts 
of the members of the Executive Committee and the condi-
tions for termination;

(v) preparing proposals for submission to the Board of Di-
rectors on the individual compensation of the members of 
the Executive Committee within the scope of the Articles of 
Association and subject to approval by the General Meeting, 
including, but not limited to, the allocation and definition of 
compensation-relevant performance objectives and further 
conditions as well as the verification of the fulfilment of con-
ditions or agreed objectives;

(vi) preparing the draft of the annual Compensation Report 
for submission to the Board of Directors. According to the 
statutory law and current Articles of Association the Com-
pensation Report shall be submitted to the General Meet-
ing for a consultative vote.

Tasks CEO NCC Board AGM

Individual election of the members of the NCC and of the Board of Directors proposes approves

Compensation policy and principles, in line with the provisions of the Articles of Association proposes approves
Maximum aggregate amount of compensation for the Board of Directors and for the  
Executive Committee proposes proposes approves
Individual compensation of members of the Board of Directors proposes approves
Individual compensation of the CEO proposes approves
Individual compensation of the other members of the Executive Committee proposes reviews approves

Compensation report proposes approves
consultative 

vote

 
In the business year 2025, the Nomination and Compensa-
tion Committee held five meetings. The main focus of the 
first and the last meeting of the year was on the compensa-
tion and the compensation structure of the members of the 
Executive Committee and the aggregate amounts of com-
pensation of the members of the Executive Committee and 
the Board of Directors. The focus of the other two meetings 
was on People strategy and succession planning.

Rules in the Articles of Association on Compensation
As required by law, the Articles of Association of DKSH Hold-
ing Ltd. have been revised in 2023 and approved by the share-
holders at the Ordinary General Meeting 2023. The Articles of 
Association include the following provisions on compensation:

(i) Performance-related compensation: The short-term per-
formance-related compensation plans are based on perfor-
mance criteria, which include the performance of the DKSH 
Group and/or its sub-divisions and/or individual objectives. 
Achievement of objectives is generally measured in the one-
year period to which the short-term plan applies. The Board 
of Directors, assisted by the Nomination and Compensation 
Committee, determines the performance criteria, the objec-
tives, and the degree of objective achievement. The long-
term, performance-related compensation plans are based 

on performance criteria, which relate to DKSH Group’s stra-
tegic objectives (e.g. financial objectives, shareholder return, 
and/or other benchmarks). The achievement of objectives 
is generally measured in three-year periods. The amount of 
the long-term compensation pay-out is limited. The long-
term performance-related compensation may be paid in 
cash, in the form of share-based compensation (such as re-
stricted or unrestricted shares, entitlements, or subscription 
rights on shares) or comparable instruments, other benefits, 
or in specie. The Board of Directors, assisted by the Nomina-
tion and Compensation Committee, determines the condi-
tions for the design, the definitive entitlement (vesting), the 
blocking period, the vesting and the forfeiture of the com-
pensation granted. These conditions may provide for the 
extension, accelerated vesting, or other requirements con-
cerning the allocation, acquisition, or forfeiture of rights as 
a result of certain pre-defined events such as the termina-
tion of the employment or of the mandate. The Board of Di-
rectors determines the evaluation criteria for the individual 

compensation on the basis of the principles applying to the 
preparation of the Compensation Report.

(ii) Duration of employment contracts, loans, credit facili-
ties, and post-employment benefits: The Company (or com-
panies controlled by it) may enter into contracts with mem-
bers of the Board of Directors as to their compensation for 
a fixed term of one year. Similarly, the contracts of employ-
ment with the members of the Executive Committee may 
have a fixed or indefinite term, while the maximum dura-
tion for such fixed-term contracts and the maximum notice 
period for contracts of an indefinite term shall be twelve 
months. The Company (or its subsidiaries) may, to the ex-
tent permissible by law, compensate members of the Board 
of Directors and of the Executive Committee for any disad-
vantages resulting from legal proceedings or settlements re-
lating to their activities on behalf of the Company or sub-
sidiaries, advance corresponding payments, and take out 
relevant insurance policies. Such payments are not deemed 
to be compensation, loans, or credits. In addition, the Com-
pany (and its subsidiaries) may offer members of the Exec-
utive Committee retirement benefits (such as pensions, the 
purchase of health insurance policies, and so forth) outside 
of the occupational pension scheme and pay these out after 
their departure. Such retirement benefits outside of the oc-
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Provide
Equitable and 
Competitive 

Reward

Support Sustainable, 
Profitable Growth

Be Globally
Applicable

Support the Development
of a

Pay-for-performance Culture

The ultimate goal of effective compensation is to strengthen 
the Group’s leading industry position for the benefit of the 
Company’s business partners, clients, and customers in 
order to drive performance, while delivering the expected 
returns to shareholders of the Company.

The Group’s compensation philosophy is to optimize DKSH’s 
ability to attract the best-fit people, motivate a high-perfor-
mance culture, and retain people whose skills and capabili-
ties enable DKSH to meet the business objectives and future 
ambitions, by providing overall compensation in line with 
relevant competitors, however with greater weight given to 
variable compensation; hence rewarding excellent results 
with above-market total compensation packages and plac-
ing more compensation at risk. This is in line with the com-
pensation principle of linking compensation to performance 
and rewarding those who contribute most to the operating 
performance and earning power of the Group.

DKSH regularly reviews the remuneration of its executives, 
including that of the members of the Executive Commit-
tee. This includes regular participation, every two years, in 
benchmark studies on comparable functions in other rele-
vant companies. In 2025, a detailed analysis of the remuner-
ation of the members of the Executive Committee was car-
ried out and benchmarked against published market data 
to determine the target remuneration levels of the mem-
bers of the Executive Committee for the business year 2025. 
While many different factors (such as the individual role, 
experience in the role and contribution, company perfor-
mance and affordability) are considered to determine re-
muneration levels, the policy of DKSH is to provide a tar-
get remuneration that is in principle positioned around the 
market median. 

cupational pension scheme may not exceed CHF 850,000 a 
year. The employment contracts of members of the Execu-
tive Committee may provide for post-contractual non-com-
petition undertakings up to a maximum of twelve months, 
whereby the compensation for non-competition may neither 
exceed the timely pro-rated fixed annual compensation prior 
to termination nor the average of the compensation of the 
last three business years and must always be justified on 
business grounds (art. 735c CO).

(iii) Vote on pay: Concerning the approval of compensation 
amounts by the Ordinary General Meeting, the total amount 
of compensation for the Board of Directors shall be ap-
proved annually by the Ordinary General Meeting in a bind-
ing vote for their following term of office, while the maxi-
mum amount of compensation of the Executive Committee 
shall be approved in the same manner for the following busi-
ness year. If the Ordinary General Meeting rejects the pro-
posal of the Board of Directors for the maximum aggregate 
compensation of the Board of Directors and/or of the Ex-
ecutive Committee, the Board of Directors shall decide on 
how to proceed. In particular, the Board of Directors may 
convene an Extraordinary General Meeting for the purpose 
of submitting a new compensation proposal or determine 
compensation for the current business year on an interim 
basis subject to subsequent approval by the next Ordinary 
General Meeting. The Board of Directors may also split mo-
tions for approval by submitting motions concerning indi-
vidual compensation elements, shorter time periods or a 
smaller circle of persons. The Board of Directors may con-
tinue to pay out compensation to the individual members 
of the Board of Directors or members of the Executive Com-
mittee subject to claw-back rights, as may be required by 
mandatory law. There shall be an additional amount of 30% 
of the maximum aggregate compensation already approved 
for the Executive Committee for the relevant compensation 
period, available for all members of the Executive Commit-
tee being appointed after the Ordinary General Meeting, 
which already resolved the maximum aggregate compensa-
tion for the Executive Committee. This additional amount ap-
plies separately for each compensation period for which ap-
proval has been granted by the Ordinary General Meeting. 
The Ordinary General Meeting is not required to approve the 
actual additional amount used. The additional amount may 
also be used as compensation for disadvantages relating to 
the change of position (in cash or in the form of share-based 
compensation).

2. Compensation Philosophy and Principles
To ensure DKSH’s success in a highly competitive global 
business environment with a focus on Asia and beyond, it 
is vital to attract, develop, and retain internationally-ori-
ented, successful, and engaged employees. The compensa-
tion principles are designed to:
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Regarding the remuneration of the Board of Directors, the 
system and amount are reviewed periodically by the Nom-
ination and Compensation Committee. The remuneration 
analysis was conducted based on a peer group of relevant 
companies with comparable market capitalization, sales, 
and employee numbers.

3. Compensation Components for  
Members of the Board of Directors
To ensure the independence of the Board of Directors in its 
supervisory function, the members of the Board of Direc-
tors, including the Chairperson, are entitled to a fixed base 
fee for their services, paid in cash (as well as allowances and 
social security contributions). Each Chair and each member 
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Compensation 
Committee, and the Mergers and Acquisitions Committee is 
entitled to an additional committee fee.

in CHF/year, in cash Chairman Member

Full Board 750,000 150,000

Audit Committee 75,000 50,000

Nomination and Compensation Committee 50,000 30,000

Mergers and Acquisitions Committee 25,000 25,000

In addition, the members of the Board of Directors are reim-
bursed (incl. through an allowance) for all reasonable cash 
expenses that are incurred by them in the discharge of their 
duties, including expenses for traveling to and from Board 
meetings, committee meetings and General Meetings of the 
shareholders of the Company. Payments are made in Swiss 
Francs.

4. Compensation Components for  
Members of the Executive Committee
The actual compensation effectively paid out in a given 
year to members of the Executive Committee depends on 
individual as well as the Company’s performance. Individ-
ual performance is assessed through an annual perfor-
mance management process: Company and individual per-

formance objectives are approved at the beginning of the 
business year and achievements against those objectives 
are assessed after year-end. The performance appraisal is 
the basis for determination of the actual compensation.

The compensation for members of the Executive Commit-
tee consists of a fixed element (annual fixed salary), a vari-
able element (annual variable pay, a long-term incentive and 
a value creation acceleration plan1), and employee benefits. 
Depending on their role, members of the Executive Commit-
tee are currently eligible for the following compensation el-
ements:

(i) annual fixed salary;
(ii) annual variable pay (AVP);
(iii) long-term incentive (LTIP);
(iv) value creation acceleration plan (VCA1); and
(v) other employee benefits.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors may choose to issue 
non-recurring multi-year incentives with steep perfor-
mance hurdles to selected executives in addition to LTIP. To 
date, no such incentive has materialized.

Composition of Fixed and Variable Elements
The DKSH compensation structure is designed to focus 
on pay-for-performance and long-term growth. As such, a 
higher proportion of compensation for the CEO and Mem-
bers of the Executive Committee is variable and dependent 
on the achievement of long-term goals. This is 65% for the 
CEO and 50% on average for the Members of the Executive 
Management, in each case based on the total target remu-
neration. This ensures that compensation is strongly linked 
to the delivery of tangible results that drive growth and sus-
tainability of the business.

Annual Fixed Salary
The annual fixed salary for each member of the Executive 
Committee is determined once a year by the Board of Di-
rectors upon prior recommendation of the Nomination and 
Compensation Committee and after prior consultation with 
the CEO. For this purpose, the market level for the respec-
tive position, individual qualifications and experience, and 

CEO Other 10 members of the Executive Committee

Variable
Components

65%

Fixed
components

35%

Variable
Components

50%

Fixed
components

50%

 Fixed Components Total
 Fixed Compensation
 Allowances & Benefits
 Variable Components Total
 Target Short-Term Incentive
 Granted Long-Term Incentive

Pay Mix

1	 Please refer to VCA explanation on page 41.
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the prevailing local labor market conditions (e.g. for a mem-
ber of the Executive Committee based in Zurich, Swiss labor 
market conditions, for those based in Asia, pan-Asian and 
local labor conditions) are taken into account, together with 
the overall performance assessment of each member of the 
Executive Committee.

Annual Variable Pay (AVP)
For members of the Executive Committee, the annual vari-
able pay is directly linked to the achievement of financial, 
functional, and Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). Financial KPIs are set, 
inter alia, on Business Unit level for Earnings before Inter-
est and Taxes (EBIT) and Net Operating Capital (NOC), and 
on Group level for Return on Net Operating Capital (RONOC, 
twelve months average) and EBIT. The AVP is derived from 
these KPIs following a predefined formula that is regularly 
reviewed by the Nomination and Compensation Committee 
and determined and approved by the Board of Directors. 
The KPIs weightings that define the variable compensation 
for members of the Executive Committee are individually 
set for each member. The performance of each KPI is as-
sessed individually against pre-determined targets and is 
expressed in a target achievement range corresponding 
to a payout percentage from 0% to 200% and then com-
bined according to their assigned KPI weightings. For per-
formance achievements below 70% against target, no pay-
out is made. For achievements above 100% of target, the 
AVP performance factor is based on a 1:2.5 pay-out curve, 
whereby a 1% deviation in realization versus target leads to 
a 2.5% change in pay-out. The pay-out for the AVP is capped 
at a maximum of CHF 5.0 million for the CEO, at a maximum 
of CHF 1.5 million for the CFO and at 200% of target for all 
other members of the Executive Committee.

200%

180%

160%

140%

120%

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 110% 120% 130% 140% 150% 160%

Achievement 





Pa
yo

ut

Multiplier 2.5

For the CEO and the CFO, the Financial KPI includes Profit 
After Tax (PAT) and RONOC achievements on Group level. 
For Business Unit Heads, the Financial KPI includes EBIT 
and NOC days achievements on Business Unit level (55% to 
60%, and 15% to 20%, respectively), and EBIT achievements 
on Group level (20%). For other Function Heads, the Finan-
cial KPI includes 40% to 80% EBIT achievements on Group 
level. All Executive Committee members’ AVP includes ESG 
KPI achievements of 5%. Functional performance is eval-
uated based on operation cost & efficiency KPIs, finan-
cial growth & efficiency KPIs, functional quantitative KPIs, 
and functional qualitative KPIs. For the CEO and CFO, fi-
nancial growth & efficiency KPIs and functional quantita-
tive KPIs make up to 5%, respectively. For Functions Heads, 
operational cost & efficiency KPIs make up to 40%, finan-
cial growth & efficiency KPIs make up to 5%, quantitative 
or qualitative KPIs make up to 15% (although this is only ap-
plicable to 3 Function Head members). ESG KPIs are based 
on the DKSH Sustainability Index Score for the year and in-
cludes relevant ratings gathered from ten external agencies 
with such ratings equally weighted. Sustainability is an inte-
gral part of DKSH and by incorporating this into our short-
term incentive plan, we reinforce our dedication to manag-
ing the environmental, social and economic impact of our 
business activities responsibly.

Annual 
Variable Pay 

("AVP")

Functional  
Performance

Business Unit  
Performance

Group
Performance

Operational Cost & Efficiency KPIs
Financial Growth & Efficiency KPIs
Quantitative KPIs 
Qualitative KPIs2

Financial KPIs

Financial KPIs

ESG KPIs

Functional Achievement

EBIT BU Achievement 
NOC Days BU Achievement

PAT Group Achievement
RONOC Group Achievement
EBIT Group Achievement

ESG Index

–
5%
5%
–

–
–

73%
17%

–

5%

–

55% to 60%
15% to 20%

–
–

20%

5%

up to 40%
up to 5%

up to 15%
up to 15%

–
–

–
–

40% to 80%

5%





 















CEO and CFO1 BU Heads Function Heads

Overview of Performance KPIs and Respective Weighting

1	� Average Weightage.
2	� Function Heads with Qualitative KPIs of 5% and 1 Function Head with Qualitative KPIs of 15%.
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KPIs Threshold Target Cap 1 Achievement % Payout % 2

Group Performance

Group PAT Achievement 91.8% 86.9%

Group RONOC Achievement 100.1% 100.1%

Group EBIT Achievement 92.6% 92.6%

ESG Achievement 103.7% 109.2%

Business Unit Performance

BU EBIT Achievement 76.8% – 92.4% 76.8% – 92.4%

BU NOC Days Achievement 88.0% – 106.2% 88.0% – 115.4%

Functional Performance

Functional Achievement 96.4% – 123.5% 98.2% – 133.3%

2025 Payout 83.0% – 97.8% 83.3% – 99.6%

70% 85% 100% 125% 150% 175% 200%

1	� Pay-out is capped at a maximum of CHF 5.0 million and CHF 1.5 million for the CEO and CFO, respectively, and 200% of target for all other members  
of the Executive Committee.

2	� Payout curve not applicable to all members of the Executive Committee to the same degree.

In the business year 2025, the AVP for individual members 
of the Executive Committee ranged from 10.9% to 33.1% of 
their total compensation. On average, AVP in 2025 for all 
members of the Executive Committee was 22.7% of the total 
compensation. This entrepreneurial approach ensures the 
alignment of the interests of the CEO and the members of 
the Executive Committee to create sustainable value for the 
Company, its shareholders, and its business partners.

For the business year 2025, Group performance which is 
measured by the achievement of PAT, RONOC, EBIT and ESG 
ranged from 91.8% to 103.7%. Business Unit performance 
measured by the achievement of Business Unit specific EBIT 
and NOC Days ranged from 76.8% to 106.2% and Functional 
achievement ranged from 96.4% to 123.5%. Consequently, 
the overall AVP payout percentage for business year 2025 
ranges from 83.3% to 99.6% for members of the Executive 
Committee.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The Long-Term Incentive Plan was introduced in 2015. Its 
purpose is to ensure long-term value creation for the Com-
pany by providing eligible key managers1 of the DKSH Group 
with the possibility to become shareholders of the Com-
pany, to participate in the long-term success and prosper-
ity of the DKSH Group, and to further align long-term inter-
ests of the key managers and the DKSH Group.

Every business year, a number of performance share units 
(PSUs) shall be granted to eligible key managers by, and at 
the full discretion of the Board of Directors; the number of 
PSUs awarded is individually defined for each key manager 
based on the manager’s role, level, performance, potential 
and target variable pay targets. The grant value is derived 
from the manager’s LTIP target, expressed as a percent-
age of base salary, and is then converted into PSUs using a 
pre-defined fair value calculation methodology.

This approach integrates our broader pay-for performance 
philosophy, which emphasizes variable pay as a core com-
ponent of total compensation. It is designed to directly link 
PSU awards to both a manager’s job scope and company 
performance, ensuring that overall variable pay constitutes 
a comparable portion of the overall compensation structure 
for each individual.

In principle, each PSU is an entitlement to a maximum of 1.5 
shares of the Company, provided certain performance tar-
gets are achieved during the three-year performance cycle. 
In case the performance does not reach certain pre-deter-
mined thresholds after three years, no shares of the Com-
pany will vest under the LTIP. In the performance cycle 2025 
to 2027, 130 eligible key managers participate in the LTIP. Of 
the 130 eligible key managers, 67% are Senior Management 
employees and the remaining 33% are other key managers. 
This makes up to 94% of the Senior Management who are el-
igible for LTIP. LTIP grants for the 2025 to 2027 performance 
cycle range from CHF 160,000 to CHF 500,000 for the Exec-
utive Committee members (excluding CEO) and from CHF 
5,000 to CHF 140,000 for all other eligible key managers.

Under the current performance cycle 2025 to 2027, a total 
of 88,530 PSUs were granted to the current members of the 
Executive Committee. These PSUs will vest in March 2028, 
contingent upon the terms of the LTIP Plan Rules includ-
ing the participant’s continued employment and the group 
achievements of EBIT, RONOC and share price development 
during the performance cycle 2025 to 2027.

For PSUs vested in 2025 (performance cycle 2022 to 2024), 
the final vesting multiple was 0.80. The original 42,032 PSUs 

1	� Key managers are typically responsible for the company’s results with potential EBIT contribution or hold/manage responsibilities that are linked to the strategic interest of DKSH.
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granted to the current members of the Executive Commit-
tee converted into 33,629 DKSH shares (42,032 PSUs mul-
tiplied by the vesting multiple of 0.80, rounded up to the 

Overview of LTIP Vested in 2025 and Outstanding PSU Grants for Current Members of the Executive Committee 1

Number of  
PSUs Granted

Total Value at  
Grant 3 (CHF) Vesting Multiple

Number of Shares  
Vesting

Total Value at  
Vesting (CHF)

2022 – 2024 42,032 3,290,000 0.80 33,629 1,873,135

For CEO 15,969 1,250,000 0.80 12,776 711,623

For all other ExCo 26,063 2,040,000 0.80 20,853 1,161,512

2023 – 20252 51,404 3,617,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For CEO 17,764 1,250,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For all other ExCo 33,640 2,367,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

2024 – 2026 71,547 4,025,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For CEO 25,774 1,450,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For all other ExCo 45,773 2,575,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

2025 – 2027 88,530 4,551,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For CEO 28,205 1,450,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

For all other ExCo 60,325 3,101,000 To Be Determined To Be Determined To Be Determined

1	� Current Members of the Executive Committee as of December 31, 2025.
2	� To be vested in March 2026; results will be reported in the 2026 Compensation Report.
3	� Calculated using the fair value at grant.

nearest whole share), amounting to a vesting value of CHF 
1.9 million.

KPIs Threshold Target Cap 1 Achievement %

Group Performance

EBIT Achievement 81.0%

Share Price Achievement 72.0%

RONOC Achievement 88.0%

2025 Payout 80.0%

70% 85% 100% 125% 150%

1	� Pay-out is capped at a maximum of 150% of target. 

Long-Term Incentive  
Plan ("LTIP")

Group
Performance

Capital Efficiency KPI

Profitability KPI

Shareholder Value Creation KPI

RONOC Achievement

EBIT Achievement

Share Price Achievement

20%

60%

20%













Weightage

Overview of Performance KPIs and Respective Weighting (2025– 2027 Performance Cycle)

The Company’s long-term performance plan for the per-
formance cycle 2025 to 2027 is gauged by a 60% weight-
ing linked to the EBIT of DKSH Group, as reported in the 
Company’s last Annual Report prior to the end of the three 
year performance cycle, a 20% weighting linked to the share 
price measured as the average of the 20 days’ closing share 
price prior to the end of the three-year performance cycle, 

and a 20% weighting linked to the RONOC (monthly aver-
age) of the DKSH Group in the business year prior to the 
end of the three-year performance cycle (jointly the Vest-
ing Multiple). At the end of a three-year performance cycle, 
the number of PSUs vesting shall be calculated by multiply-
ing the number of granted PSUs per key manager with the 
Vesting Multiple.
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Furthermore, shares may be allocated only following the 
end of a three-year performance cycle subject to pre-de-
termined performance conditions. If a key manager termi-
nates her/his employment contract during a performance 
cycle or if the employment contract is terminated by the 
employer for cause, the PSUs shall lapse without any com-
pensation.

If the employment contract of a key manager is terminated 
due to a key manager’s disability, death, early retirement, 
retirement, or otherwise by DKSH without cause, or if a 
fixed-term contract expires, the unvested PSUs of the key 
manager shall be adjusted pro rata based on the number 
of days elapsed between the first date of the performance 
cycle and the “date of termination” compared with the full 
performance cycle, rounded up to the nearest full number 
of PSUs. The cancelled PSUs shall be deemed forfeited, with-
out any right for compensation, on the date of termination.

In case of death, disability, or retirement, the PSUs that re-
main outstanding after the pro-rating shall vest on the date 
of termination, and the Vesting Multiple shall be 1.00. In all 
other situations, the PSUs that remain outstanding after 
the pro-rating shall continue to vest pursuant to the origi-
nal vesting schedule and subject to achievement of the per-
formance targets. The LTIP is paid out in the form of DKSH 
shares, unless the participant elects upon grant to have only 
70% of her/his LTIP payout paid out in DKSH shares and 30% 
in cash with the view of offering flexibility for tax purposes.

Value Creation Acceleration Plan
The Value Creation Acceleration Plan (VCA) was introduced 
in 2025 as  an additional long term incentive instrument to 
reward eligible key managers of the DKSH Group for ex-
traordinary performance aimed at creating sustainable, 
profitable growth and enhancing shareholder value beyond 
ambitious budgets

In 2025, 2026 and 2027, one or several incentive awards may 
be granted to eligible key managers at the CEO's sole dis-
cretion, subject to a bonus pool determined by the Board 
of Directors. Awards are allocated as a percentage of the 
key manager's total compensation. As requisite for the pay-
out, certain Group Core EBIT thresholds must be achieved 
for 2025, 2026 and 2027. If such thresholds are achieved, 
the payout amount is calculated by multiplying the incen-
tive award by an achievement multiple based on predefined 
stretch targets for additional Group Core EBIT achieved 
during the performance period (beginning of 2025 to end of 
2027). A minimum 80% achievement of stretch targets is re-
quired to trigger payout, with linear increase between 80% 
and 100%, capped at 100%. Awards vest in DKSH shares, un-
less the key manager elects 70% in shares and 30% in cash.

In 2025, a total of 59 key managers were granted the incen-
tive awards under the VCA. Subject to the terms and con-
ditions of the VCA, these incentive awards will vest on the 
day following completion of the Annual General Meeting 
approving the audited consolidated financial statements of 
DKSH Holding Ltd for the year 2027.

Other Employee Benefits
Other employee benefits are market-specific and struc-
tured in accordance with local practice and local legal re-
quirements. The Group regularly reviews its benefit cover-
age locally and assesses its programs in this area with the 
support of selected vendors.

Two members of the Executive Committee are covered 
by the pension scheme applicable to all employees with a 
Swiss employment contract. In addition, they are covered 
in a top-up pension scheme. Six members of the Executive 
Committee are covered under an expatriate offshore pen-
sion plan and five members of the Executive Committee are 
covered by local pension plans in their markets.

1	� Key managers are typically responsible for the company's results with potential EBIT contribution or hold/manage responsibilities that are linked to the strategic interest of DKSH.
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5. Compensation Board of Directors and Executive Committee
For the year 2025, the members of the Board of Directors received the following compensation:

in CHF thousands Function
Director fees 

(Cash)

Compensation 
for Commit-

tees (Cash)

Allowances/So-
cial Security 

Contribution2  Total3 

Marco Gadola Chairman 7101 0 53  763 

Gabriel Baertschi Member 150 55 7  212 

Dr. Wolfgang Baier Member 150 0 13  163 

Jack Clemons Member 1231 75 40  238 

Adrian T. Keller Member 150 55 7  212 

Andreas W. Keller Member 150 0 7  157 

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler Member 150 75 7  232 

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner (up to March 31, 2025) Member 38 18 2  58 

Suwannee Ratthayabandith (as of April 1, 2025) Member 100 0 24  124 

Eunice Zehnder-Lai Member 1271 50 37  214 

Total 1,848 328 197  2,373 

1	� The amount for director fees reflects the total director fees minus pension fund contributions (BVG) paid by the employer. 
2	� In compliance with law, mandatory employer social security contributions of CHF 31,700, which provide a right to the maximum future insured government benefit, are includ-

ed. The total mandatory amount paid by the Company or its affiliates to Swiss governmental social security systems is CHF 132,700.
3	� All amounts are gross amounts (i.e. before deduction of social security and income tax due by the members).

 
For the year 2024, the members of the Board of Directors received the following compensation:

in CHF thousands Function
Director fees 

(Cash)

Compensation 
for Commit-

tees (Cash)

Allowances/So-
cial Security 

Contribution2  Total3 

Marco Gadola Chairman 7101 0 53  763 

Gabriel Baertschi Member 150 55 7  212 

Dr. Wolfgang Baier Member 150 0 13  163 

Jack Clemons Member 1231 75 40  238 

Adrian T. Keller Member 150 55 7  212 

Andreas W. Keller Member 150 0 7  157 

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler Member 150 75 7  232 

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner Member 150 75 7  232 

Eunice Zehnder-Lai Member 1271 50 37  214 

Total 1,860 385 178  2,423 

1	� The amount for director fees reflects the total director fees minus pension fund contributions (BVG) paid by the employer. 
2	� In compliance with law, mandatory employer social security contributions of CHF 25,200, which provide a right to the maximum future insured government benefit, are includ-

ed. The total mandatory amount paid by the Company or its affiliates to Swiss governmental social security systems is CHF 134,600.
3	� All amounts are gross amounts (i.e. before deduction of social security and income tax due by the members).
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For the year 2025, the members of the Executive Committee received the following compensation:

in CHF thousands Stefan P. Butz CEO1

Other 10 members of 
the Executive Commit-

tee Total2

Fixed Compensation  1,000  3,291  4,291 

Annual Variable Pay (AVP) - Cash  1,155  2,069  3,224 

Long Term Incentive Plans 3  1,450  3,074  4,524 

Allowances  116  1,018  1,134 

Pension/Social security contribution4  289  761  1,050 

Total  4,010  10,213  14,223 

1	� Highest individual total compensation in 2025.
2	� All amounts are gross amounts (i.e. before deduction of social security and income tax due by the executives). They include the remuneration paid to Bijay Singh (01.01 - 

31.12.2025), Thomas Sul  (01.01 - 31.12.2025), Delia Sun (01.03.-31.12.2025) and Jasprit Sahnsi (15.03 - 31.12.2025).
3 	� Include value of performance share units at grant (LTIP) and fair market value of Value Creation Acceleration Plan (VCA).
4 	� In compliance with the Ordinance, mandatory employer social security contributions of CHF 11,500 which provide a right to the maximum future insured government benefit, 

are included. The total mandatory amount paid by the Company or its affiliates to Swiss governmental social security systems is CHF 260,200.

For the year 2024, the members of the Executive Committee received the following compensation:

in CHF thousands Stefan P. Butz CEO1

Other 10 members of 
the Executive Commit-

tee Total2

Fixed Compensation  1,000  3,514  4,514 

Annual Variable Pay (AVP)  1,319  2,419  3,738 

Value of performance share units at grant (LTIP)  1,450  2,486  3,936 

Allowances  114  1,388  1,502 

Pension/Social security contribution3  289  724  1,013 

Total  4,172  10,531  14,703 

1	� Highest individual total compensation in 2024.
2	� All amounts are gross amounts (i.e., before deduction of social security and income tax due by the executives). They include the remuneration paid to Laurent Sigismondi 

(01.01. - 31.10.2024) and Stephen Ferraby (01.01. - 30.11.2024).
3	� In compliance with the Ordinance, mandatory employer social security contributions of CHF 11,600, which provide a right to the maximum future insured government benefit, 

are included. The total mandatory amount paid by the Company or its affiliates to Swiss governmental social security systems is CHF 292,200.
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Compensation to Former Members of the Board of Di-
rectors and the Executive Committee
During 2025, a compensation of CHF 105,804 has been paid 
to a former member of the Executive Committee. Other than 
that, no compensation has been paid to either former mem-
bers of the Board of Directors or former members of the Ex-
ecutive Committee. In 2024, a compensation of CHF 7,507 
has been paid to a former member of the Executive Com-
mittee. Other than that, no compensation has been paid to 
either former members of the Board of Directors or former 
members of the Executive Committee.

Shareholdings by members of the Board of Directors:

Number of shares held 2025 2024

Marco Gadola  18,100  12,800 

Dr. Wolfgang Baier  -  - 

Jack Clemons  1,0001  1,0001 

Adrian T. Keller  60,5261  58,026 

Andreas W. Keller  18,366  18,366 

Prof. Dr. Annette G. Köhler  150  150 

Dr. Hans Christoph Tanner (up to March 31, 2025)  n/a  1,166 

Eunice Zehnder-Lai  1,600  1,600 

Gabriel Baertschi  -  - 

Suwannee Ratthayabandith (as of April 1, 2025)  -  n/a 

Total  99,742  93,108 

1� �Includes shareholdings of close associates.

Shareholdings by members of the Executive Committee:

Number of shares held Shares
Unvested 

PSUs1 2025 2024

Stefan P. Butz  127,015  71,743  198,758  173,396 

Natale Capri  18,429  16,248  34,677  31,423 

Hanno Elbraechter  6,379  7,946  14,325  11,078 

Antoine Mangin  11,033  16,947  27,980  21,789 

Sam Oh  5,082  15,288  20,370  14,783 

Bijay Singh2  28,456  23,231  51,687  42,983 

Thomas Sul2  20,899  10,301  31,200  30,165 

Ido Wallach  6,551  21,369  27,920  19,543 

Chris Ritchie  -    14,320  14,320  7,511 

Jasprit Sahnsi (from March 15, 2025)  -    3,424  3,424  n/a 

Delia Sun (from March 1, 2025)  -    7,290  7,290  n/a 

Total  223,844  208,107  431,951  352,671 

1	� Granted unvested PSUs see description of LTIP.
2	� Ceased to be a Member of the Executive Committee on December 31, 2025.

6. Shareholdings of the Board of Directors 
and the Executive Committee
Participations
The following tables provide information on the ownership 
of registered shares in the Company by the members of the 
Board of Directors and by the members of the Executive 
Committee as of December 31, 2025, and as of December 
31, 2024, respectively.
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Share Ownership Requirements for Members of the 
Executive Committee
Each member of the Executive Committee is required to 
own at least a minimum multiple of his/her annual fixed sal-
ary in DKSH shares or (vested/unvested) DKSH PSUs within 
three years of hire, promotion, or introduction of this re-
quirement, as follows: CEO 300% of annual fixed salary, CFO 
200% of annual fixed salary, all other members of the Execu-
tive Committee 100% of the annual fixed salary. In the event 
of a substantial rise or drop in the share price, the Board of 
Directors may, at its discretion, amend that time period ac-
cordingly. The determination also includes DKSH shares that 
are owned directly or indirectly by persons closely linked 
to a member of the Executive Committee. The Nomination 
and Compensation Committee reviews compliance with the 
share ownership guideline on an annual basis. During 2025 
all members of the Executive Committee fulfilled the share 
ownership requirements.

Stock Ownership Requirements
(multiple of annual fixed salary, in %)

300

200

100

CEO CFO Other Executive
Committee members

7. Additional Fees, Compensation, and Loans
Apart from the benefits listed in this Compensation Report, 
no other compensation was provided in the year under re-
view and also in 2024 – either directly or via consultancy 
companies – to the executive and non-executive members 
of the Board of Directors or to the members of the Execu-
tive Committee. In addition, as of December 31, 2024, and 
as of December 31, 2025, no loans, advances, or credits had 
been granted by the Group or by any of its subsidiaries to 
the members of the Board of Directors, or members of the 
Executive Committee, and their related parties respectively.

8. External Mandates of the Members of the 
Board of Directors and of the Executive Com-
mittee
According to Article 734e CO, all the functions of the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee 
in other companies need to be specified and disclosed in ac-
cordance with Article 626 para. 2 cipher 1 CO. According to § 
24 of the Articles of Association, the members of the Board 
of Directors may hold a maximum of 12 additional mandates 
in comparable functions at other enterprises with an eco-
nomic purpose, whereby mandates in companies which are 
controlled by DKSH or which do control DKSH are not subject 
to this limitation. No member of the Board of Directors may 
hold more than six such mandates in other listed compa-
nies. Mandates in different legal entities that are under joint 
control or same beneficial ownership are deemed as one 
mandate. In the event that the maximum number of man-
dates is exceeded, the respective member of the Board of 
Directors must restore the lawful status within six months.    
Unless specifically indicated, the information regarding ex-
ternal mandates applies for 2024 and 2025.
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Members of the Board with external mandates

Listed Companies Non-listed Companies, Organizations, Institutions, or Foundations 

Marco Gadola •	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Medar-
tis Holding AG

•	 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
Straumann Holding AG

•	 Member of the Board of Directors, Bühler Holding AG
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, AVAG Anlage und Verwaltungs AG
•	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Volpi Group, since September 2025  
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, M+R Spedag Holding AG, since Feb-

ruary 2025
•	 Member, Standortförderungskommission Baselland
•	 Member, Standortförderungskommission Obwalden

Gabriel Baertschi •	 Member of the Board of Directors, MedXCell SA, until December 2025* 
* Continues to be Member of the Board of Directors in Soteria, a group 
company of MedXCell SA

•	 CEO and Chairman of the Corporate Executive Board, Grünenthal GmbH 
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, RealizedCare, until January 2025

Dr. Wolfgang Baier •	 Member of the Board of Directors and CEO, Luxasia Group Pte. Ltd., until 
June 2025

•	 Advisor to the Chairman, Luxasia Group Pte. Ltd., since July 2025
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, L Beauty Pte. Ltd., until June 2025
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, Indosing Distribution Private Limited, 

until June 2025
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, Asia Retail Concepts Pte. Ltd., until 

June 2025
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, LEAP DigiCommerce Pte. Ltd., until 

June 2025
•	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Tapouts Inc

Jack Clemons •	 Member of the Board of Directors and Mem-
ber of the Audit Committee, Banque Canto-
nale Vaudoise

•	 Vice-Chair of the Supervisory Board and 
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee, Nagarro 
SE, since June 2025

•	 International Trustee and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee, 
World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF), until December 2025

•	 Global Trustee and Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee, CIFOR-ICRAF
•	 Advisor to the Board of Directors, Unit8 SA
•	 Fellow, Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (ICAEW)

Adrian T. Keller •	 Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Diethelm Keller Holding Ltd.
•	 Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Diethelm Keller Group Ltd.
•	 Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Bergos AG
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, Tonhalle Gesellschaft
•	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Baur & Cie
•	 Member of the Executive Committee, Swiss American Foundation
•	 Chairman of the Foundation Board, Asia Society Switzerland
•	 Trustee and Co-Chair of the Global Centers Committee, Asia Society 

Global
•	 Member of the Global Leadership Council, Right To Play
•	 Member of the Advisory Board, University of St. Gallen

Andreas W. Keller •	 Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, Di-
ethelm Keller Holding Ltd.

•	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Diethelm Keller Group Ltd.

Prof. Dr. Annette G. 
Köhler

•	 Member of the Supervisory Board and Chair 
of the Finance and Audit Committee, DMG 
Mori AG

•	 Member of the Supervisory Board, Chair of 
the Audit and Cybersecurity Committee and 
Member of the Nomination Committee, GEA 
Group AG

•	 Member of the Supervisory Board, Chair of 
the Audit Committee and Member of the Pre-
sidial Committee, Gerresheimer AG

•	 Member (until March 2025) / Chair (since March 2025) of the Advisory 
Committee, German Auditor Oversight Body 

Suwannee 
Ratthayabandith

•	 Honorable Advisor, CBCE (non-profit organization)

Eunice Zehnder-Lai •	 Vice-Chairperson, Geberit AG
•	 Member of the Board of Directors, Julius Bär 

Group Ltd.

•	 Member of the Board of Trustees, Asia Society Switzerland
•	 President of the Board of Trustees, Friends of Asia Society Switzerland Arts 

& Culture Foundation
•	 Member of the Board of Trustees, Insights for Education
•	 Member of the Board of Trustees, Orpheum Foundation for the Advance-

ment of Young Soloists
•	 Member of the Board, American Swiss Foundation
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Pursuant to § 30 of the Articles of Association, the mem-
bers of the Executive Committee may hold a maximum of 
five additional mandates in comparable functions at other 
enterprises with an economic purpose, whereby mandates 
in companies which are controlled by DKSH or which do 
control DKSH are not subject to this limitation. No member 
of the Executive Committee may hold more than two such 
mandates in other listed companies. Mandates in different 

legal entities that are under joint control or same benefi-
cial ownership, are deemed as one mandate. In the event 
that the maximum number of mandates is exceeded, the re-
spective member of the Executive Committee must restore 
the lawful status within six months. Unless specifically indi-
cated, the information regarding external mandates applies 
for 2024 and 2025.

Members of the Executive Committee with external mandates

Listed companies
Non-listed Companies, Organizations, Institutions, or 
Foundations 

Hanno Elbraechter •	 Member of the Board of Directors, Datacolor AG

Sam Oh •	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, DKSH Holdings (Ma-
laysia) Berhad

•	 Member of the Board of Directors, aCommerce Group 
Public Company Limited

Jasprit Sahnsi •	 Member of the Board, Thrive with mentoring
•	 Board Member, Association of Corporate Counsel Eu-

rope

Ido Wallach •	 Member of the Board of Directors, aCommerce Group 
Public Company Limited

•	 Member of the Board of Directors, aCommerce Group 
Limited
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48 Report of the statutory auditor on the audit of the compensation report

Opinion
We have audited the compensation report of DKSH Holding Ltd. (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 
2025. The audit was limited to the information pursuant to Art. 734a-734f of the Swiss Code of Obligations (CO) in 
paragraphs 5 to 8 of the of the compensation report.

In our opinion, the information pursuant to Art. 734a-734f CO in the compensation report complies with Swiss law 
and the Company’s articles of incorporation.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Standards on Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities 
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the  
compensation report” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the provisions 
of Swiss law and the requirements of the Swiss audit profession, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information  
included in the annual report, but does not include paragraphs 5 to 8 in the compensation report, the consolidated  
financial statements, the stand-alone financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the compensation report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of  
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the compensation report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the audited financial information in 
the compensation report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa-
tion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Board of Directors’ responsibilities for the compensation report
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of a compensation report in accordance with the provisions 
of Swiss law and the Company's articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors  
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a compensation report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. It is also responsible for designing the remuneration system and defining individual  
remuneration packages.

To the General Meeting of
DKSH Holding Ltd., Zurich

Zurich, February 16, 2026

Report of the statutory auditor on the audit of the compensation report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the compensation report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the information pursuant to Art. 734a-734f CO  
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in  
accordance with Swiss law and SA-CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be  
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this compensation report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Swiss law and SA-CH, we exercise professional judgment and maintain profes-
sional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
▶	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the compensation report, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient  
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional  
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

▶	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are  
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

▶	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and  
related disclosures made.

We communicate with the Board of Directors or its relevant committee regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors or its relevant committee with a statement that we have complied with rele-
vant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate 
threats or safeguards applied.

Ernst & Young Ltd

André Schaub				    María del Carmen Picazo González
Licensed audit expert			   FCCA
(Auditor in charge)
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Management’s
Discussion & Analysis 

Summary
In 2025, DKSH once again demonstrated resilience and de-
livered sustainable, profitable growth in an environment 
characterized by geopolitical uncertainties and macroeco-
nomic challenges. Supported by an acceleration of top- and 
bottom-line growth in the second half of the year, net sales 
(at CER, constant exchange rates) grew by 2.9% to CHF 11.1 
billion. Organic growth contributed the most with 2.5%, ac-
quisitions added 0.4%, and exchange rates -3.1% due to the 
appreciation of the Swiss franc. 

Core EBIT increased to CHF 349.0 million (+6.7% at CER), re-
sulting in a Core EBIT margin increase of around 0.1 percent-
age points to 3.2%. This achievement marks the fifth con-
secutive year of Core EBIT margin increases. Free Cash Flow 
stood at CHF 215.5 million, allowing DKSH to fund its accel-
erated M&A strategy and to propose an increased ordinary 
dividend to shareholders.

Alongside organic growth, DKSH continues to focus on M&A 
as a key component of its growth strategy. In 2025, DKSH 
announced nine acquisitions, underscoring its objective to 
accelerate M&A impact.

In line with DKSH’s M&A strategy to prioritize higher-value 
segments, five acquisitions were made in the Scientific Solu-
tions business of Business Unit Technology. With the acqui-
sitions of CLMO (announced in early 2025) in Malaysia and 
Vietnam, Taqkey Science and Quantum Biotech in Taiwan, 
MDxK in South Korea, Eppendorf’s direct presence in Thai-
land, and Biomedic in Vietnam, Business Unit Technology 
acquired five well-established companies with renowned cli-
ent portfolios that together generate annualized net sales 
of around CHF 50.0 million. Through these acquisitions, the 
Business Unit reinforces its position as a leading Scientific 
Solutions provider in Asia and beyond.

Business Unit Performance Materials further expanded its 
footprint in the European and Asian life science and indus-
trial segments with the acquisitions of APN Plastics in Aus-

The management review of 
the Group outlines an 
in-depth analysis of the 
financial year 2025 and 
provides an outlook for 
DKSH’s future.
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tralia and Malaysia, Aston Chemicals in Poland and Great 
Britain, and Invita in Australia and New Zealand. These ac-
quisitions together generate almost CHF 100.0 million in 
annualized net sales and contribute to the Business Unit’s 
ambition to build a leading global position in specialty chem-
icals distribution.

Additionally, Business Unit Consumer Goods acquired Zir-
con Swis Fine Foods, expanding its higher-margin food ser-
vice segment with additional cross-selling and scale-up po-
tential in Asia Pacific.

Acquisitions will continue to be an instrumental part of 
DKSH’s growth strategy as they provide access to attrac-
tive business segments and expand DKSH’s market position 
across its Business Units.

Business Unit Performance
Business Unit Healthcare
Building upon Business Unit Healthcare’s above-GDP 
growth trajectory of recent years, net sales reached CHF 
5.8 billion (+4.6% at CER) and Core EBIT amounted to CHF 
174.2 million (+7.5% at CER), resulting in a Core EBIT margin 
of 3.0% (+10 basis points). This strong result was fueled by 
diversified growth across multiple markets with new clients 
and organic growth of existing clients like Bayer, Eli Lilly, 
and Reckitt, as well as a continued focus on higher-margin 
businesses. Under the new leadership of Patrik Grande, who 
was appointed Head of Business Unit Healthcare, as of Janu-
ary 2026, the Business Unit will accelerate the expansion of 
its strong market position and drive into higher-value seg-
ments and services.

Business Unit Consumer Goods
Business Unit Consumer Goods achieved net sales growth 
of 1.2% (at CER), with a marked acceleration in the sec-
ond half of 2025 (+2.8% at CER). Growth was supported by 
strong performance in Malaysia, Vietnam, and Singapore, 
alongside improved business development (new clients). 
Zircon-Swis Fine Foods, acquired in 2025, delivered results 
ahead of the business plan, further reinforcing the regional 
platform. Core EBIT increased by 5.4% (at CER), resulting 

in an approximate 10 basis point margin expansion. While 
Core EBIT declined by 4.3% in H1 2025, growth recovered 
strongly in H2 2025, with Core EBIT growth of 14.0% and a 
Core EBIT margin of 3.0%, reflecting improved earnings mo-
mentum and operational leverage.

Business Unit Performance Materials
Business Unit Performance Materials delivered net sales 
growth of 1.4% (at CER) in a very challenging market environ-
ment. Asia Pacific, accounting for around 60% of the Busi-
ness Unit’s net sales, showed the strongest performance 
with growth of 5.5% (at CER), clearly outperforming an over-
all declining market. This was underpinned by strong busi-
ness development momentum with key clients, M&A and 
pricing discipline supporting gross margin expansion. Core 
EBIT increased by 1.9% (at CER), with the Core EBIT mar-
gin improving to 8.2%. The Core EBITA margin rose to 8.9%. 
Looking ahead to 2026, a streamlined leadership, cost op-
timization initiatives, and already signed M&A transactions 
provide additional growth momentum.

Business Unit Technology
Against a macroeconomic backdrop characterized by short-
term uncertainty, delayed investment decisions, and in-
creased foreign exchange headwinds, Business Unit Tech-
nology delivered a resilient result around last year’s level. 
The Business Unit made five strategic acquisitions in Sci-
entific Solutions, strengthened the Semiconductor / Elec-
tronics and Precision Machinery business, divested its ca-
bles businesses in Australia and Taiwan, and increased the 
share of consumables and services. The Business Unit will 
continue to capitalize on consolidation opportunities in Asia 
Pacific and other geographies. With a promising business 
development pipeline, the Business Unit is well positioned 
for a stronger 2026.

Net sales 2025 by region in % Net sales 2025 by Business Unit in %

 30.4	 Thailand 
 21.6	 Greater China1

 21.8	 Malaysia/
		  Singapore

 20.6	 Rest of 
		  Asia Pacific

 	 5.6	 Rest of 
		  the World

 	52.6	 Healthcare
 	30.5	 Consumer

		  Goods
 12.3	 Performance

		  Materials
 	 4.6	 Technology

1 Thereof Mainland China 2.2%.
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2	 Excl. Business Unit “Other”.

Other (Non-Business Unit)
Other Core EBIT reached CHF -57.9 million in 2025 from CHF 
-63.0 million in 2024. Other EBIT was CHF -59.9 million and 
includes non-recurring other costs of CHF 2.0 million. These 
figures reflect costs which have not been allocated to the 
Business Units.

Regional Performance
At CER, net sales in Singapore and Malaysia grew high sin-
gle-digit thanks to diversified growth in Business Units 
Healthcare and Consumer Goods with both existing and 
new clients. Net sales in the Greater China region increased 
mid single-digit, while the Rest of Asia Pacific region in-
creased low single-digit. Net sales in Thailand decreased 
slightly, as well as net sales in Rest of the World regions.

Group At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024
Change 

in %
Change 

in %

Net sales 11,070.6 11,093.6  (0.2)  2.9 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT) 349.0 343.1  1.7  6.7 

 
Healthcare At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024
Change 

in %
Change 

in %

Net sales 5,821.7 5,697.2  2.2  4.6 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT) 174.2 167.3  4.1  7.5 

 
Consumer Goods At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024
Change 

in %
Change 

in %

Net sales 3,376.1 3,443.2  (1.9)  1.2 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT) 89.7 89.2  0.6  5.4 

Performance Materials At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024
Change 

in %
Change 

in %

Net sales 1,359.8 1,404.8  (3.2)  1.4 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT) 111.0 114.0  (2.6)  1.9 

Technology At CER1

in CHF millions 2025 2024
Change 

in %
Change 

in %

Net sales 513.5 549.3  (6.5)  (1.4)

Core operating profit (Core EBIT) 32.0 35.6  (10.1)  (3.1)

1	� Constant exchange rates (CER): 2025 figures converted at 2024 exchange rates.

Core EBIT 2025 by Business Unit2 in %

 	42.8	 Healthcare
 	22.0	 Consumer

		  Goods
 27.3	 Performance

		  Materials
 	 7.9	 Technology
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Cash Flow Generation1

Free Cash Flow in 2025 stood at CHF 215.5 million, represent-
ing a solid cash conversion of 95.2% compared to 113.6% in 
2024. As a result, DKSH once more exceeded its mid-term 
cash conversion target of more than 90%.

DKSH operates an asset-light business model, in which dis-
tribution centers are typically leased and most transpor-
tation is outsourced to third parties. Accordingly, capital 
expenditures (Capex) remained at a low level of CHF 38.2 
million (0.3% of net sales) in 2025, similar to the rate in 2024 
(CHF 36.8 million or 0.3% of net sales).

Core return on equity (ROE) increased to 12.4% (12.1% in 
2024), and Core return on net operating capital (RONOC) 
remained at a good level of 19.7% (19.7% in 2024).

Continued Strong Balance Sheet1

In 2025, DKSH used its cash flow primarily to fund acquisi-
tions and to distribute CHF 152.6 million as dividend pay-
ment. Accordingly, the Net cash position by the end of 2025 
stood slightly lower at CHF 25.2 million, compared to a Net 
cash position of CHF 48.1 million at the end of 2024.

Outlook
DKSH is committed to its mid-term roadmap, highlighting 
that its outlook for 2026 aligns with these goals. The com-
pany expects Core EBIT in 2026 to be higher than in 2025. 
This outlook assumes economic growth in Asia Pacific, con-
stant exchange rates, and barring any unforeseen events. 
The Group remains confident about Asia Pacific’s long-term 
potential and is well-positioned to benefit from favorable 
market, industry, and M&A consolidation trends.

1 �For the definition of Alternative Performance Measures, please refer to  
DKSH Annual Report 2025, page 53 onwards.

Definitions and Financial Details
In the Annual Report, media releases, and other commu-
nication to external stakeholders, DKSH uses financial per-
formance measures which are not defined by IFRS Account-
ing Standards. These measures are used by management to 
assess the performance of the Group. Some of these mea-
sures, like Operating profit (EBIT), are defined by a reconcil-
iation in the sections of the Annual Report where they ap-
pear. The other main alternative performance measures 
used by DKSH are defined and/or reconciled below.

Organic Growth
Organic growth is the difference between current and previ-
ous reporting period excluding Net Mergers & Acquisitions 
(Net M&A) and Foreign exchange effects (FX). 

Net Mergers & Acquisitions
Net M&A includes the net impact of the businesses acquired 
and disposed in the current and previous reporting period.

Foreign Exchange Effects
FX is the difference between current period reported figures 
at current versus previous periods exchange rates.
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The reconciliation between Net sales of current and previous reporting periods as per Consolidated  
Income Statement is as follows:

2025 by Business Unit 
in CHF millions 2025 Organic Net M&A FX 2024

Healthcare  5,821.7  256.1  7.5  (139.1)  5,697.2 

Consumer Goods  3,376.1  36.0  4.9  (108.0)  3,443.2 

Performance Materials  1,359.8  (4.6)  24.8  (65.2)  1,404.8 

Technology  513.5  (15.9)  8.1  (28.0)  549.3 

Other/Elimination  (0.5)  0.4  -   -   (0.9) 

Group Total  11,070.6  272.0  45.3  (340.3)  11,093.6 

in % of 2024 2.5 0.4 (3.1)

2024 by Business Unit 
in CHF millions 2024 Organic Net M&A FX 2023

Healthcare  5,697.2  298.6  37.9  (217.5)  5,578.2 

Consumer Goods  3,443.2  33.6  24.3  (130.2)  3,515.5 

Performance Materials  1,404.8  12.4  5.0  (52.3)  1,439.7 

Technology  549.3  (0.3)  37.0  (20.0)  532.6 

Other/Elimination  (0.9)  (0.9)  -   -   -  

Group Total  11,093.6  343.4  104.2  (420.0)  11,066.0 

in % of 2023 3.1 0.9 (3.8)

Core Operating Profit (EBIT) and Core EBITA
The reconciliation from Operating profit (EBIT), reconciled in the Consolidated Income Statement,  
to Core operating profit (EBIT) and Core EBITA are as follows:

2025 by Business Unit 
in CHF millions Healthcare

Consumer 
Goods

Performance 
Materials Technology

Other / Elimi-
nation  Total 

Operating profit (EBIT)  169.1  85.4  108.8  32.0  (59.9)  335.4 

Restructuring costs  -   4.3  2.2  -   0.5  7.0 

Project costs  3.3  -   -   -   0.6  3.9 

Disposal of trademark licenses  1.8  -   -   -   -   1.8 

Share of interest expenses from associates  -   -   -   -   1.3  1.3 

Fair value adjustment related to employee 
benefit expenses  -   -   -   -   (0.4)  (0.4) 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT)  174.2  89.7  111.0  32.0  (57.9)  349.0 

Amortization  5.8  2.2  9.4  2.6  1.1  21.1 

Core EBITA  180.0  91.9  120.4  34.6  (56.8)  370.1 

The restructuring costs are included in Employee benefit expenses in the Consolidated Income State-
ment.

Project costs refer to fees related to a terminated M&A transaction (Healthcare) and internal legal re-
organization (Other) and are included in Other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income State-
ment.

Disposal of trademark licences are included in Other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income 
Statement.

Share of interest expenses from associates is included in Share of profit and loss of associates and joint 
ventures in the Consolidated Income Statement.

The fair value adjustment related to employee benefit expenses is included in Employee benefit ex-
penses in the Consolidated Income Statement.
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2024 by Business Unit 
in CHF millions Healthcare

Consumer 
Goods

Performance 
Materials Technology

Other / Elimi-
nation  Total 

Operating profit (EBIT)  167.1  81.4  114.0  35.6  (64.2)  333.9 

Goodwill impairment and write-offs  -   6.2  -   -   -   6.2 

Fair value adjustment related to employee 
benefit expenses  -   -   -   -   1.2  1.2 

Legal case settlement  0.2  1.6  -   -   -   1.8 

Core operating profit (Core EBIT)  167.3  89.2  114.0  35.6  (63.0)  343.1 

Amortization  6.1  2.6  9.3  2.3  1.4  21.7 

Core EBITA  173.4  91.8  123.3  37.9  (61.6)  364.8 

Goodwill impairment is included in Depreciation, amortization and impairment, write-offs are included 
in Other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement. 

The fair value adjustment related to employee benefit expenses is included in Employee benefit  
expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement.

The legal case settlement is included in Other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Core Operating Profit (EBIT) and Core Operating Profit Before Amortization (EBITA) margin:
Defined as Core operating profit (EBIT) divided by Net sales, respectively Core operating profit before 
amortization (EBITA) divided by Net sales. 

Core Profit After Tax
The reconciliation from Profit after tax in the Consolidated Income Statement, to Core profit after tax 
is as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Profit after tax  210.9  220.9 

Fair value adjustment related to employee benefit expenses  (0.4)  1.2 

Restructuring costs  7.0  -  

Project costs  3.9  -  

Disposal of trademark licenses  1.8  -  

Share of interest expenses from associate  1.3  -  

Goodwill impairment and write-offs  -   6.2 

Legal case settlement  -   1.8 

Expense/(Income) from financial instruments  (1.5)  1.8 

Revaluation of contingent consideration liabilities  (2.8)  (7.9) 

Loss on sale of business  6.2  1.7 

Core profit after tax  226.4  225.7 

Expense/(Income) from financial instruments relates to FVTPL revaluation gains of convertible notes 
issued to an associate and is included in the Financial income and expense in the Consolidated In-
come Statement.

Revaluation of contingent consideration liabilities is included in the Financial income and Financial ex-
pense in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Loss on sale of business is included in the Consolidated Income Statement.
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Free Cash Flow
The reconciliation from Net cash flows from operating activities in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
to Free cash flow is as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Net cash flows from operating activities  320.1  362.9 

Repayment leases  (66.4)  (69.6) 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (35.4)  (33.7) 

Purchase of intangible assets  (2.8)  (7.9) 

Purchase trademark licences  -   4.8 

Free cash flow  215.5  256.5 

Cash Conversion
Cash conversion is calculated as Free cash flow as percentage of Core profit after tax:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Free cash flow  215.5  256.5 

Core profit after tax  226.4  225.7 

Cash conversion 95.2% 113.6%

Net Operating Capital (NOC)
Net operating capital is the capital invested in the business and is calculated from the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024 2023

Total assets  5,499.7  5,848.3  5,471.2 

Financial assets  (40.9)  (43.9)  (39.0) 

Cash and cash equivalents  (538.4)  (609.1)  (687.2) 

Total liabilities  (3,678.6)  (3,968.3)  (3,733.3) 

Current borrowings  19.6  234.5  211.9 

Non-current borrowings  493.6  326.5  468.8 

Net operating capital (NOC)  1,755.0  1,788.0  1,692.4 

Core Return on Net Operating Capital (Core RONOC)
Core return on net operating capital is calculated from the Consolidated Income Statement and the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024 2023

Core Operating profit (Core EBIT)  349.0  343.1  -  

Net operating capital (NOC)  1,755.0  1,788.0  1,692.4 

Average NOC current and previous period  1,771.5  1,740.2  -  

Core return on net operating capital (Core RONOC) 19.7% 19.7%  -  
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Core Return on Equity (Core ROE)
The Core return on equity is calculated from the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Finan-
cial Position as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Core profit after tax  226.4  225.7 

Non-controlling interest  (8.0)  (6.1) 

Core profit attributable to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  218.4  219.6 

Equity attributable to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  1,755.9  1,820.6 

Core return on equity (Core ROE)1 12.4% 12.1%

1	� The return on equity is based on an annualized Core Profit attributed to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd. and annualized Non-controlling interest.

Equity Ratio
The Equity ratio is calculated from the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Total equity  1,821.1  1,880.0 

Total assets  5,499.7  5,848.3 

Equity ratio 33.1% 32.1%

Net Cash
The reconciliation from Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to Net cash is as fol-
lows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Cash and cash equivalents  538.4  609.1 

Current borrowings  (19.6)  (234.5) 

Non-current borrowings  (493.6)  (326.5) 

Net cash  25.2  48.1 
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in CHF millions 1 Notes 2025 2024

Net sales 4  11,070.6  11,093.6 

Other income 5  19.0  15.1 

Goods and materials purchased and consumables used  (9,457.4)  (9,449.5) 

Employee benefit expenses 6  (744.6)  (746.0) 

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 15/17/18  (121.7)  (126.6) 

Other operating expenses 7  (431.9)  (455.9) 

Share of profit and loss of associates and joint ventures 19/20  1.4  3.2 

Operating profit (EBIT)  335.4  333.9 

Financial income 8  11.1  18.6 

Financial expense 8  (44.4)  (37.6) 

Loss on sale of shareholdings 30  (6.2)  (1.7) 

Profit before tax  295.9  313.2 

Income tax expenses 9  (85.0)  (92.3) 

Profit after tax  210.9  220.9 

Attributable to

Shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  202.9  214.8 

Non-controlling interest  8.0  6.1 

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.

Basic earnings per share 28  3.12  3.31 

Diluted earnings per share 28  3.12  3.30 

1	� Except for earnings per share (in CHF).

Consolidated Income Statement
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in CHF millions 2025 2024

Profit after tax  210.9  220.9 

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences  (127.6)  57.5 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  (127.6)  57.5 

Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax of CHF (1.0) million in current and CHF 0.8 
million in prior period  3.3  (1.1) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  3.3  (1.1) 

Other comprehensive income  (124.3)  56.4 

Total comprehensive income  86.6  277.3 

Attributable to

Shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  81.8  266.8 

Non-controlling interest  4.8  10.5 

Consolidated Statement  
of Comprehensive Income
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in CHF millions at December 31 Notes 2025 2024

Cash and cash equivalents 10  538.4  609.1 

Trade receivables 11  1,890.9  1,964.6 

Inventories 13  1,254.1  1,334.6 

Prepaid expenses and contract assets 14  41.3  43.2 

Other receivables 16  370.8  392.7 

Current income tax receivables  35.0  37.3 

Assets classified as held for sale 30  -   9.8 

Current assets  4,130.5  4,391.3 

Intangible assets 15  801.3  819.6 

Property, plant and equipment 17  139.9  147.9 

Right-of-use assets 18  220.8  261.2 

Financial assets 12  40.9  43.9 

Investments in associates and joint ventures 19/20  92.4  105.1 

Retirement benefit assets 26  25.1  21.4 

Deferred tax assets 21  48.8  57.9 

Non-current assets  1,369.2  1,457.0 

Total assets  5,499.7  5,848.3 

Borrowings 22  19.6  234.5 

Lease liabilities 18  50.5  60.0 

Trade payables  2,189.3  2,318.2 

Current income tax liabilities  65.5  75.3 

Other payables, accrued expenses and contract liabilities 23  570.2  615.3 

Current provisions 24  2.5  1.1 

Liabilities classified as held for sale 30  -   1.3 

Current liabilities  2,897.6  3,305.7 

Borrowings 22  493.6  326.5 

Lease liabilities 18  189.3  218.8 

Other non-current liabilities  28.2  49.6 

Deferred tax liabilities 21  35.3  30.5 

Non-current provisions 24  6.9  7.1 

Retirement benefit obligations 26  27.7  30.1 

Non-current liabilities  781.0  662.6 

Total liabilities  3,678.6  3,968.3 

Share capital  6.5  6.5 

Reserves and retained earnings  1,749.4  1,814.1 

Equity attributable to the shareholders of DKSH Holding Ltd.  1,755.9  1,820.6 

Non-controlling interest  65.2  59.4 

Total equity  1,821.1  1,880.0 

Total equity and liabilities  5,499.7  5,848.3 

Consolidated Statement  
of Financial Position
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in CHF millions
Share  

capital
Treasury 

shares1
Currency  

translation
Other  

reserves
Retained 
earnings

Total equity 
attributable 

to 
sharehold-

ers  
of DKSH 

Holding Ltd.

Non-con-
trolling in-

terest 
Total  

equity

As of January 1, 2024  6.5  (6.8)  (486.1)  234.2  1,939.1  1,686.9  51.0  1,737.9 

Profit after tax  -   -   -   -   214.8  214.8  6.1  220.9 

Other comprehensive income  -   -   53.1  -   (1.1)  52.0  4.4  56.4 

Total comprehensive income  -   -   53.1  -   213.7  266.8  10.5  277.3 

Change in ownership  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Purchase of treasury shares  -   (3.1)  -   -   -   (3.1)  -   (3.1) 

Vested share-based payment 
awards  -   5.3  -   -   (5.3)  -   -   -  

Share-based payments  -   -   -   -   3.4  3.4  -   3.4 

Dividend  -   -   -   -   (146.1)  (146.1)  (1.6)  (147.7) 

Changes related to put options 
for non-controlling interests  -   -   -   -   12.7  12.7  (0.5)  12.2 

As of December 31, 2024  6.5  (4.6)  (433.0)  234.2  2,017.5  1,820.6  59.4  1,880.0 

Profit after tax  -   -   -   -   202.9  202.9  8.0  210.9 

Other comprehensive income  -   -   (124.4)  -   3.3  (121.1)  (3.2)  (124.3) 

Total comprehensive income  -   -   (124.4)  -   206.2  81.8  4.8  86.6 

Change in ownership2  -   -   (5.1)  -   2.3  (2.8)  2.8  -  

Purchase of treasury shares  -   (2.9)  -   -   -   (2.9)  -   (2.9) 

Vested share-based payment 
awards  -   3.5  -   -   (3.5)  -   -   -  

Share-based payments  -   -   -   -   3.9  3.9  -   3.9 

Dividend  -   -   -   -   (152.6)  (152.6)  (2.2)  (154.8) 

Changes related to put options 
for non-controlling interests3  -   -   -   -   7.9  7.9  0.4  8.3 

As of December 31, 2025  6.5  (4.0)  (562.5)  234.2  2,081.7  1,755.9  65.2  1,821.1 

1	� Treasury share transactions (Note 27).
2	� Relates to the buy out of non-controlling interest in Wicaksana.
3	� Relates to the acquisition of Terra Firma.

Consolidated Statement  
of Changes in Equity
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in CHF millions Notes 2025 2024

Profit before tax  295.9  313.2 

Non-cash adjustments

Depreciation, amortization and impairment on

Property, plant and equipment 17  31.3  31.2 

Intangible assets 15  21.1  25.4 

Right-of-use assets 18  69.3  70.0 

Share-based payment transaction expense equity settled 29  3.9  3.8 

(Gain)/Loss on sale of tangible assets and intangible assets  (1.5)  1.2 

Financial income 8  (11.1)  (18.6) 

Financial expense 8  44.4  37.6 

Share of profit and loss of associates and joint ventures 19/20  (1.4)  (3.2) 

Loss on sale of shareholdings 30  6.2  1.7 

Change in provisions and other non-current liabilities  (2.8)  (2.4) 

Change in other non-current assets  (0.7)  1.0 

Working capital adjustments

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments  (40.0)  (63.2) 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (6.7)  (133.1) 

Increase in trade and other payables  17.1  193.6 

Interest received  6.4  9.1 

Interest paid  (27.2)  (31.9) 

Income taxes paid  (87.7)  (74.7) 

Dividend received from associates and joint ventures  3.6  2.2 

Net cash flows from operating activities  320.1  362.9 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  4.5  3.9 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (35.4)  (33.7) 

Purchase of intangible assets1  (2.8)  (7.9) 

Purchase of financial assets / loans granted  -   (3.4) 

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash 30  (74.4)  (34.5) 

Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash 30  8.4  -  

Net cash flows from/used in investing activities  (99.7)  (75.6) 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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in CHF millions Notes 2025 2024

Proceeds from current and non-current borrowings  22  871.2  536.6 

Repayment of current and non-current borrowings  22  (914.7)  (677.5) 

Repayment leases  18  (66.4)  (69.6) 

Settlements relating to put options for non-controlling interests2  -   (2.9) 

Dividend paid  27  (152.6)  (146.1) 

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest  (2.2)  (1.6) 

Purchase of treasury shares  27  (2.9)  (3.1) 

Net cash flows from/used in financing activities  (267.6)  (364.2) 

Cash and cash equivalents, as of January 1  609.1  687.2 

Effect of exchange rate changes  (23.5)  (1.2) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (47.2)  (76.9) 

Cash and cash equivalents, as of December 31  538.4  609.1 

1	� Includes payments of  CHF 4.8 million in 2024 relating to the acquisitions of client contracts and trademarks respectively (Note 15).
2	� Relates to the acquisition of Hahn Healthcare in 2021.
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1. General Information
DKSH (the “Group”) is a Market Expansion Services Group 
with a focus on Asia. DKSH helps other companies and 
brands to grow their business in new or existing markets 
with 24,799 specialized staff on a full-time equivalent basis 
(2024: 26,167).

The Group offers any combination of sourcing, market in-
sights, marketing and sales, eCommerce, distribution and 
logistics as well as after-sales services. It provides busi-
ness partners with expertise as well as on-the-ground lo-
gistics based on a comprehensive network of unique size 
and depth.

Business activities are organized into four specialized 
Business Units that mirror the Group’s fields of expertise: 
Healthcare, Consumer Goods, Performance Materials and 
Technology.

DKSH Holding Ltd. is the parent company of DKSH Group. 
Its shares are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange. The address 
of its registered office is Wiesenstrasse 8, 8008 Zurich, Swit-
zerland.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of De-
cember 31, 2025, were approved by the Board of Directors 
on February 16, 2026, and are subject to approval by the Or-
dinary General Meeting of shareholders on March 27, 2026.

2. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the prepara-
tion of these consolidated financial statements are set out 
below:

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in ac-
cordance with and comply with IFRS Accounting Standards. 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual 
basis and under the historical cost convention, as modified 
by the revaluation of certain financial assets, and financial 
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value. All 
amounts are in millions of Swiss francs unless otherwise 
stated.

(a) Consolidation
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control 
is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated 
from the date that control ceases. All intercompany trans-

actions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on trans-
actions between Group companies are eliminated on con-
solidation. The difference of the cost of an acquisition of 
non-controlling interest over the carrying amounts of net 
assets acquired is recognized directly in equity.

A listing of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is set out in 
Note 35. The financial effect of the acquisitions and dispos-
als is shown in Note 30.

Business Combinations and Related Goodwill
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the 
consideration given, including contingent consideration lia-
bilities and the fair value of any previous equity interest. Ac-
quisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value 
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent lia-
bilities acquired is capitalized. If the cost of an acquisition is 
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary ac-
quired, the difference is recognized directly in other income 
in the income statement. 

With regards to business combinations, put option and 
call option agreements relating to the shares held by the 
non-controlling shareholders are entered from time to time. 
If the Group has acquired a present ownership interest as 
part of a business combination, the present value of the re-
demption amount of the put option is recognized as a fi-
nancial liability with any excess over the carrying amount of 
the non-controlling interest recognized as goodwill. In such 
case, the non-controlling interest is deemed to have been ac-
quired at the acquisition date and therefore any excess aris-
ing should follow the accounting treatment as in a business 
combination acquiring full shares of the target company. 
Subsequent value changes of the financial liability classified 
at amortized cost are recognized in the statement of income 
and no earnings are attributed to the non-controlling inter-
est. If the Group has not acquired a present ownership inter-
est as part of a business combination, the non-controlling in-
terest continues to receive an allocation of profit or loss and 
is reclassified as a financial liability at each reporting date as 
if the acquisition took place at that date. Any excess over the 
reclassified carrying amount of the non-controlling interest 
and subsequent value changes of the financial liability are 
recognized directly in retained earnings.

(b) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant 
influence. 

Notes to the Consolidated  
Financial Statements
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the 
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the con-
tractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, 
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities 
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures 
are accounted for by using the equity method. Under the eq-
uity method, the investment in an associate or a joint ven-
ture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of 
the investment is adjusted by recognizing changes in the 
Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture 
since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate 
or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the in-
vestment and is neither amortized nor individually tested 
for impairment.

When there has been a change directly recognized in the eq-
uity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes 
its share of these changes, if applicable, in the statement 
of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting 
from transactions between the Group and the associate or 
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in 
the associate or joint venture.

The Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate or a joint 
venture is reported in operating profit and represents profit 
or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsid-
iaries of the associate or joint venture. The financial state-
ments of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the 
same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, ad-
justments are made to bring the accounting policies in line 
with those of the Group.

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether 
there is objective evidence that the investment in the asso-
ciate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, 
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the dif-
ference between the recoverable amount of the associate 
or joint venture and its carrying value, then recognizes the 
loss as Share of profit and loss of associates and joint ven-
tures in the Consolidated income statement.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint 
control over the joint venture and it becomes a financial 
asset, the Group measures and recognizes any retained in-
vestment at its fair value. Any difference between the car-
rying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of 
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the 

retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recog-
nized in profit or loss.

(c) Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
include financial assets for short-term purposes, derivative 
financial instruments, convertible loans and other equity se-
curities not irrevocably designated as at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (OCI) on initial recognition. 
Such instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the 
date on which they are acquired and are subsequently mea-
sured at fair value. Derivative assets are included in other 
receivables, and derivative liabilities are included in other 
payables and accrued expenses in the statement of financial 
position as they are generally expected to be realized within 
twelve months of the financial reporting date.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are financial 
assets held to collect contractual cash flows comprising 
solely principal and interest payments. This represents the 
most significant measurement category for the Group and 
it comprises cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables 
and other financial receivables and loans. These assets are 
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction cost with 
the exception of trade receivables that are measured at the 
transaction price. 

After initial recognition these financial assets are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
and are subject to impairment using the expected credit 
loss model. The Group applies the simplified approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized 
for trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provi-
sion matrix is based on the Group’s historical credit loss ex-
perience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. These provi-
sions represent the difference between the trade receiv-
ables gross carrying amount and the estimated net collect-
ible amounts. Trade receivables are written off against the 
provision account when there is an official announcement 
of liquidation or bankruptcy confirming that the receivable 
will not be collected.

(d) Derivatives and Hedging
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as for-
ward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with 
foreign currency fluctuations.

Such instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the 
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
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subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses 
arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the 
year are taken to the income statement. Additionally, the 
Group designates some forward contracts as hedges of net 
investments in foreign operations. Gains and losses from 
these contracts are recorded directly in other comprehen-
sive income and will be recycled to the income statement on 
disposal of the underlying investment.

The Group does not enter into any derivatives without un-
derlying exposure.

(e) Foreign Currency Translation
The Group’s financial statements are presented in Swiss 
francs (CHF), which is also the parent’s functional currency. 
Income statements of foreign entities are translated into 
CHF at the average exchange rates for the year, while the 
statements of financial position are translated at the year-
end exchange rates as of December 31. Exchange differ-
ences arising from the translation of the net investment in 
foreign subsidiaries and associated undertakings, and of 
borrowings that hedge such investments, are included in 
other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign en-
tity, the accumulated exchange differences are recognized 
in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the ex-
change rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains 
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transac-
tions and from the translation of monetary assets and lia-
bilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in 
the income statement. Non-monetary items are carried at 
historical cost using the spot rate at acquisition.

(f) Intangible Assets
Expenditure to acquire distribution contracts, patents, 
trademarks and licenses is capitalized and amortized using 
the straight-line method over their useful lives, not exceed-
ing 20 years.

Software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs 
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. 
These costs are amortized using the straight-line method 
over their estimated useful lives (3 to 10 years).

(g) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost. 
The Group applies the straight-line depreciation method.

Such tangible fixed assets are depreciated to their residual 
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings	 25 to 35 years
Machinery/tools, furniture/fixtures	 5 to 10 years
IT/communication	 3 to 5 years
Vehicles	 5 years
 
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter 
of their useful life and the remainder of the non-cancellable 
lease term.

(h) Impairment of Assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and upon 
the occurrence of an indication of impairment. The impair-
ment tests are performed annually at the same time each 
year at the cash-generating unit (CGU) level. The Group de-
fines its CGUs based on the way that it monitors economic 
benefits from the acquired goodwill and intangibles. The 
CGUs are principally represented by the business activities 
of each business unit per respective country. The impair-
ment tests are performed by comparing the carrying value 
of the assets of these CGUs with their recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less 
cost of disposal and value-in-use. Generally, the Group 
starts with a value-in-use calculation based on the future 
projected free cash flows discounted at an appropriate pre-
tax rate of return. The discount rate reflects the current as-
sessment of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the CGUs (essentially country risks).

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of- 
use Assets and Finite-life Intangible Assets
Consideration is given at each financial reporting date de-
termining whether there is any indication of impairment 
of the carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and 
equipment, right-of-use assets and finite-life intangible as-
sets. If any indication exists, an asset’s or CGUs recover-
able amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its re-
coverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater 
of the fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In 
assessing the value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value based on a coun-
try-specific discount of the country where the assets are lo-
cated, adjusted for risks specific to the asset.
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(i) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the 
contract is, or contains, a lease. 

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commence-
ment date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are initially mea-
sured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumu-
lated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for 
certain remeasurement of the lease liabilities. Unless the 
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the 
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized 
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to im-
pairment. 

The Group initially recognizes lease liabilities measured at 
the present value of lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the incremen-
tal borrowing rate where the rate implicit in the lease is not 
readily determinable. The lease payments include fixed pay-
ments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts 
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The 
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and 
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease 
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. 
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index 
or a rate are recognized as expense in the period in which 
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabil-
ities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and re-
duced for the lease payments made. In addition, the car-
rying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the as-
sessment to purchase the underlying asset. 

The Group’s property leases principally relating to ware-
house, office and shop facilities typically include an initial 
non-cancellable period with an option to renew for an addi-
tional fixed period. 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable 
term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an 
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be 
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease, if it reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is 
reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. All rele-
vant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exer-
cise the renewal are considered. After the commencement 
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a sig-
nificant event or change in circumstances that is within its 
control that could affect the exercise.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable 
value. Cost is determined based on the weighted average 
cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress 
includes raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and re-
lated production overheads, but excludes interest expense.

Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less the costs of comple-
tion and selling expenses. A provision is established for slow 
moving and scrap items on stock.

(k) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of trans-
action costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried 
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method; 
any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the redemption value is recognized in the income state-
ment over the period of the borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current unless the liability ma-
tures only after twelve months after the reporting date, or 
the Group has, at the reporting date, the right to defer set-
tlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date.

(l) Share-based Payments
The Group has equity- and partially cash-settled share-
based compensation plans, under which it receives services 
from qualifying employees. The employee services received 
in exchange for the grant of the equity-settled payments are 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted 
and are recognized as expenses, with a corresponding in-
crease in equity over the period that the employees become 
unconditionally entitled to the awards. For the cash-settled 
part of the plans the Group records a liability respectively. 
The fair values of share-based payment plans are measured 
at the grant date using a Monte Carlo simulation and for 
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cash-settled plans at each reporting date until settled.

(m) Employee Benefits
The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension 
plans in various countries.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit 
plans is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, 
the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets 
(excluding net interest), are recognized immediately in the 
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit 
or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
the income statement in subsequent periods.

The Group recognizes the following changes in the net de-
fined benefit obligation under “expenses for defined bene-
fit pension plans” in employee benefit expenses:

•	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past service 
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements

•	 Net interest cost
 
Termination benefits are payable when employment is ter-
minated before the normal retirement date, or whenever 
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange 
for these benefits. Benefits falling due more than twelve 
months after financial reporting date are discounted to 
present value.

Provisions and accruals are also made for the estimated li-
ability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the financial report-
ing date.

(n) Current and Deferred Income Taxes
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receiv-
able on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receiv-
able is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be 
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income 
taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or sub-
stantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, 
on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial  
reporting purposes. Currently enacted or substantively en-
acted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets relating to the carryforward of unused 
tax losses are recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available and against which 
the unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes (WHT) are rec-
ognized for subsidiaries in situations where the income is 
to be paid out as dividend in the foreseeable future and for 
undistributed earnings of unconsolidated companies to the 
extent that these withholding taxes are not expected to be 
refundable or deductible.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes 
relate to the same fiscal authority.

(o) Revenue Recognition
The Group’s sales are generated from the distribution of 
healthcare products and consumer goods, trading of tech-
nology and performance material products and from ren-
dering of services. Revenue is recognized when a contrac-
tual promise to a customer has been fulfilled by transferring 
control over the promised goods or services, principally at 
the time of shipment to or receipt of the products by the cus-
tomer, or over time when the services are performed. The 
Group’s contractual promises generally represent one per-
formance obligation. However, if a contract includes more 
than one performance obligation, the consideration is allo-
cated based on the stand-alone selling prices of the individ-
ual performance obligations. The amount of revenue recog-
nized is based on the expected consideration in exchange 
for the goods and services, taking into account contractu-
ally defined terms (e.g. trade discounts, cash discounts and 
volume rebates) and excluding taxes or duty.

In the Business Units Consumer Goods and Healthcare, the 
Group enters into contracts with its suppliers for the distri-
bution of products. Under these contracts, the Group might 
also provide procurement, marketing, sales, warehousing, 
logistics and collection services. The Group assesses on a 
contract-by-contract basis whether it is acting as a principal 
or agent. In some cases, the Group might not be considered 
the party primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to 
the customer to provide the products, and/or might not 
have inventory risk before specified equipment has been 
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transferred to the customer and/or might not have discre-
tion in establishing the price for the specified equipment. 
In limited cases where the Group is acting as an agent, only 
the margin on sale, the fees or commissions earned are re-
corded in net sales.

(p) Segment Reporting
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for 
allocating resources and assessing performance of the op-
erating segments, has been identified as the Executive Com-
mittee, which makes strategic and key operating decisions. 
No segments have been aggregated to a reporting seg-
ment.

(q) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
New and Amended IFRS Accounting Standards  
as of January 1, 2025
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those 
of the previous financial year, except for the following new 
and amended IFRS Accounting Standards and International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) in-
terpretations and annual improvements that need to be ap-
plied for annual periods beginning January 1, 2025:

Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of exchangeability”: The Effects 
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specifies how an entity 
should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it 
should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeabil-
ity is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of in-
formation that enables users of its financial statements to un-
derstand how the currency not being exchangeable into the 
other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s fi-
nancial performance, financial position and cash flows. The 
amendments did not have a material impact on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied the new standards and inter-
pretations and amendments to existing standards that are 
not yet effective.
IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial State-
ments”: IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements for pre-
sentation within the Consolidated income statement, includ-
ing specified totals and subtotals. Furthermore, entities are 
required to classify all income and expenses within the state-
ment of profit or loss into one of five categories: operating, 
investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued opera-
tions, whereof the first three are new. It also requires dis-
closure of newly defined management-defined performance 
measures, subtotals of income and expenses, and it also in-

cludes new requirements for aggregation and disaggrega-
tion of financial information based on the identified ‘roles’ of 
the primary financial statements (PFS) and the notes. In ad-
dition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 
Statement of Cash Flows, which include changing the start-
ing point for determining cash flows from operations under 
the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to ‘operating profit 
or loss’ and removing the optionality around classification 
of cash flows from dividends and interest. In addition, there 
are consequential amendments to several other standards. 
IFRS 18, and the amendments to the other standards, are ef-
fective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2027, but earlier application is permitted and must be dis-
closed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively. 

The Group is currently working to identify all impacts the 
amendments will have on the primary financial statements 
and notes to the financial statements. The initial expected 
material impacts on Group’s financial statements are, as fol-
lows:

•	 Foreign exchange differences will be classified within the 
same category as the income and expenses from the items 
that gave rise to them.

•	 New disclosure will include: (a) management-defined per-
formance measures; (b) a reconciliation for each line item 
in the statement of profit or loss between the restated 
amounts presented applying IFRS 18 and the amounts pre-
viously presented applying IAS 1.

•	 Interest received and interest paid will be classified in the 
investing activities and financing activities, respectively, in 
the statement of cash flows.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “Amendments to the Clas-
sification and Measurement of Financial Instruments”: In 
May 2024, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 
7, Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Fi-
nancial Instruments (the Amendments). The Amendments 
include a clarification that a financial liability is derecognised 
on the ‘settlement date’ and the introduction of an account-
ing policy choice (if specific conditions are met) to derecog-
nise financial liabilities settled using an electronic payment 
system before the settlement date, additional guidance on 
how the contractual cash flows for financial assets with en-
vironmental, social and corporate governance (ESG) and 
similar features should be assessed, clarifications on what 
constitute ‘non-recourse features’ and what are the charac-
teristics of contractually linked instruments and the intro-
duction of disclosures for financial instruments with con-
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tingent features and additional disclosure requirements 
for equity instruments classified at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (OCI). The Amendments are effec-
tive for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2026 
with early adoption permitted for classification of financial 
assets and related disclosures only. The Group does not an-
ticipate that the amendments will have a material effect on 
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards – “Vol-
ume 11”: In July 2024, the IASB issued nine narrow scope 
amendments as part of its periodic maintenance of IFRS ac-
counting standards. The amendments include clarifications, 
simplifications, corrections or changes to improve consis-
tency in IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards, IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Dis-
closure and its accompanying Guidance on implementing 
IFRS 7, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements and IAS 7 Statements of Cash Flows. 
The amendments will be effective for reporting periods be-
ginning on or after 1 January 2026. Earlier application is per-
mitted. The amendments are not expected to have a mate-
rial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

(r) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the 
use of estimates. Certain areas that are particularly subject 
to evaluation and in which management’s assumptions and 
estimates are of critical importance for the consolidated fi-
nancial statements are mentioned below:

(i) Impairment Testing of Goodwill
The Group tests goodwill are based on value-in-use calcu-
lations. The most critical assumptions for this calculation 
are the estimated cash flows during the forecast period and 
the discount rate applied. Further information is included 
in Note 15.

(ii) Measurement of Fair Value
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the measurement of fair values, for both financial 
and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

Further information about the assumptions made in mea-
suring fair values is included in Note 30 Acquisitions and dis-
posals and Note 33 Financial instruments.
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(s) Exchange Rates Applied
The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are drawn 
up in local currency and translated into Swiss francs for 
consolidation purposes. The following most significant ex-
change rates were applied:

Statement of 
financial 
position 

year-end rates

Statement of 
financial 
position 

year-end rates

Income 
statement 

average rates

Income 
statement 

average rates

Currency 2025 2024 2025 2024

1 AUD 0.529 0.570 0.538 0.583

1 CNY 0.113 0.122 0.116 0.122

1 EUR 0.929 0.939 0.939 0.956

1 GBP 1.066 1.128 1.095 1.125

1 HKD 0.101 0.112 0.107 0.113

100 JPY 0.506 0.567 0.555 0.583

100 KRW 0.055 0.063 0.058 0.065

100 MMK 0.022 0.024 0.023 0.025

1 MYR 0.195 0.198 0.194 0.191

1 PHP 0.013 0.015 0.014 0.015

1 SGD 0.615 0.655 0.636 0.659

1 THB 0.025 0.026 0.025 0.025

1 TWD 0.025 0.027 0.027 0.027

1 USD 0.789 0.867 0.831 0.879

1,000 VND 0.030 0.034 0.032 0.035
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 3. Segment Information

2025 by Business Unit

in CHF millions Healthcare
Consumer 

Goods
Performance 

Materials Technology
Other / Elimi-

nation  Total 

Sale of goods  5,685.8  3,231.5  1,352.5  469.5  -   10,739.3 

Other services  135.9  144.6  7.3  44.0  (0.5)  331.3 

Net sales  5,821.7  3,376.1  1,359.8  513.5  (0.5)  11,070.6 

Goods and materials purchased 
and consumables used  5,248.3  2,804.0  1,044.8  360.3  -   9,457.4 

Operating profit (EBIT)  169.1  85.4  108.8  32.0  (59.9)  335.4 

Additions of property, plant and 
equipment  11.9  7.8  4.4  7.3  4.0  35.4 

Additions of intangible assets  1.2  0.6  0.8  -   0.2  2.8 

Depreciation, amortization and  
impairment  35.8  39.7  17.4  10.8  18.0  121.7 

of which right-of-use assets  18.4  30.8  4.9  3.0  12.2  69.3 

Investments in associates and  
joint ventures  -   -   0.2  11.1  81.1  92.4 

Share of profit and loss of  
associates and joint ventures  -   -   (0.1)  4.9  (3.4)  1.4 

Number of employees  
(full-time equivalents)  7,502  11,713  1,804  1,759  2,021  24,799 

2025 country information

in CHF millions
Net sales 

third parties1
Non-current 

assets2

Thailand  3,358.6  150.3 

Malaysia  1,748.9  127.9 

Taiwan  1,250.8  63.4 

Hong Kong  828.5  9.2 

Australia  328.2  148.0 

Switzerland (domicile)  136.8  139.5 

United States  120.2  210.7 

Other countries  3,298.6  405.4 

Group Total  11,070.6  1,254.4 

1	� Net sales of an individual country are allocated based on the entities located in the respective country.
2	� Non-current assets exclude financial assets, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit assets.
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2024 by Business Unit

in CHF millions Healthcare
Consumer 

Goods
Performance 

Materials Technology
Other /  

Elimination  Total 

Sale of goods  5,554.1  3,293.9  1,399.0  507.0  -   10,754.0 

Other services  143.1  149.3  5.8  42.3  (0.9)  339.6 

Net sales  5,697.2  3,443.2  1,404.8  549.3  (0.9)  11,093.6 

Goods and materials purchased 
and consumables used  5,134.0  2,838.7  1,086.3  390.5  -   9,449.5 

Operating profit (EBIT)  167.1  81.4  114.0  35.6  (64.2)  333.9 

Additions of property, plant and 
equipment  9.4  8.4  2.5  5.9  7.5  33.7 

Additions of intangible assets  6.3  0.5  1.8  -   0.1  8.7 

Depreciation, amortization and  
impairment  36.8  45.4  16.8  10.0  17.6  126.6 

of which impairment  -   3.7  -   -   -   3.7 

of which right-of-use assets  18.5  32.3  4.4  3.1  11.7  70.0 

Investments in associates and  
joint ventures  -   -   0.4  10.8  93.9  105.1 

Share of profit and loss of  
associates and joint ventures  -   -   -   5.3  (2.1)  3.2 

Number of employees 
 (full-time equivalents)  7,850  12,509  1,696  1,806  2,306  26,167 

2024 country information

in CHF millions
Net sales 

third parties1
Non-current 

assets2

Thailand  3,389.9  154.0 

Malaysia  1,589.3  126.3 

Taiwan  1,178.2  70.3 

Hong Kong  851.1  23.1 

Australia  385.6  144.1 

Switzerland (domicile)  145.6  142.1 

United States  133.5  247.8 

Other countries  3,420.4  426.1 

Group Total  11,093.6  1,333.8 

1	� Net sales of an individual country are allocated based on the entities located in the respective country.
2	� Non-current assets exclude financial assets, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit assets.
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The Group is organized on a worldwide basis into four Business Units that reflect the operating seg-
ments according to IFRS 8:

DKSH Business Unit Healthcare is the leading Market Expansion Services provider for healthcare com-
panies seeking to grow their business in Asia. Custom-made offerings comprise registration, regula-
tory services, market entry studies, importation, customs clearance, marketing and sales, physical dis-
tribution, invoicing and cash collection. Products available through DKSH Healthcare include ethical 
pharmaceuticals, consumer health and over-the-counter (OTC) products, as well as medical devices.

DKSH Business Unit Consumer Goods is Asia’s leading Market Expansion Services provider with a focus 
on fast moving consumer goods, food services, luxury goods and lifestyle products, as well as hair and 
skin cosmetics. The Business Unit’s comprehensive Market Expansion Services extend from product 
feasibility studies and registration to importation, customs clearance, marketing and merchandising, 
sales, warehousing, physical distribution, invoicing, cash collection and after-sales services.

DKSH Business Unit Performance Materials is a leading specialty chemicals distributor and provider 
of Market Expansion Services for performance materials, covering Europe, North America and the 
whole of Asia Pacific. The Business Unit sources, markets and distributes a wide range of specialty 
chemicals and ingredients for pharmaceutical, personal care, food & beverage, as well as various in-
dustrial applications.

DKSH Business Unit Technology is the leading provider of Market Expansion Services covering a broad 
range of capital investment goods and analytical instruments. The Business Unit offers total solutions 
in the areas of infrastructure, industrial materials and supplies, precision and textile machinery, semi-
conductors, photovoltaic and electronics, agriculture, hospitality as well as specialized industrial ap-
plications.

“Other” includes Corporate Center functions, including management, finance, administration and IT. 
Some costs of “Other” are charged to the Business Units, and the allocation is based on specific allo-
cation keys set up in management service agreements between the corporate entities and the subsid-
iaries. The unallocated costs are reflected in the operating result (EBIT) in “Other.”

There are generally very limited transactions between the Business Units and between the regions. 
The majority of costs relating to a given Business Unit/region are directly incurred by the segment/
region to which they relate. Country central costs such as administration and IT are allocated to the 
Business Units. 
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4. Net Sales
Net sales by category:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Sale of goods  10,739.3  10,754.0 

Other services  331.3  339.6 

Net sales  11,070.6  11,093.6 

5. Other Income
In 2025, Other Income amounts to CHF 19.0 million (2024: CHF 15.1 million) and includes transactions 
which are not directly related to the Group’s sale of products or rendering of services (e.g. supplier 
compensation, government grants, gain on sale of tangible and intangible assets etc.). 

 

6. Employee Benefit Expenses

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Salaries and bonuses  529.4  535.0 

Temporary staff  42.4  44.2 

Sales and other commissions  42.1  41.5 

Social security costs  36.5  34.6 

Expenses for defined contribution pension plans  23.6  24.1 

Staff welfare  19.1  17.9 

Staff health insurance and medical expenses  13.4  11.8 

Recruitment, staff training and retrenchment  12.9  9.3 

Transport, commuting and housing  12.5  13.0 

Expenses for defined benefit pension plans (Note 26)  6.8  6.4 

Other personnel expenses  5.9  8.2 

Total employee benefit expenses  744.6  746.0 

Number of employees (full-time equivalents)  24,799  26,167 
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7. Other Operating Expenses

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Logistics and distribution costs  164.5  178.1 

Selling costs  83.1  89.2 

Information technology  39.2  36.3 

Travel and entertainment  35.8  38.6 

Consulting, legal and audit services  20.4  18.6 

Maintenance, facility services and office supplies  16.9  17.8 

Utilities  13.3  14.5 

Insurance and bank charges  12.1  12.4 

Expense for short-term leases, low-value assets and variable lease payments  10.9  12.2 

Communication  10.7  11.5 

Other1  25.0  26.7 

Total other operating expenses  431.9  455.9 

1	� Includes a loss on disposal of CHF 1.6 million for trademark licences.

8. Net Finance Result

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Interest income on bank deposits  7.9  9.1 

Income from revaluation of contingent consideration liabilities  3.2  9.5 

Financial income  11.1  18.6 

Net foreign exchange result  (15.6)  (2.0) 

Interest expenses on bank borrowings  (15.9)  (20.3) 

Interest expenses on lease liabilities  (11.5)  (11.9) 

Expense from financial instruments 1  -   (1.8) 

Expense from revaluation of contingent consideration liabilities  (1.4)  (1.6) 

Financial expenses  (44.4)  (37.6) 

Net finance result  (33.3)  (19.0) 

1	� Fair value change of convertible loans (Note 33).
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9. Income Tax Expenses
The Group is obliged to pay income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required 
in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. For any uncertain position, a current or de-
ferred tax liability or receivable is recognized based on detailed assessment of the tax risk. Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such dif-
ferences will impact the current income tax and deferred tax liabilities in the period in which such de-
termination is made.

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Current income tax  81.6  90.7 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years  1.1  1.6 

Deferred tax  2.3  -  

Total income tax expenses  85.0  92.3 

The income tax expense of the Group differs from the amount that would arise applying the applicable 
income tax rate as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Profit before tax  295.9  313.2 

Applicable income tax based on 21.1% (2024: 21.7%)  62.4  67.5 

Tax effects relating to prior years  2.1  1.6 

Impact of tax rate changes  -   (1.6) 

Tax effects of WHT/foreign tax not recoverable  5.6  14.8 

Tax effect on non-deductible expenses  11.9  7.6 

Tax effect of income that is not taxable  (3.5)  (3.6) 

Tax effects related to tax losses and tax credits  4.5  5.0 

Others  2.0  1.0 

Total income tax expenses  85.0  92.3 

The applicable income tax rate is the weighted average of the tax rates of the respective individual tax 
jurisdictions. Due to the different weights of the results of the Group companies and respective local 
tax rates, the calculated income tax rate has changed.

As a multinational group with a turnover exceeding EUR 750.0 million, DKSH is in scope of the Pillar 
Two Model Rules (BEPS) that were issued by the OECD. The Pillar Two Model Rules were brought into 
law by a significant number of jurisdictions in 2023 and took effect beginning 2024. Switzerland imple-
mented Pillar Two by means of a constitutional amendment and a related Ordinance that is applicable 
starting January 1, 2024. In 2024, Switzerland only levied a Qualified Domestic Minimum Top-up Tax 
(QDMTT) whilst the application of the Income Inclusion Rule (IIR) is applicable from January 1, 2025.

The Group assessed its exposure to BEPS Pillar 2 top-up taxes and prepared an analysis of the appli-
cation of the Transitional Safe Harbor Rules based on qualified Country-by-Country Reporting Data. 
Based on this assessment, vast majority of the relevant jurisdictions in which the Group operates ex-
ceeds 15%. There are a limited number of jurisdictions where the transitional safe harbor relief is not 
fulfilled. The related top-up taxes in the jurisdictions where the anticipated Pillar Two effective rate 
falls below 15% are not material for the Group.
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The Group has applied the temporary mandatory relief from deferred tax accounting for the impacts 
of the top-up tax and accounts for it as current tax when it is incurred.

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Cash at bank and on hand  488.3  485.7 

Short-term deposits  50.1  123.4 

Total cash and cash equivalents  538.4  609.1 

11. Trade Receivables
The aging of trade receivables is as follows:

in CHF millions Not overdue

Up to 3 
months  
overdue

Between 3 
and 6 months 

overdue

Between 6 
and 9 months 

overdue

Between 9 
and 12 

months  
overdue

More than 12 
months  
overdue  Total 

As of December 31, 2025

Loss rate 0.0% 1.0% 7.8% 23.7% 57.1% 100.0%

Total trade receivable - gross  1,734.4  135.7  19.2  5.9  1.4  10.0  1,906.6 

Loss allowance  (0.7)  (1.3)  (1.5)  (1.4)  (0.8)  (10.0)  (15.7) 

Total trade receivable - net  1,890.9 

As of December 31, 2024

Loss rate 0.1% 1.0% 7.5% 20.6% 64.3% 100.0%

Total trade receivable - gross  1,813.6  125.9  17.3  13.1  2.8  8.0  1,980.7 

Loss allowance  (1.0)  (1.3)  (1.3)  (2.7)  (1.8)  (8.0)  (16.1) 

Total trade receivable - net  1,964.6 

Movements on the Group loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  16.1  13.0 

Loss allowance  4.6  8.0 

Receivables written off  (3.9)  (5.7) 

Exchange differences  (1.1)  0.8 

As of December 31  15.7  16.1 

The expense for loss allowance is included in selling costs as part of other operating expenses.
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12. Financial Assets

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Deposits to third parties  19.0  20.7 

Convertible loan at fair value through profit and loss  14.3  16.4 

Loans to associates  7.6  6.8 

Total financial assets  40.9  43.9 

The convertible loan and the loans to associates relate to the Group's associate aCommerce (Note 19).

Details of financial assets at fair value are as follows:

in CHF millions  Total 

As of January 1, 2024  17.0 

Fair value change  (1.8) 

Exchange differences  1.2 

As of December 31, 2024  16.4 

Fair value change  -  

Exchange differences  (2.1) 

As of December 31, 2025  14.3 

The fair value of the convertible loan as per December 31, 2025, is based on a waterfall analysis that 
allocates enterprise value to stakeholders based on capital structure and priority of claims (Note 33).
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13. Inventories

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Raw materials  21.1  21.7 

Work in progress  3.9  4.6 

Finished goods  1,262.7  1,347.5 

Total inventories - gross  1,287.7  1,373.8 

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock  (33.6)  (39.2) 

Total inventories  1,254.1  1,334.6 

Details of change in impairment for inventories:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  39.2  42.9 

Increase in provision for inventories  22.0  16.5 

Unused amount reversed  (15.7)  (14.9) 

Utilized during the year  (8.8)  (6.2) 

Exchange differences  (3.1)  0.9 

As of December 31  33.6  39.2 

14. Prepaid Expenses and Contract Assets

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Prepaid expenses  18.5  19.4 

Contract assets  22.8  23.8 

Total prepaid expenses and contract assets  41.3  43.2 
 

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for projects completed but not 
billed due to the final acceptance of the customer being outstanding. There was no impact on con-
tract assets as a result of acquisitions. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the 
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group is entitled to issue an invoice to the 
customer.
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15. Intangible Assets

in CHF millions Trademarks
Client con-

tracts
Software,  

Others 1 Goodwill Total

Cost

As of January 1, 2024  112.9  197.0  70.5  566.0  946.4 

Additions  -   5.7  3.0  -   8.7 

Reclassifications2  -   -   -   (2.4)  (2.4) 

Acquisitions  -   10.2  -   15.1  25.3 

Disposals  (0.1)  -   (3.8)  (1.4)  (5.3) 

Exchange differences  2.9  8.7  4.6  19.5  35.7 

As of December 31, 2024  115.7  221.6  74.3  596.8  1,008.4 

Accumulated amortization and impairments

As of January 1, 2024  (44.3)  (59.4)  (50.9)  (6.2)  (160.8) 

Amortization  (4.3)  (14.0)  (3.4)  -   (21.7) 

Impairments  -   -   -   (3.7)  (3.7) 

Disposals  -   -   3.7  -   3.7 

Exchange differences  (0.5)  (2.3)  (3.5)  -   (6.3) 

As of December 31, 2024  (49.1)  (75.7)  (54.1)  (9.9)  (188.8) 

Net book value

As of January 1, 2024  68.6  137.6  19.6  559.8  785.6 

As of December 31, 2024  66.6  145.9  20.2  586.9  819.6 

Cost

As of January 1, 2025  115.7  221.6  74.3  596.8  1,008.4 

Additions  -   1.2  1.6  -   2.8 

Reclassifications  -   0.6  (0.6)  -   -  

Acquisitions3  -   27.1  -   37.3  64.4 

Disposals  (0.2)  (0.1)  (8.6)  -   (8.9) 

Exchange differences  (5.4)  (18.9)  (4.5)  (40.0)  (68.8) 

As of December 31, 2025  110.1  231.5  62.2  594.1  997.9 

Accumulated amortization and impairments

As of January 1, 2025  (49.1)  (75.7)  (54.1)  (9.9)  (188.8) 

Amortization  (3.9)  (14.3)  (2.9)  -   (21.1) 

Disposals  -   -   2.0  -   2.0 

Exchange differences  1.0  5.5  3.4  1.4  11.3 

As of December 31, 2025  (52.0)  (84.5)  (51.6)  (8.5)  (196.6) 

Net book value

As of January 1, 2025  66.6  145.9  20.2  586.9  819.6 

As of December 31, 2025  58.1  147.0  10.6  585.6  801.3 

1	� Principally relates to software and prepayments for intangibles and intangibles under development.
2	� Reclassifications to Assets classified as held for sale. 
3	� Includes Goodwill of CHF 2.4 million relating to the finalisation of the purchase price allocation of CLMO acquired in 2024.
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The Group has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as of December 31, 2025, and Decem-
ber 31, 2024, other than Goodwill.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calcula-
tions use free cash flow projections for the next five years based on financial budgets and economic 
growth rates approved by the Executive Committee.

The following key assumptions for value-in-use calculations were applied in 2025:

in CHF millions
Year of  

acquisition
Goodwill 
amount

Pre-tax  
discount rates Growth rates

Cash-generating unit

Performance Materials  317.0 

North America 2022  143.1 10.8% 2.2%

Europe1 2002-2025  67.7 9.5% 1.4%

Refarmed Group, Switzerland 2022  47.2 7.0% 0.7%

Australia 2011-2025  40.6 12.7% 2.5%

Japan 2002  11.6 9.4% 2.0%

Malaysia 2002-2025  6.8 11.0% 2.0%

Consumer Goods  117.6 

Malaysia 2019  66.8 11.1% 2.0%

Australia 2020-2021  16.4 12.6% 2.5%

Singapore 2019-2025  13.8 8.5% 2.0%

Crossmark, Australia 2020  10.4 12.6% 2.5%

New Zealand 2011-2023  10.2 12.8% 2.0%

Technology  81.6 

Malaysia, Singapore 2002-2022  31.9 8.6% 2.0%

Thailand 2019  12.8 11.1% 1.8%

Australia, New Zealand 2012-2023  10.6 12.6% 2.5%

Korea 2021-2025  9.4 10.3% 2.0%

China, Hong Kong 2002  6.7 9.4% 2.0%

Indonesia 2013  5.1 14.3% 2.5%

Taiwan 2025  5.1 0.0% 1.5%

Healthcare  50.3 

Australia 2021-2023  45.1 12.1% 2.5%

Cambodia 2017  5.2 18.0% 3.0%

Others  19.1 

Other CGUs 2002-2024  19.1 8.3-14.7% 1.5-4.0%

Total  585.6 

1	� Pre-tax discount and Growth rates are weighted average of Denmark, France, Germany, Great Britain, Italy, Netherlands, Spain and Switzerland.
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Based on the annual goodwill impairment test, no impairment was recognized in 2025.

The outcome of impairment testing is sensitive to variations in estimates and assumptions. Variations in es-
timates and assumptions have the following effect on the recoverable amount calculations (all else equal):
•	 For North America (Performance Materials), the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount 

by CHF 11.0 million using a pre-tax discount rate of 10.8%. The recoverable amount would be equal 
to the carrying amount if the discount rate increased by 0.04%. For Australia (Healthcare), the re-
coverable amount exceeds the carrying amount by CHF 3.8 million using a pre-tax discount rate of 
12.1%. The recoverable amount would be equal to the carrying amount if the discount rate increased 
by 0.4%.

•	 Lowered revenue projections for 2026 and thereafter by 10% would result in an impairment of CHF 
1.3 million of which CHF 0.9 million relates to North America (Performance Materials) and CHF 0.4 
million to Australia (Healthcare).

•	 Reduced projections of EBIT by 5% during forecast period 2026–2030 would not result in any impair-
ment on the recoverable amount. 
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The following key assumptions for value-in-use calculations were applied in 2024:

in CHF millions
Year of acquisi-

tion
Goodwill 
amount

Pre-tax dis-
count rates Growth rates

Cash-generating unit

Performance Materials  318.6 

North America 2022  163.8 13.3% 2.1%

Europe1 2002-2022  66.8 12.2% 1.6%

Refarmed Group 2022  47.2 9.9% 1.2%

Australia 2011-2022  29.2 15.8% 2.5%

Japan 2002  11.6 11.8% 2.0%

Consumer Goods  115.5 

Malaysia 2019  69.1 14.7% 2.1%

Australia 2020-2021  17.5 15.3% 2.5%

New Zealand 2011-2023  11.4 15.9% 2.0%

Crossmark 2020  11.1 15.3% 2.5%

Singapore 2019  6.4 12.2% 2.0%

Technology  74.9 

Malaysia, Singapore 2002-2024  31.1 13.5% 2.1%

Thailand 2019  12.9 12.5% 2.0%

Australia, New Zealand 2012-2023  11.2 15.7% 2.5%

Korea 2021  7.4 13.5% 2.0%

China, Hong Kong 2002  6.7 12.2% 2.0%

Indonesia 2013  5.6 17.4% 2.5%

Healthcare  53.8 

Australia 2021-2023  47.9 15.0% 2.5%

Cambodia 2017  5.9 21.2% 3.0%

Others  24.1 

Other CGUs 2002-2024  24.1 11.0-18.1% 1.5-4.0%

Total  586.9 

1	� Pre-tax discount and Growth rates are weighted average of Denmark, France, Germany, Great Britain, Italy, Netherlands, Spain and Switzerland.
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The Group has recalculated the recoverable amount of its cash-generating units (CGUs). A full impairment of goodwill re-
sulted in a loss of CHF 3.7 million in Indonesia (previously Wicaksana) in the Business Unit Consumer Goods (2023 a partial 
impairment of goodwill was recognized). The impairment test resulted in a recoverable amount for Indonesia of CHF 23.5 
million (2023: CHF 31.1 million) applying a discount rate of 16.1% (2023: 16.8%) respectively.

The outcome of impairment testing is sensitive to variations in estimates and assumptions. Variations in estimates and assump-
tions have the following effect on the recoverable amount calculations (all else equal):
•	 A 1% point increase in the discount rate would result in an impairment of CHF 7.5 million of which CHF 6.3 million relates 

to Indonesia (Consumer Goods) and CHF 1.2 million to Australia (Consumer Goods).
•	 Lowered revenue projections for 2025 and thereafter by 10% would result in an impairment of CHF 7.1 million of which 

CHF 5.8 million relates to Indonesia (Consumer Goods) and CHF 1.3 million to Australia (Consumer Goods).
•	 Reduced projections of EBIT by 5% during forecast period 2025–2029 would result in an impairment of CHF 5.4 million of 

which CHF 5.1 million relates to Indonesia (Consumer Goods) and CHF 0.3 million to Australia (Consumer Goods).

16. Other Receivables

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Supplier accounts receivables  257.5  246.6 

VAT and other taxes receivables  45.0  66.9 

Advances and deposits  53.7  65.1 

Derivative financial instruments  5.3  8.1 

Other  9.3  6.0 

Total other receivables  370.8  392.7 
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17. Property, Plant, and Equipment

in CHF millions

Land, 
buildings/ 
leasehold 1

Machinery/ 
tools

Furniture/ 
fixtures

IT/ 
comm- 

unication Vehicles

Assets 
under 

construction Total

Cost

As of January 1, 2024  119.3  73.2  79.3  51.1  6.4  3.1  332.4 

Additions  4.2  10.6  4.8  6.5  0.5  7.1  33.7 

Reclassifications2  3.6  0.3  1.1  0.3  -   (5.9)  (0.6) 

Acquisitions  -   0.4  0.2  -   0.1  0.4  1.1 

Disposals  (7.3)  (8.9)  (12.0)  (4.8)  (1.1)  -   (34.1) 

Exchange differences  2.5  3.5  4.8  3.1  0.3  0.1  14.3 

As of December 31, 2024  122.3  79.1  78.2  56.2  6.2  4.8  346.8 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments

As of January 1, 2024  (37.0)  (47.1)  (58.8)  (40.9)  (5.0)  -   (188.8) 

Depreciation  (8.7)  (8.9)  (7.0)  (6.1)  (0.5)  -   (31.2) 

Reclassification2  -   0.2  0.2  -   0.1  -   0.5 

Disposals  5.3  7.2  11.5  4.8  0.8  -   29.6 

Exchange differences  0.1  (2.4)  (3.8)  (2.6)  (0.3)  -   (9.0) 

As of December 31, 2024  (40.3)  (51.0)  (57.9)  (44.8)  (4.9)  -   (198.9) 

Net book value

As of January 1, 2024  82.3  26.1  20.5  10.2  1.4  3.1  143.6 

As of December 31, 2024  82.0  28.1  20.3  11.4  1.3  4.8  147.9 

Cost

As of January 1, 2025  122.3  79.1  78.2  56.2  6.2  4.8  346.8 

Additions  1.9  11.4  3.3  4.9  0.4  13.5  35.4 

Reclassifications  5.6  2.8  2.1  1.1  0.2  (11.8)  -  

Acquisitions  2.5  0.5  0.2  -   0.7  -   3.9 

Disposals  (6.4)  (5.4)  (6.6)  (5.0)  (2.0)  -   (25.4) 

Exchange differences  (16.0)  (8.5)  (7.8)  (3.7)  (1.1)  (0.4)  (37.5) 

As of December 31, 2025  109.9  79.9  69.4  53.5  4.4  6.1  323.2 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments

As of January 1, 2025  (40.3)  (51.0)  (57.9)  (44.8)  (4.9)  -   (198.9) 

Depreciation  (8.8)  (9.1)  (6.8)  (6.1)  (0.5)  -   (31.3) 

Disposals  4.7  4.4  6.4  4.9  2.1  -   22.5 

Exchange differences  8.0  6.1  6.4  3.3  0.6  -   24.4 

As of December 31, 2025  (36.4)  (49.6)  (51.9)  (42.7)  (2.7)  -   (183.3) 

Net book value

As of January 1, 2025  82.0  28.1  20.3  11.4  1.3  4.8  147.9 

As of December 31, 2025  73.5  30.3  17.5  10.8  1.7  6.1  139.9 

1	� Includes CHF 21.6 million as per December 31, 2025 (2024: CHF 25.5 million) of land which is not depreciated.
2	� Reclassifications of CHF 0.6 million (at Cost) and CHF 0.5 million (depreciation) to Assets classified as held for sale. 

 

DKSH Annual Report 2025 87



18. Leases
The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, vehicles and equipment used in its oper-
ations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 15 years, while motor vehicles 
and equipment generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years. The Group’s obligations under its 
leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted from as-
signing and subleasing the leased assets and therefore income from leasing is insignificant. There are 
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments. 
Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on changes in local price indices.

The table below analyzes the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements 
during the periods:

in CHF millions Properties Vehicles Equipment Total

As of January 1, 2024  251.1  8.2  2.2  261.5 

Additions  52.4  5.5  0.4  58.3 

Acquisitions  0.1  -   -   0.1 

Depreciation  (64.8)  (4.0)  (1.2)  (70.0) 

Exchange differences  10.9  0.3  0.1  11.3 

As of December 31, 2024  249.7  10.0  1.5  261.2 

Additions  41.6  4.2  0.5  46.3 

Acquisitions  0.9  -   -   0.9 

Depreciation  (64.2)  (4.3)  (0.8)  (69.3) 

Exchange differences  (17.5)  (0.7)  (0.1)  (18.3) 

As of December 31, 2025  210.5  9.2  1.1  220.8 
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The table below shows the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the periods:

in CHF millions  Total 

As of January 1, 2024  277.5 

Additions  58.3 

Acquisitions  0.1 

Accretion of interest  11.9 

Repayments of lease liabilities and interest payments  (81.9) 

Exchange differences  12.9 

As of December 31, 2024  278.8 

Additions  46.3 

Acquisitions  0.9 

Accretion of interest  11.5 

Repayments of lease liabilities and interest payments  (77.9) 

Exchange differences  (19.8) 

As of December 31, 2025  239.8 

thereof current lease liabilities:

As of December 31, 2024  60.0 

As of December 31, 2025  50.5 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 33.

Amounts recognized in the income statement are as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  (69.3)  (70.0) 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  (11.5)  (11.9) 

Expense relating to short-term leases  (9.0)  (10.0) 

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets  (0.2)  (0.1) 

Variable lease payments  (1.7)  (2.1) 

Total amount recognised in the income statement  (91.7)  (94.1) 

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of CHF 88.4 million in 2025 (2024: CHF 94.1 million). The 
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of CHF 46.3 million in 2025 
(2024: CHF 58.3 million). The future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced are 
as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Not later than 1 year  6.6  3.4 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  8.2  10.2 

Later than 5 years  4.3  -  

Total commitments not yet commenced  19.1  13.6 
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19. Investments in Associates
The investments in associates are as follows:

Company 
Ownership in %

Country of 
incorporation 2025 2024

Bovet Fleurier SA, Plan-les-Ouates Switzerland  25.0  25.0 

Kulara Holdings Pte Ltd., Singapore Singapore  30.0  30.0 

aCommerce Group Ltd., Hong Kong Hong Kong  21.5  21.5 

The Group’s share of net assets and results for the year relating to associates, included in the consol-
idated statement of financial position and income statement, are as follows:

in CHF millions aCommerce
Other  

associates  Total 

As of January 1, 2024  62.6  26.0  88.6 

Share of results  (3.1)  1.0  (2.1) 

Exchange differences  5.5  0.7  6.2 

At December 31, 2024  65.0  27.7  92.7 

Share of results  (3.7)  0.2  (3.5) 

Dividend received  -   (0.9)  (0.9) 

Exchange differences  (8.0)  (0.6)  (8.6) 

At December 31, 2025  53.3  26.4  79.7 

aCommerce represents an omnichannel e-commerce enabler and provides B2C solutions for e-com-
merce in Southeast Asia. Services include online store and brand management, digital marketing, cus-
tomer service management, supply chain management & fulfillment.

In addition to the equity investment in aCommerce, the Group has also investments in convertible 
loans and secured loans (Note 12). 
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Summarized financial information of aCommerce:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Current assets  48.5  59.6 

Non-current assets  25.1  24.5 

Total assets  73.6  84.1 

Current liabilities  (92.8)  (92.0) 

Non-current liabilities  (67.4)  (72.8) 

Total liabilities  (160.2)  (164.8) 

Total equity  (86.6)  (80.7) 

Net sales  311.2  263.4 

Loss after tax  (17.4)  (13.3) 

Other comprehensive income  0.7  (0.8) 

Total comprehensive income  (16.7)  (14.1) 

Reconciliation of the carrying amount

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Share held by the Group in the equity of aCommerce  (18.6)  (17.3) 

Goodwill and other intangible assets  71.9  82.3 

Carrying amount of aCommerce  53.3  65.0 

20. Interest in Joint Ventures
The Group’s interests in joint ventures are as follows:

Company 
Ownership in %

Country of 
incorporation 2025 2024

Cummins Diethelm Ltd., Bangkok Thailand  50.0  50.0 

Cummins DKSH Vietnam LLC, Ho Chi Minh City Vietnam  50.0  50.0 

Cummins DKSH (Singapore) Pte Ltd., Singapore Singapore  50.0  50.0 

Cummins DKSH (Myanmar), Yangon Myanmar  50.0  50.0 

DKSH Klingelnberg Service Ltd., Shanghai China  50.0  50.0 

The Group’s share of net asset and profit for the year relating to joint ventures, included in the consol-
idated statement of financial position and income statement, are as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Group's share of net assets  12.7  12.4 

Group's share of profit for the year  4.9  5.3 
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21. Deferred Income Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Deferred tax assets (net)  48.8  57.9 

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  (35.3)  (30.5) 

Net deferred tax assets  13.5  27.4 

Deferred tax assets (gross):

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  139.3  129.0 

Credited/(charged) to the income statement  (2.0)  3.5 

Credited/(charged) to other comprehensive income  0.3  0.5 

Acquisitions/divestments  0.1  -  

Exchange differences  (11.3)  6.3 

As of December 31  126.4  139.3 

Deferred tax assets (gross) relating to:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Trade receivables  37.6  39.4 

Inventories  5.6  7.6 

Property, plant and equipment  3.1  4.1 

Intangible assets  3.0  4.7 

Other assets  5.5  3.1 

Employee benefits  4.1  4.2 

Lease liabilities  38.0  40.6 

Provisions and other liabilites  20.1  21.0 

Tax loss carryforwards and tax credits  9.4  14.6 

Total deferred tax assets  126.4  139.3 

The Group recognized deferred tax assets (net) of CHF 5.5 million (2024: CHF 6.6 million) regarding en-
tities recording a net loss in current and/or previous period. The Group expects to recover the deferred 
tax assets (net) in future periods. The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets (net) of CHF 0.6 mil-
lion (2024: CHF 0.0 million) regarding entities recording a net loss in current and/or previous period.
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Deferred tax liabilities (gross):

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  111.9  102.2 

Charged/(credited) to the income statement  0.3  3.5 

Charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income  1.3  (0.3) 

Acquisitions/divestments  6.8  2.0 

Exchange differences  (7.4)  4.5 

As of December 31  112.9  111.9 

Deferred tax liabilities (gross) relating to:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Inventories  4.1  5.2 

Property, plant and equipment  3.0  1.6 

Intangible assets  26.6  21.1 

Employee benefits  3.9  3.8 

Right-of-use assets  35.0  38.4 

Other assets  3.1  3.5 

Provisions, other liabilities and undistributed profits  37.2  38.3 

Total deferred tax liabilities  112.9  111.9 

The Group has recognized deferred tax liabilities with regards to temporary differences associated 
with its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of CHF 5.5 million (2024: CHF 7.2 
million) due to expected distribution in the foreseeable future. The temporary differences associated 
with investments in the Group’s subsidiaries and joint ventures, for which no distribution in the fore-
seeable future is expected and therefore no deferred tax liability has been recognized in the periods 
presented, aggregate to CHF 366.1 million (2024: CHF 287.9 million).

Deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carryforwards are recognized to the extent that realization of 
the related tax benefit with future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognize deferred 
tax assets related to accumulated losses amounting to CHF 69.6 million (2024: CHF 64.6 million) that 
can be carried forward against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Expiring next year  6.5  2.2 

Expiring in 2 years  4.7  6.9 

Expiring in 3 years  8.6  6.4 

Expiring in 4 years  10.8  12.0 

Expiring in 5 years  9.7  16.6 

Expiring later than 5 years  4.4  3.4 

No expiry  24.9  17.1 

Total unrecognized tax losses  69.6  64.6 
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22. Borrowings

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Current

Bank overdraft  12.8  1.6 

Bank borrowings  6.8  185.8 

Bankers acceptance and promissory notes  -   47.1 

Total borrowings current  19.6  234.5 

Non-current

Bank loans  493.6  326.5 

Total borrowings non-current  493.6  326.5 

Total borrowings current and non-current  513.2  561.0 

Weighted average effective interest rates on borrowings 2.7% 3.4%

As of December 31, 2025, the Group has undrawn committed and uncommitted bank borrowings 
and guarantee facilities amounting to CHF 1,005.0 million (2024: CHF 1,126.4 million). Bank loans and 
borrowings are entered into locally by subsidiaries, at commercial terms prevailing in the local envi-
ronment and some are subject to standard financial and non-financial covenants. The covenants are 
generally tested annually, with some also semi-annually. The Group is in compliance with these cov-
enants, and they are not expected to affect the classification of the bank borrowings within the next 
twelve months.

The table below analyzes the cash and non-cash changes of current and non-current borrowings:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  561.0  680.7 

Cash flows

Net proceeds/repayments  (43.5)  (140.9) 

Non-cash changes

Acquisitions  6.5  -  

Exchange differences  (10.8)  21.2 

As of December 31  513.2  561.0 

The cash and non-cash changes of lease liabilities are included in Note 18 and the financing cash flows 
for leases are presented separately as repayment of leases in the cash flow statement.
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23. Other Payables, Accrued Expenses and Contract Liabilities 

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Accrued selling and promotion expenses and rebates  110.2  105.0 

Accrued expenses employees  84.0  86.9 

Contract liabilities  76.6  90.1 

VAT and other tax payables  60.9  85.0 

Accrued expenses and payables advertising and promotion suppliers  60.1  73.4 

Accrued expenses third parties1  29.0  41.6 

Contingent consideration liabilities  23.3  14.5 

Payables distribution and logistics suppliers  21.0  21.5 

Accrued commission and interest  10.3  11.8 

Derivative liabilities  9.6  12.2 

Prepayments and deposits received2  9.3  10.1 

Liabilities non-controlling interests3  7.3  -  

Accrued expenses freight logistics and distribution cost  7.1  9.8 

Payables for repair and maintenance and tangible assets  4.8  8.1 

Other non-trade payables4  56.7  45.3 

Total other payables and accrued expenses  570.2  615.3 

1	� Included in accrued expenses third parties are legal and consulting expenses of CHF 3.5 million (2024: CHF 4.0 million).
2	� Included in prepayments and deposits are prepayments of  CHF 7.4 million (2024: CHF 8.1 million) received from suppliers.
3	� Relates to the acquisition of Terra Firma.
4	� Included in other payables are CHF 24.7 million (2024: CHF 16.6 million) of invoices to come relating to non-trade items received.

Contract liabilities relate to the advance consideration received from customers prior to the Group 
transferring control of products. Due to the nature of the Group’s business operating cycles, amounts 
included in contract liabilities as at financial year end are expected to be recognized as revenue during 
the subsequent financial year.
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24. Provisions

in CHF millions
Product 

warranty
Employee 

entitlements
Litigations/ 

Disputes Others  Total 

Current and non-current

As of January 1, 2025  0.8  4.7  -   2.7  8.2 

Additions  -   2.1  0.3  0.2  2.6 

Acquisitions  -   -   -   0.2  0.2 

Unused amount reversed  (0.2)  (0.3)  -   (0.1)  (0.6) 

Utilized in current year  -   (0.3)  -   (0.1)  (0.4) 

Exchange differences  (0.1)  (0.3)  -   (0.2)  (0.6) 

As of December 31, 2025  0.5  5.9  0.3  2.7  9.4 

thereof:

Current provisions  0.5  1.3  0.3  0.4  2.5 

Product Warranty
The Group issues warranties on certain products and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to 
perform satisfactorily. A provision has been recognized at the year-end for expected warranty claims 
based on past experience of the level of repairs and returns.

Employee Entitlements
Employee entitlements refer to termination or long-term employee benefits and are calculated on the 
basis of local labor laws of the respective countries. The amounts provided for are calculated using the 
average wage and years of service. The timing of cash outflow is uncertain.
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25. Contingencies
As of December 31, 2025, the Group has outstanding corporate guarantees of CHF 5.8 million (2024: 
CHF 6.6 million) in favor of joint ventures. The Group considers that it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle these guarantees. Therefore, no 
amount has been recognized in the statement of financial position.

26. Retirement Benefit Assets and Obligations
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on 
an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost 
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the car-
rying amount of the retirement benefit assets or obligations.

Defined Benefit Plans in Switzerland
According to the Swiss pension law (BVG), pension plans are to be managed by independent, legally 
autonomous units. Contributions to the plan are paid by the employees and the employer. In addi-
tion, the company pays risk contributions, which are used to finance benefits paid out in the event of 
death and disability, as well as to finance retirement benefits and survivors’ bridging pensions. The 
benefits of the plan participants include retirement benefits and disability, death and survivor pen-
sions. The plan provides a lifetime pension to members at the retirement age of 65. At retirement, a 
portion or the full amount can be taken as a lump sum payment. The amount of pension payable is 
calculated based on the conversion rate applied on the accumulated savings balance of the individual 
plan participant’s pension account at the retirement date. The accumulated savings balance on the 
pension account is based on the employee and employer contributions that have been made to the 
pension account of each individual plan participant, as well as the interest accrued on the accumu-
lated balance. According to Swiss pension law, a temporary limited underfunding is permitted. How-
ever, the Pension Foundation Board is required to take the necessary measures to ensure that full 
funding can be expected to be restored within a period up to a maximum of ten years. The Swiss pen-
sion plan has a technical funding ratio under Swiss pension law of 115.0% (provisional) as of Decem-
ber 31, 2025 (2024: 113.4%).

Defined Benefit Plans in Other Countries
Defined Benefit Plan in Japan
The defined benefit plan in Japan is managed by an independent, legally autonomous unit according 
to Japanese law. The defined benefit pension plan covers about one third of the employees in Japan 
and will not enroll any more employees. Contributions to the plan are paid by the employer only. The 
benefits of the plan participants include retirement benefits, death and survivor pensions. The plan 
provides a ten-year pension to members at the retirement age of 62. At retirement, the employee can 
choose either a lump sum payment or a ten-year pension (pension option is available only for employ-
ees with more than 15 years of service). The accumulated savings balance on the pension account is 
based on the employer contributions that have been made to the pension account of each individual 
plan participant, as well as the interest accrued on the accumulated balance. A temporary limited un-
derfunding is permitted. If the pension plan is underfunded, the monthly contribution amounts are in-
creased starting at the beginning of the following year. The pension plan has a technical funding ratio 
of 143.0% as of December 31, 2025 (2024: 139.0%).
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Defined Benefit Plan in Taiwan
The pension plan covers all employees. Contributions to the plan are paid by the employees and the 
employer. The benefits of the plan participants include retirement benefits. The plan provides a life-
time pension to members at retirement age of 65 years. At retirement, a portion or the full amount 
can be taken as a lump sum payment. The accumulated savings balance, which corresponds to the 
pension payable, is based on the contributory salary percentages of each individual plan participant, 
as well as the interest accrued on the accumulated balances. 

Defined Benefit Plan in Philippines
The defined benefit plan in the Philippines is governed under the Philippine statute covering pension 
mandates and exceeds the minimum benefit requirements under Philippine labor law. The plan is man-
aged by a separate autonomous unit. The pension plan covers all employees. Contributions to the plan 
are paid by the employer. Contributions cover benefits paid out in the event of retirement, death, ill-
ness or disability. The plan provides a lump sum payment to members at the retirement age of 60. 
The amount of pension payable is calculated based on the conversion rate of final salary and years in 
service at the retirement date. There is no provision for funding levels under Philippine law. As of De-
cember 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, the pension fund had a net surplus.

Defined Benefit Plan in Thailand
The individual pension payable is calculated based on the employee’s length of service under the sev-
erance pay plan and for the gratuity pay plan, applicable for employees with employment commence-
ment date before October 1, 2017, one-quarter of the last month’s basic salary times the number of 
service years for each full year served. The maximum number of accumulating service years under 
the severance pay plan is limited to 20 years. The benefits of the plan participants include retirement 
benefits and retrenchment. The plan provides a lump sum payment based on the last drawn basic 
monthly salary at the retirement age from 55 to 60 years. According to local law, no funding of the 
pension liability is required.

The expenses for defined benefit plans recognized in the income statement are as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Current service costs  6.6  6.3 

Net interest cost  0.2  0.1 

Expense for defined benefit pension plans  6.8  6.4 

The funded and unfunded defined benefit obligations are as follows: 
in CHF millions 2025 2024

Defined benefit obligations  (151.4)  (156.6) 

thereof unfunded  (19.8)  (20.3) 

Fair value of plan assets  151.3  148.4 

Funded status  (0.1)  (8.2) 

Impact of minimum funding requirement/asset ceiling  (2.5)  (0.5) 

Net retirement benefit obligations recognized in the statement of financial position  (2.6)  (8.7) 

Retirement benefit assets recognized in the statement of financial position  25.1  21.4 

Retirement benefit obligations recognized in the statement of financial position  27.7  30.1 
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As of December 31, 2025, pension plans in Japan, the Philippines and the principal plan in Switzerland 
were in a surplus situation and other pension plans in Switzerland were in a deficit situation. The 
pension plan in Thailand does not include a funding requirement and the plan in Taiwan requires only 
partial funding.

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Switzerland

Defined benefit obligations  (119.8)  (122.2) 

Fair value of plan assets  135.3  134.2 

Funded status  15.5  12.0 

Other countries

Defined benefit obligations  (31.6)  (34.4) 

thereof unfunded  (19.8)  (20.3) 

Fair value of plan assets  16.0  14.2 

Funded status  (15.6)  (20.2) 

The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  156.6  153.2 

Current service cost  6.6  6.4 

Interest cost  2.0  2.7 

Remeasurements included in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain)/loss from the effect of changes in demographic assumptions  (0.3)  -  

Actuarial (gain)/loss from the effect of changes in financial assumptions  (3.0)  7.5 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from the effect of experience adjustments  3.6  (0.9) 

Employee contributions  2.3  2.1 

Benefits paid  (13.2)  (16.6) 

Settlement payments  -   (0.1) 

Acquisitions  0.2  0.2 

Exchange differences  (3.4)  2.1 

As of December 31  151.4  156.6 
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The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  148.4  148.8 

Interest income  1.8  2.6 

Remeasurements included in other comprehensive income

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)  5.9  4.7 

Employee contributions  2.3  2.1 

Employer contributions  3.8  3.5 

Benefits paid  (9.4)  (13.6) 

Settlement payments  -   (0.1) 

Exchange differences  (1.5)  0.4 

As of December 31  151.3  148.4 

The Group expects to contribute CHF 3.7 million to its defined benefit pension plans in 2025 (2024: 
CHF 3.5 million).

Plan assets are composed as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Cash  6.1 7.2

Investments quoted in active markets

Equity funds  48.9  37.3 

Fixed-income funds  54.4  50.1 

Real Estate funds  21.9  35.2 

Corporate bonds  1.7  3.1 

Unquoted investments

Equity investments  0.8  1.1 

Debt investments  3.4  3.3 

Real estate  14.1  11.1 

Total  151.3  148.4 

Pension plan assets include a property, occupied by the Group, with a market value of CHF 3.2 million 
(2024: 3.7 million) in the current and previous period in the Philippines.
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The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

in % 2025 2024

Switzerland

Discount rate 1.25 1.00

Future salary increases  1.5  1.5 

Mortality (Mortality tables)
 BVG 2020 CMI 

1.25 
 BVG 2020 CMI 

1.25 

Other countries

Discount rate 1.3 - 6.8  1.4 - 7.2 

Future salary increases 3.8 - 4.0  2.5 - 4.0 

Future pension increases 0.6 - 2.2  1.4 - 1.8 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice from actuaries, pub-
lished statistics and experience in each country. For the pension plans in Switzerland, the Group ap-
plies Continues Mortality Improvement (CMI) and a long-term rate of 1.25% is used for the longevity 
improvements.

The life expectancy post retirement as at December 31, 2025, is as follows:

in years 2025 2024

Switzerland

Male  24.2  24.1 

Female  25.6  25.6 

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes of significant assumptions as at Decem-
ber 31, 2025, is as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Switzerland

Discount rate (increase)/decrease by 0.5%  (6.5)/7.4  (8.1)/7.2 

Rate of salary increase/(decrease) by 0.5%  0.9/(0.9)  1.0/(0.9) 

Rate of pension increase/(decrease) by 0.5%  4.8/(4.4)  5.2/(4.8) 

Life expectancy increase/(decrease) by 1 year  3.9/(3.9)  4.1/(4.2) 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligations as December 31, 2025, is 13.7 
years (2024: 15.1 years).
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27. Equity, Share Capital and Treasury Shares
Nominal 

value 
in CHF

 Total 
number 

of shares 

As of January 1, 2024 0.1  65,042,963 

As of December 31, 2024 and January 1, 2025 0.1  65,042,963 

As of December 31, 2025 0.1  65,042,963 

In 2025 and 2024, the Group had no changes in its share capital.

An ordinary dividend of CHF 2.35 per common registered share was paid in 2025 (2024: CHF 2.25 or-
dinary dividend). Total dividend payments amounted to CHF 152.6 million (2024: CHF 146.1 million).

The total authorized number of shares as of December 31, 2025, of DKSH Holding Ltd. is 65,042,963 
(2024: 65,042,963) with a par value of CHF 0.10 per share. All issued shares are fully paid in. In 2025 
the Group purchased 40,000 treasury shares for an amount of CHF 2.9 million. The Group used 52,966 
treasury shares (CHF 3.5 million) for vested share-based payment awards. The Group holds 58,199 
treasury shares as of December 31, 2025 (2024: 71’165).

As of December 31, 2025, the Company’s conditional share capital amounts to 3,282,537 shares (2024: 
3,282,537 shares) or CHF 0.33 million (2024: CHF 0.33 million).

At the Ordinary General Meeting scheduled for March 27, 2026, a CHF 2.50 dividend is to be proposed 
in respect of 2025 (2024: CHF 2.35 ordinary dividend per registered shares). These financial statements 
do not reflect this dividend payable, which will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appro-
priation of retained earnings in the year ending December 31, 2026. Dividends payables are not ac-
counted for until they have been ratified at the Ordinary General Meeting.

Other reserves and retained earnings include statutory restricted reserves of CHF 136.1 million as of 
December 31, 2024 (2024: CHF 135.3 million).

28. Earnings per Share
The following reflects the data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations for the 
years ending December 31, 2025, and 2024:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Profit after tax attributable to the shareholders of the DKSH Holding Ltd.  202.9  214.8 

Weighted average number of outstanding shares during the year  64,976,590  64,966,745 

Dilutive shares  105,480  121,808 

Adjusted weighted number of shares applicable to diluted earnings per share  65,082,070  65,088,553 

There have been no other material transactions involving outstanding shares between the financial 
reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.
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29. Share-based Payments
Long-term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Every year performance share units (PSU) are granted to eligible key managers by, and at the full dis-
cretion of, the Board of Directors to provide eligible key managers of the DKSH Group with the op-
portunity to become shareholders of the Company, to participate in the future long-term success and 
prosperity of the DKSH Group and to further align long-term interests of the key managers and the 
DKSH Group. Each PSU is an entitlement to a maximum of 1.5 shares of the Company, provided cer-
tain performance targets are achieved during the three-year performance period and subject to the 
eligible managers remaining in service. In case certain predetermined performance thresholds are 
not met after three years, no shares of the Company will vest under the LTIP. At the end of a three-
year performance period, the number of PSU’s vesting is calculated by multiplying the number of 
PSU’s granted with the vesting multiple. 60% of the vesting multiple is linked to the EBIT and 20% of 
the vesting multiple is linked to the Return on net operating capital (RONOC), both of the DKSH Group 
as reported in the Company’s last annual report prior to the end of the three-year performance pe-
riod. 20% of the vesting multiple depends on the share price measured as the average of the 20 days’ 
closing share price prior to the end of the three-year performance period. The share price condition 
(e.g. market condition) has been factored into the grant date fair values using a Monte Carlo Simula-
tion. The PSUs are generally equity settled with a minor part cash settled. For the cash settled part 
the Group records a liability.

Year
Number of 

PSUs granted
Fair Value of 
PSUs in CHF

2024 123,581 56.26

2025 122,648 48.35

Value Creation Acceleration Plan (VCA)
The Value Creation Acceleration Plan (VCA) was introduced in 2025 to reward eligible key managers, 
at the full discretion of the CEO, subject to the availability of a bonus pool determined by the Board 
of Directors, for extraordinary performance with the aim to create sustainable profitable growth and 
thereby enhance the value of the DKSH Group for the benefit of the shareholders of the Company. As 
requisite for the payout, certain Group EBIT thresholds must be achieved for each year of 2025, 2026 
and 2027. If such thresholds are achieved, the payout shall be calculated by multiplying the respec-
tive incentive award with an achievement multiple, which depends on the predefined stretch targets 
to achieve an additional Group Core EBIT during the performance period between the beginning of 
2025 and the end of 2027. A minimum achievement level of 80% of the stretch targets will need to be 
met to trigger payout. The payout is capped at 100% of the stretch targets. The incentive will gener-
ally be equity settled with a minor part cash settled. 

The total expense recognized for the period relating to share-based payment transactions amounted 
to CHF 4.2 million (2024: CHF 3.8 million) of which CHF 3.9 million is recorded against equity and CHF 
0.3 million is recorded as Accrued expenses employees and Other non-current liabilities in the Con-
solidated Statement of Financial Position.
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30. Acquisitions and Disposals
Acquisitions
During the business year 2025, the Group acquired the following businesses:

Business
Country of 

incorporation
Equity interest 

acquired Effective date
Employees 

(FTEs)

MDxK Inc. South Korea 100% April 30, 2025 28 

Taqkey Science Co. Ltd. & Quantum Biotechnology Inc. Taiwan Asset deal May 1, 2025 80 

Zircon-Swis Fine Foods Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% May 20, 2025 22 

A.P.N Plastics Holdings Pty Ltd
Australia/Ma-

laysia 100% July 8, 2025 14 

Eppendorf (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand Asset deal August 1, 2025 25 

Aston Chemicals Ltd.
United King-

dom 100% August 29, 2025 33 

Invita Australia Pty Ltd. & Invita NZ Ltd. 
Australia/New 

Zealand 100% December 31, 2025 42 

Effective April 30, 2025, the Group purchased the shares of MDxK Inc., a privately held business based 
in South Korea. MDxK represents a scientific solutions provider focusing on molecular diagnostics and 
research, serving a variety of customers including hospitals, research institutes, laboratories, universi-
ties, pharma and food & beverage companies in the local market of South Korea. From the date of ac-
quisition, the business of MDxK contributed net sales amounting to CHF 8.9 million and a profit after 
tax of CHF 1.0 million. Assuming the business had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, the contribution 
to net sales would have been CHF 13.4 million with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 1.4 million. 

Effective May 1, 2025, the Group purchased the distribution business of Taqkey Science Co. Ltd & Quan-
tum Biotechnology Inc., a privately held company based in Taiwan. Taqkey & Quantum represents a 
life science reagent and consumables distribution business in the local market of Taiwan. The distrib-
uted products encompass reagents and consumables for molecular biology, genetic engineering, and 
cell-based therapies. From the date of acquisition, the business of Taqkey & Quantum contributed net 
sales amounting to CHF 8.9 million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.6 million. Assuming the business 
had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 14.9 mil-
lion with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 1.1 million. 

Effective May 20, 2025, the Group purchased the shares of Zircon-Swis Fine Foods Pte Ltd., a pri-
vately held business based in Singapore. Zircon-Swis represents a food service distributor in Singa-
pore, sourcing premium ingredients and ensuring a stable flow of high-quality products to the hotel, 
restaurant and catering channel. From the date of acquisition, the business of Zircon-Swis contributed 
net sales amounting to CHF 5.1 million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.8 million. Assuming the business 
had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 10.3 mil-
lion with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 1.7 million. 

Effective July 8, 2025, the Group purchased the shares of A.P.N Plastics Holdings Pty Ltd, a privately 
held business based in Australia/Malaysia. A.P.N Plastics represents a specialty polymers distributor, 
operating in Australia and Malaysia. From the date of acquisition, the business of A.P.N Plastics con-
tributed net sales amounting to CHF 16.2 million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.8 million. Assuming 
the business had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, the contribution to net sales would have been 
CHF 38.8 million with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 1.9 million. 
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Effective August 1, 2025, the Group purchased the distribution business of Eppendorf (Thailand) Co., 
Ltd. a privately held company based in Thailand. Eppendorf represents a distribution business for liq-
uid handling (pipettes), centrifuges, and general laboratory equipment in the local market of Thailand. 
From the date of acquisition, the business of Eppendorf contributed net sales amounting to CHF 2.0 
million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.2 million. Assuming the business had been acquired as of Janu-
ary 1, 2025, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 4.8 million with a corresponding profit 
after tax of CHF 0.4 million. 

Effective August 29, 2025, the Group purchased the shares of Aston Chemicals Ltd., a privately held 
business based in United Kingdom with a branch business in Poland. Aston Chemicals Ltd. represents 
a specialty polymers distributor, operating in United Kingdom and Poland. From the date of acqui-
sition, the business of Aston Chemicals Ltd. contributed net sales amounting to CHF 4.6 million and 
a profit after tax of CHF 0.1 million. Assuming the business had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, 
the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 13.9 million with a corresponding profit after tax 
of CHF 0.2 million. 

Effective December 31, 2025, the Group purchased the shares of Invita Australia Pty Ltd. and Invita 
NZ Ltd., privately held businesses based in Australia and New Zealand respectively. The Invita busi-
nesses represent a distributor of high-quality specialty ingredients for the food and beverage indus-
try for the local markets in Australia and New Zealand. The product portfolio largely consists of ad-
vanced ingredients for nutrition and nutraceuticals, beverages and dairy, confectionery and bakery, 
processed foods, and pet foods. As the transaction was closed end of 2025 the business did not con-
tribute net sales and profit after tax. Assuming the business had been acquired as of January 1, 2025, 
the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 54.9 million with a corresponding profit after tax 
of CHF 3.5 million. 

The goodwill of CHF 34.9 million recorded for the acquisitions in 2025 relates to synergies and foot-
print improvements. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The 
allocation of the purchase price was based upon a preliminary valuation, and the estimates and as-
sumptions used are subject to change within the one-year measurement period. 

During 2025, the Group has expensed as incurred an insignificant amount of external transaction cost.

The contingent considerations are recorded at the acquisition date fair value based on the best es-
timate of future payments discounted with the appropriate interest rate reflecting the risk inherent 
in the arrangement. For all acquisitions including a contingent consideration, the payments are split 
into one each after year one and year two depending on the separate business performance (EBITDA) 
during the first and second year following the closing of the transaction. The share purchase agree-
ment of MDxK includes an additional payment after year two depending on specific accelerated busi-
ness performance (EBITDA) during the first and second year. For Taqkey & Quantum, Zircon-Swis, A.P.N 
Plastics and Aston Chemicals the contingent consideration will be nil if EBITDA target achievement 
is below 80%. For Invita such hurdle will be 85%. For MDxK, Taqkey & Quantum, A.P.N Plastics, Aston 
Chemicals and Invita the earnout will be nil if top suppliers are terminated. The purchase prices for 
MDxK, Taqkey & Quantum, Zircon-Swis, A.P.N. Plastics and Aston Chemicals and Invita AU and Invita 
NZ are capped at CHF 7.7 million and CHF 12.4 million, CHF 18.7 million, CHF 16.7 million and CHF 14.8 
million, CHF 20.2 million and CHF 22.1 million respectively. 

The allocation of the purchase price was based upon a preliminary valuation, and the estimates and 
assumptions used are subject to change within the one-year measurement period. 
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Refer to Note 33 for further information on the determination and sensitivity of fair value.

The provisional fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities relating to the acquisitions:

in CHF millions MDxK
Taqkey & 

Quantum Zircon-Swis
APN Plastics 

Group
Eppendorf 
(Thailand)

Aston  
Chemicals Invita Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  0.5  4.1  1.6  1.5  -   5.5  1.8  15.0 

Trade receivables  1.5  -   1.1  5.1  -   3.1  9.8  20.6 

Inventories  1.8  -   0.6  6.2  0.6  2.0  14.7  25.9 

Other current assets  0.1  -   0.1  0.7  -   3.1  0.6  4.6 

Intangible assets  1.7  3.6  6.0  4.7  0.4  0.6  10.1  27.1 

Property, plant and equipment  0.2  -   0.6  0.1  0.4  2.4  0.2  3.9 

Right-of-use assets  0.1  0.1  0.3  0.3  -   -   0.1  0.9 

Deferred tax assets  -   -   -   -   -   -   0.1  0.1 

Other non-current assets  0.3  -   -   -   -   -   -   0.3 

Liabilities

Trade payables  (1.4)  -   (0.4)  (2.7)  -   (1.1)  (3.3)  (8.9) 

Current borrowings  (0.4)  -   -   (0.5)  -   -   (5.5)  (6.4) 

Other current liabilities  (0.8)  (4.1)  (0.2)  (1.4)  -   (3.6)  (0.9)  (11.0) 

Non-current borrowings  -   -   -   -   -   -   (0.1)  (0.1) 

Lease liabilities  (0.1)  (0.1)  (0.3)  (0.3)  -   -   (0.1)  (0.9) 

Deferred tax liabilities  (0.4)  (0.7)  (1.0)  (1.3)  -   (0.4)  (3.0)  (6.8) 

Other non-current liabilities  -   -   -   -   (0.2)  -   -   (0.2) 

Net assets acquired  3.1  2.9  8.4  12.4  1.2  11.6  24.5  64.1 

Goodwill on acquisitions  3.1  5.2  8.1  3.2  0.6  1.7  13.0  34.9 

Purchase consideration  6.2  8.1  16.5  15.6  1.8  13.3  37.5  99.0 

Contingent consideration  (2.0)  (4.0)  (2.9)  (2.6)  -   (1.3)  (9.5)  (22.3) 

Purchase consideration paid 
in cash 4.2  4.1 13.6 13.0 1.8 12.0 28.0  76.7 

Cash and cash equivalents ac-
quired  0.5  4.1  1.6  1.5  -   5.5  1.8  15.0 

Net cash outflow  3.7  -   12.0  11.5  1.8  6.5  26.2  61.7 

Contingent considerations and 
closing adjustments of aquisi-
tions of prior periods  12.7 

Acquisition of subsidiaries 
net of cash  74.4 

During 2025, the Group settled the closing payment adjustment for CLMO of CHF 2.7 million and re-
corded additional goodwill of CHF 2.4 million, reduced client contracts by CHF 0.2 million, increase 
other short-term assets of CHF 0.3 million and decreased other liabilities of CHF 0.8 million. The final-
ization of the other purchase price allocations for the businesses acquired in 2024 resulted in no ma-
terial adjustments.



DKSH Annual Report 2025 107

In 2025, the Group has settled earnouts relating to the acquisitions of Refarmed, Georg Breuer, Elite 
Organics, Medipharm and Acutest for an amount of CHF 3.8 million, CHF 2.9 million, CHF 0.7 million, 
CHF 2.0 million  and CHF 0.6 million respectively. 

Relating to the acquisitions of Refarmed, Georg Breuer, MDxK, Medipharm and Partizan net income 
from revaluation of the contingent considerations liabilities of CHF 1.4 million was recorded.

Disposals
During the business year 2025, the Group sold the cable business in Australia the assets and liabili-
ties of which were classified as held for sale on 31 December 2024. The Group has received proceeds 
of CHF 8.4 million for the sale of the business and recorded a loss on sale of business of CHF 6.2 mil-
lion relating to the recycling of currency translation adjustments. The net assets disposed principally 
include trade receivable of CHF 3.0 million, inventories of CHF 4.5 million, intangible assets of CHF 2.2 
million and current payables and accruals of CHF 1.3 million.

Prior Year Acquisitions
During the business year 2024, the Group acquired the following businesses:

Effective March 1, 2024, the Group purchased the shares of Medipharm Sdn. Bhd., a privately held 
business based in Brunei. Medipharm represents a pharmaceutical and medical devices distributor in 
the local market of Brunei. From the date of acquisition, the business of Medipharm contributed net 
sales amounting to CHF 34.1 million and a profit after tax of CHF 2.1 million. Assuming the business 
had been acquired as of January 1, 2024, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 40.9 mil-
lion with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 2.6 million. 

Effective April 30, 2024, the Group purchased the shares of Elite Organic Sdn. Bhd., a privately held 
business based in Malaysia. Elite Organic represents a distributor of performance materials and pro-
vides value-added ingredients and services to the pharmaceutical, food, and nutraceutical industries 
in the territory of Malaysia. From the date of acquisition, the business of Elite Organic contributed net 
sales amounting to CHF 4.2 million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.5 million. Assuming the business 
had been acquired as of January 1, 2024, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 6.4 mil-
lion with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 0.8 million. 

Effective September 30, 2024, the Group purchased the business of Euroingredientes lda., a privately 
held business based in Portugal via asset deal. Euroingredientes represents a distributor of perfor-
mance materials and provides certified high-quality ingredients into various areas of the food indus-
try such as dairy products, beverages, as well as bread and bakery in the Portuguese market. From 
the date of acquisition, the business of Euroingredientes contributed net sales amounting to CHF 0.8 
million and a profit after tax of CHF 0.1 million. Assuming the business had been acquired as of Janu-
ary 1, 2024, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 3.3 million with a corresponding profit 
after tax of CHF 0.3 million. 

Effective December 27, 2024, the group purchased the shares of CLMO Technology Sdn. Bhd., a pri-
vately held business based in Malaysia. CLMO represents a distributor of calibration and test labo-
ratory equipment and services for the semiconductor, automotive, oil & gas industry as well as aca-
demia and research institutions in the local markets of Malaysia and Vietnam. Assuming the business 
had been acquired as of January 1, 2024, the contribution to net sales would have been CHF 8.5 mil-
lion with a corresponding profit after tax of CHF 1.4 million. 
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Purchase consideration for Medipharm, Elite Organic, Euroingredientes and CLMO of CHF 11.0 million, 
CHF 6.4 million, CHF 1.0 million and CHF 10.4 million has been paid in cash in 2024. 

For Medipharm, Elite Organic, Euroingredientes and CLMO contingent consideration of CHF 4.9 mil-
lion, CHF 1.3 million, CHF 0.3 million and CHF 4.4 million has been recorded as part of the purchase 
price allocation in 2024. 

The goodwill of CHF 15.1 million relates to synergies and footprint improvements. None of the good-
will is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. 

An insignificant amount of external transaction cost has been expensed as incurred under Other op-
erating expenses.

The contingent considerations are recorded at the acquisition date fair value based on the best esti-
mate of future payments discounted with the appropriate interest rate reflecting the risk inherent in 
the arrangement. For all four acquisitions the contingent considerations are split into a payment after 
year one and year two depending on the separate business performance (EBITDA) during the first and 
second year following the closing of the transaction. For Medipharm and Elite Organic, Euroingredi-
entes and CLMO the payments are contingent on the retention of key suppliers. The share purchase 
agreement of Medipharm includes an additional payment after year two depending on the continua-
tion of the business relationship with specific key suppliers while respective payment for Elite Organic 
is conditional on an accelerated EBITDA achievement of the continuation of the business relationship 
with one key supplier. The purchase prices for Medipharm and Elite Organic and CLMO are capped at 
CHF 22.2 million, CHF 9.2 million and CHF 16.1 million respectively.

The finalization of the purchase price allocations for the businesses acquired in 2023 resulted in no 
material adjustments. During 2024, the Group settled the deferred purchase consideration net of the 
closing payment adjustment for Bio Strategy of CHF 1.3 million.

In 2024, the Group has settled earnouts relating to the acquisitions of Refarmed, Georg Breuer, Med-
workz and Partizan for an amount of CHF 5.3 million, CHF 2.5 million, CHF 0.3 million and CHF 2.3 mil-
lion respectively. 

Relating to the acquisitions of Refarmed, DNIV, Georg Breuer, Medworkz and Medipharm net income 
from revaluation of the contingent considerations liabilities of CHF 7.9 million was recorded.

Refer to Note 33 for further information on the determination and sensitivity of fair value.
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The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities recorded at December 31, 2024, relating to the 
following acquisitions:

in CHF millions

Total fair value 
recognized 

on the  acquisi-
tions of Medi-

pharm, Elite 
Organic, Euro-

ingredientes 
and CLMO

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  6.0 

Trade receivables  7.8 

Inventories  6.4 

Other current assets  0.5 

Intangible assets  10.3 

Property, plant and equipment  1.2 

Right-of-use assets  0.1 

Liabilities

Trade payables  (4.4) 

Other current liabilities  (1.2) 

Lease liabilities  (0.1) 

Deferred tax liabilities  (2.0) 

Net assets acquired  24.6 

Goodwill on acquisitions  15.1 

Purchase consideration  39.7 

Contingent consideration  (10.9) 

Purchase consideration paid in cash  28.8 

Cash and cash equivalents acquired  6.0 

Net cash outflow  22.8 

Payments relating to acqusitions of previous years  11.7 

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash  34.5 

Prior Year Disposals
In 2024, the Group did not dispose any businesses. 
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31. Related Party Transactions
The following transactions and balances were with related parties in 2025:

in CHF millions Shareholders Associates Joint ventures Total

Income statement

Sales of goods and services  -   36.6  0.4  37.0 

Purchases of goods and services  -   12.1  -   12.1 

Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets  0.7  -   -   0.7 

Fees & royalties  0.4  -   -   0.4 

Interest received  -   3.6  -   3.6 

Statement of financial position

Trade Receivables  -   4.3  -   4.3 

Other receivables and prepayments  -   -   0.1  0.1 

Loans to related parties  -   21.9  -   21.9 

Right-of-use assets  0.8  -   -   0.8 

Trade payables  -   0.1  -   0.1 

Lease liabilities  0.8  -   -   0.8 

The following transactions and balances were with related parties in 2024:

in CHF millions Shareholders Associates Joint ventures Total

Income statement

Sales of goods and services  -   31.7  0.4  32.1 

Purchases of goods and services  -   6.4  0.1  6.5 

Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets  0.9  -   -   0.9 

Fees & royalties  0.4  -   -   0.4 

Interest received  -   0.9  -   0.9 

Statement of financial position

Trade Receivables  -   4.6  -   4.6 

Other receivables and prepayments  -   -   0.1  0.1 

Loans to related parties  -   23.5  -   23.5 

Right-of-use assets  1.8  -   -   1.8 

Other payables  0.1  -   -   0.1 

Lease liabilities  1.9  -   -   1.9 
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The total remuneration recognized as an expense in the reporting period for the Executive Commit-
tee and Board of Directors is as follows:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Executive Committee  12.6  13.5 

Board of Directors  2.5  2.5 

The total remuneration recognized as an expense in the reporting period for the Executive Commit-
tee includes short-term employee benefits of CHF 7.5 million (2024: CHF 8.3 million), including both sal-
ary and incentive-based compensation, share-based compensation expenses of CHF 2.6 million (2024: 
CHF 2.4 million), post-employment benefits of CHF 0.8 million (2024: CHF 0.8 million), and long-term 
employee benefits of CHF 1.7 million (2024: CHF 2.3 million).

The total remuneration recognized as employee benefit expenses in the reporting period for the Board 
of Directors is CHF 2.5 million (2024: CHF 2.5 million). 

As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, no loans or any other commitments were outstanding to mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee (refer to Note 29 for more details regarding 
share-based payments).

32. Commitments
On December 11, 2025, the Group signed the agreement to purchase the shares of Biomedic Science 
Material Joint Stock Company. Established in 2008, Biomedic represents a distributor of equipment 
and reagents used in the biotechnology and diagnostic market in Vietnam. The company also provides 
value-added services including field technical support and after-sales support. The purchase price is 
expected to be around CHF 14.3 million including a cash payment at closing of 80% and 20% earnout 
payments over 2 years. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2026.

On December 9, 2025, the Group has submitted the offer to fully take over its subsidiary DKSH Hold-
ings (Malaysia) for a price per share of 6.15 Malaysian Ringgit. The proposal requires approval of at 
least 75% of the voting value, with no more than 10% of shareholders voting against it and is subject 
to approval by the High Court. Based on this initial offer the transaction value would be approximately 
CHF 48.5 million for the remaining 25.7% of shares.



33. Financial Instruments
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange 
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management 
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to 
hedge certain exposures. The subsidiaries enter into financial derivative contracts with either Group 
Treasury or a local external financial counterparty. Group Treasury, in turn, covers its net exposure 
from these transactions with external financial counterparties.

Group Treasury holds responsibility for overseeing financial risk management together with the local 
finance organizations in line with the Group Treasury policy. The policy provides written principles for 
overall financial risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign 
exchange risk, interest rate risk, equity risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, funding strategy and structure, 
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of 
excess liquidity.

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to Euro, US Dollar and Japanese Yen. Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transac-
tions and recognized monetary assets and liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk on Commercial Transactions
Foreign exchange risk arises when committed future cash flows from commercial transactions are 
denominated in a currency that is not the subsidiary’s functional currency. The Group companies are 
required to hedge their foreign exchange risk exposure arising from foreign currency cash flows that 
are not naturally offset by a simultaneous opposite commercial transaction in the same currency or 
mitigated in another way against their functional currency.

Focusing on the overall economics, rather than accounting effects of currency movements will result 
in timing and valuation differences between the hedge, which is taken out as the economic transac-
tion is closed, and the underlying exposure. Furthermore, the focus on committed transactions means 
that the policy does not protect the local subsidiary from the potential commercial or competitive ef-
fect of medium- and longer-term shifts in exchange rates. The Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes and is not a party to leveraged instruments.

The total notional amount (outstanding gross settlement risk) and positive market value of forward 
FX contracts were as follows:

in CHF millions
Notional 
amount

Notional 
amount

Positive 
market 

value

Positive 
market 

value

2025 2024 2025 2024

AA- or higher  187.5  242.8  2.4  3.9 

A+, A or A-  468.0  527.9  2.9  4.1 

BBB+, BBB or BBB-  -   3.8  -   0.1 

Total  655.5  774.5  5.3  8.1 
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For derivatives revalued through income statement, the Group recorded a net gain of CHF 19.8 mil-
lion (2024: net gain of CHF 0.6 million) within the net foreign exchange result to recognize the change 
in the fair values.

These gains and losses on derivative instruments offset the financial position revaluation of financial 
assets and liabilities. 

In 2025, the Group recorded a net loss of CHF 35.9 million (2024: net loss of CHF 2.5 million) from re-
valuation of financial position items.

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Current assets  5.3  8.1 

Current liabilities  (5.2)  (7.8) 

Net fair value of foreign exchange contracts  0.1  0.3 

Swiss Franc equivalent notional amount of derivative financial instruments  655.5  774.5 

The derivative assets and liabilities relating to foreign exchange risk on commercial transactions have 
been included in other receivables and other payables and accrued expenses in the statement of fi-
nancial position. The amount of derivative assets of CHF 5.3 million as of December 31, 2025 (2024: 
CHF 8.1 million) represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk from derivative financial instruments.

Foreign Exchange Risk on Other Transactions
Foreign exchange risk arises from committed future cash flows of transactions, such as dividends, 
acquisitions or disposals, which are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional cur-
rency. The Group’s policy is that Group companies are required to hedge their foreign exchange risk 
exposure arising from such foreign currency cash flows.

Foreign Exchange Risk on Monetary assets and Liabilities
Foreign exchange risk arises when recognized monetary assets or liabilities are denominated in a cur-
rency that is not the entity’s functional currency. Group companies are not authorized to borrow or 
hold cash in a currency other than their functional currency unless such borrowings or cash holdings 
are the result of short-term liquidity management, regulatory restrictions or market inefficiencies.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and JPY 
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax 
is due to changes in carrying amount of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign currency 
derivatives. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Currency

Change foreign 
currency ex-
change rate 2025 2024

USD +5%/-5%  4.8/(4.8)  2.6/(2.6) 

EUR +5%/-5%  1.4/(1.4)  3.6/(3.6) 

JPY +5%/-5%  (0.9)/0.9  (1.0)/1.0 
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(ii) Interest Rate Risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are fairly independent of changes in market interest 
rates. The Group’s cash is subject to changes in interest rates as the majority is contracted short-term 
at floating interest rates.

In terms of borrowing, the treasury policy dictates that, to the extent that the Group is in a net debt po-
sition, the external debt with a remaining tenor of over 12 months should at least amount to 66.6% of 
the maximum forecast net debt over the next 12 months period. Of the long-term debt, at least 50.0% 
has to be held in fixed interest instruments, which can be achieved using interest rate derivatives. De-
rivative liabilities relating to interest rate swaps of CHF 4.4 million have been included in other pay-
ables and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2025 and 2024. Given the low level of financial lever-
age, changes in interest rates do not have a significant impact on the financial standing of the Group. 

As of December 31, 2025, if interest rates on variable interest-bearing borrowings had been 0.5% 
higher with all other variables held constant that the Group assumes to be reasonably possible, and 
the higher interest rates are applied to those borrowings as of December 31, pre-tax profit for the year 
would have been CHF 1.2 million (2024: CHF 1.4 million) lower. Assuming the higher interest rates in-
crease the yield on interest-bearing cash and financial assets, the impact of the higher interest rates 
on the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year will be offset by the increased income from these instru-
ments. If interest rates on interest-bearing cash and financial assets had been 0.5% higher with all 
other variables held constant, and the higher interest rates are applied to the interest-bearing cash 
and financial assets as of December 31, 2025, pre-tax profit for the year would have been CHF 2.7 mil-
lion (2024: CHF 3.0 million) higher.

(iii) Credit Risk
The Group is exposed to counterparty credit risk on financial instruments such as cash and cash equiv-
alents, derivative assets and trade receivables.

The Group is not exposed to concentrations of credit risks on its cash and cash equivalents or deriv-
atives. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality financial in-
stitutions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Excess cash in operating entities is used either to reduce current bank borrowings, to deposit at the 
Corporate Center or to invest in short-term deposits.

The total cash balances of the Group are with institutions with the following ratings:

in CHF millions 2025 2024

AA- or higher  58.4  66.5 

A+, A or A-  409.5  452.1 

BBB+, BBB or BBB-  23.4  49.4 

Non-investment grade/unrated  47.1  41.1 

Total  538.4  609.1 
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Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, control and approval procedures in all the affiliated 
companies. Customer specific credit limits are set and monitored on an ongoing basis. The debt-
ors are mainly internationally acting customers with own local entities with business activities in the 
wholesale sector and governmental institutions. None of these customers exceed 10.0% of total ac-
counts receivable.

(iv) Liquidity Risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the 
availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities and the ability to close out mar-
ket positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain 
flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines and cash resources available.

The Corporate Center holds a strategic liquidity reserve consisting of either cash and/or undrawn com-
mitted credit facilities. As of December 31, 2025, this strategic reserve amounted to CHF 327.1 million 
(2024: CHF 354.2 million) consisting of cash and the undrawn CHF 150.0 million five-year committed 
credit facility maturing on June 7, 2028.

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Centrally held cash and cash equivalents  177.1  204.2 

Committed credit facility  150.0  150.0 

Total  327.1  354.2 
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The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities as per financial reporting date. The amounts 
disclosed refer to the maturity of the contractual undiscounted cash flows until maturity date (including 
contractually agreed interest payments).

in CHF millions
Up to 1 month 
or on demand

1 - 3 
months

3 - 12 
months

1 - 5 
years

More than 5 
years

Total Cash 
Flows

 Carrying  
value 

As of December 31, 2025

Borrowings  16.0  6.2  7.3  504.6  -   534.1  513.2 

Trade and other payables and ac-
crued expenses  1,711.2  584.3  199.2  -   -   2,494.7  2,494.7 

Lease liabilities  5.1  9.7  43.5  133.4  69.9  261.6  239.8 

Contingent considerations  -   -   23.5  9.1  -   32.6  32.1 

Liabilities related to put options for 
non-controlling interests  -   -   7.7  13.9  -   21.6  20.5 

Total  1,732.3  600.2  281.2  661.0  69.9  3,344.6  3,300.3 

As of December 31, 2024

Borrowings  35.9  108.9  98.7  345.2  -   588.7  561.0 

Trade and other payables and ac-
crued expenses  1,494.3  730.0  418.1  -   2,642.4  2,642.4 

Lease liabilities  5.5  10.9  51.0  169.1  60.4  296.9  278.8 

Contingent considerations  -   0.5  21.0  2.2  -   23.7  23.4 

Liabilities related to put options for 
non-controlling interests  -   -   -   36.4  -   36.4  32.7 

Total  1,445.1  805.9  562.0  529.0  81.4  3,423.4  3,378.2 

The table below analyses the maturity of the Group’s derivative financial instruments as per financial 
reporting date.

The amounts disclosed, refer to the contractual undiscounted cash flows until maturity date that will 
be settled on a gross basis.

in CHF millions
Up to 1 month 
or on demand

1 - 3 
months

3 - 12 
months

1 - 5 
years

 Total Cash 
Flows 

As of December 31, 2025

Forward FX contracts

Outflow  (336.4)  (219.0)  (100.1)  -   (655.5) 

Inflow  335.9  218.9  100.6  -   655.4 

As of December 31, 2024

Forward FX contracts

Outflow  (300.1)  (257.0)  (217.4)  -   (774.5) 

Inflow  300.5  256.7  217.0  -   774.2 
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(v) Fair Value
The table below analyzes financial assets and liabilities by measurement category. In case of recur-
ring fair value measurements, the specific fair value level is indicated. The different fair value levels 
are defined as follows:

•	 �Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded de-
rivatives, and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. 
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group reflects the current bid price

•	 �Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, 
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of 
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates; and 

•	 �Level 3: One or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level 
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the report-
ing period during which the change has occurred.
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There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value measurements during the 
year. The group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the 
end of the reporting period.

in CHF millions Level 2025 2024

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative assets 2  5.3  8.1 

Convertible loan 3  14.3  16.4 

Total  19.6  24.5 

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents1  538.4  609.1 

Trade receivables 1  1,890.9  1,964.6 

Other receivables1 2  320.5  333.3 

Deposits to third party1  19.0  20.7 

Loans to associates1  7.6  6.8 

Total  2,776.4  2,934.5 

Total financial assets 2,796.0  2,959.0 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Contingent consideration liabilities 3  32.1  23.4 

Derivative liabilities 2  9.6  12.2 

Total  41.7  35.6 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Borrowings1  513.2  561.0 

Lease liabilities4  239.8  278.8 

Liabilities related to put options of non-controlling interests5  20.5  32.7 

Trade payables1  2,189.3  2,318.2 

Other payables and accrued expenses1 3  305.4  324.3 

Total 3,268.2 3,515.0

Total financial liabilities  3,309.9  3,550.6 

1	� Carrying amount is a resonable approximation for fair value.
2	� Excluding VAT and other tax receivables and derivative financial instruments.
3	� Excluding VAT and other tax payables, derivative liabilities.
4	� No fair value disclosure required.
5	� Included in other current and other non-current liabilities.
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Measurement of Fair Values
The Group’s financial instruments for which Level 2 and Level 3 fair values are determined as per below 
valuation techniques and specific unobservable inputs.

The forward exchange contracts represent Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy and are classified as fi-
nancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value is determined by using the dis-
counting method applying the zero-coupon curve at the financial reporting date.

During previous years, the Group subscribed to a convertible loan of aCommerce Group Ltd. totaling 
CHF 8.8 million, with a fair value of CHF 14.3 million as per December 31, 2025 (2024: CHF 16.4 million).  
The convertible loan agreement includes an element linking conversion to an exit event (IPO or trade 
sale).  As per December 31, 2024, the valuation was based on an assumption that the exit event would 
take place in 2025.  As the exit event did not take place during 2025, the valuation as per December 31, 
2025, is based on a waterfall analysis that allocates enterprise value to stakeholders based on capital 
structure and priority of claims. The enterprise value was determined using significant unobservable 
inputs including a revenue and gross profit multiple of 1.3 and 2.1 respectively derived from a selec-
tion of comparable companies. Due to the waterfall structure using different revenue and gross profit 
multiples with all other variables held constant would not change the fair value.

The convertible loan holders are currently negotiating revised conversion terms. The outcome of these 
negotiations may have an impact on the valuation of the convertible notes in future periods.

Sensitivity in 2024 indicated if risk free rate had been higher/lower by 1.0%, holding all variables con-
stant, the fair value would have been higher/lower by CHF 0.1 million. If timing of exit event is post-
poned by 6 months, holding all variables constant, the fair value would be lower by CHF 0.4 million.

The contingent considerations represent Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy and are classified as finan-
cial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The contingent consideration liabilities as per Decem-
ber 31, 2025, of CHF 32.1 million principally relate to the following acquisitions:

MdxK: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets (significant 
unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following April 30, 2025, and 2026 and has determined 
that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration would be pay-
able. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 input). If the nor-
malized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair value would be 
higher/lower by CHF 0.2 million. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded contingent con-
sideration liabilities for MdxK of CHF 2.4 million (at acquisition date CHF 2.0 million). 

Taqkey&Quantum: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA tar-
gets (significant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following May 1, 2025, and 2026 and 
has determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consider-
ation would be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 
2 input). If the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the 
fair value would be higher/lower by CHF 0.4 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 80% 
the contingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has re-
corded contingent consideration liabilities for Taqkey&Quantum of CHF 3.7 million (at acquisition date 
CHF 4.0 million). 

Zircon-Swis: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets (sig-
nificant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following May 20, 2025 and 2026 and has deter-
mined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration would 
be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 input). If 
the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair value 
would be higher/lower by CHF 0.3 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 80% the con-
tingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded con-
tingent consideration liabilities for Zircon-Swis of CHF 2.8 million (at acquisition date CHF 2.9 million). 
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A.P.N. Plastics: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets 
(significant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following July 8, 2025, and 2026 and has 
determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration 
would be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 
input). If the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair 
value would be higher/lower by CHF 0.3 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 80% the 
contingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded 
contingent consideration liabilities for A.P.N. Plastics of CHF 2.6 million (at acquisition date CHF 2.6 
million). 

Aston: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets (significant 
unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following August 29, 2025, and 2026 and has deter-
mined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration would 
be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 input). If 
the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair value 
would be higher/lower by CHF 0.2 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 80% the contin-
gent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded contin-
gent consideration liabilities for Aston of CHF 1.4 million (at acquisition date CHF 1.3 million)

Invita New Zealand: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA tar-
gets (significant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following December 31, 2025 and 2026 
and has determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target con-
sideration would be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value 
(Level 2 input). If the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, 
the fair value would be higher/lower by CHF 0.3 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 
85% the contingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has 
recorded contingent consideration liabilities for Invita New Zealand of CHF 3.3 million (at acquisition 
date CHF 3.3 million).

Invita Australia: At acquisition date in 2025, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets 
(significant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods ending June 2025 and 2026 and has deter-
mined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved over 120 % and therefore top cap consider-
ation would be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 
2 input). If the normalized EBITDA is lower by 10.0% and 20%, holding all other variables constant, the 
fair value would be lower by CHF 0.0 million and 2.4 m. If the earnout achievement would be below 85% 
the contingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded 
contingent consideration liabilities for Invita of CHF 6.2 million (at acquisition date CHF 6.2 million).

Medipharm: At acquisition date in 2024, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets (sig-
nificant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods ending December 31, 2024, and 2025 and has 
determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration 
would be payable. In addition, the Group has recorded the maximum amount for the additional pay-
ment after two years as it assessed retention of specific clients to be 100.0% achieved. The estimated 
future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 input). If the normalized EBITDA is 
higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair value would be higher/lower by 
CHF 0.5 million. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded contingent consideration liabilities 
for Medipharm of CHF 3.9. million (2024: CHF 6.2 million). Based on the business performance of 121 % 
the Group settled contingent consideration liabilities of CH 2.0 million in 2025 and recorded an income 
from revaluation of the contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 0.3 million in the financial result.

Elite Organics: At acquisition date in 2024, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets 
(significant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following April 30, 2024, and 2025 and has 
determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration 
would be payable. In addition, the Group has determined the amount based on accelerated EBITDA will 
not become payable as it is not deemed probable this condition will be met. The estimated future cash-
flows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 input). If the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower 
by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair value would be higher/lower by CHF 0.5 million. 
As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded contingent consideration liabilities for Elite Organ-
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ics of CHF 0.8 million (2024: CHF 1.4 million). Based on the actual business performance the Group set-
tled contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 0.7 million in 2025 and recorded a loss from revaluation 
of the contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 0.1 million in the financial result.

CLMO: At acquisition date in 2024, the Group has estimated the normalized EBITDA targets (signifi-
cant unobservable inputs) for the 12-month periods following December 27, 2024, and 2025 and has 
determined that the target amount of EBITDA would be achieved and therefore target consideration 
would be payable. The estimated future cashflows have been discounted to present value (Level 2 
input). If the normalized EBITDA is higher/lower by 10.0%, holding all other variables constant, the fair 
value would be higher/lower by CHF 0.4 million. If the earnout achievement would be below 80% the 
contingent consideration payment would be nil. As per December 31, 2025, the Group has recorded 
contingent consideration liabilities for CLMO of CHF 3.9 million (2024: CHF 4.4 million). Based on the 
business performance the Group expects to settle contingent consideration liabilities in line with the 
estimate in 2026.

Partizan: Based on the business performance in 2025 and a respective achievement rate of below 80% 
the Group concluded the earnout payment to be nil and recorded an income from revaluation of the 
contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 2.0 million in the financial result. 

Refarmed. In 2025, the Group has settled contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 3.8 million and 
recorded an income from revaluation of the contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 0.8 million in 
the financial result.

Georg Breuer: During 2025 the Group settled contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 2.9 million in 
line with the liabilities as at December 31, 2024.

DNIV: Related to the acquisition in 2022 and based on an amended agreement, the Group has re-
corded contingent consideration liabilities of CHF 0.9 million as of December 31, 2025 which the Group 
expects to settle in the first quarter of 2026.

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Values 
The following table shows a reconciliation between the opening balances to the closing balances for 
Level 3 fair values:

in CHF millions
Convertible 

loan
 Contingent 

consideration

As of January 1, 2024  17.0  29.7 

Additions / Acquisitions  -   10.9 

Settlements  -   (10.4) 

Fair value - changes  (1.8)  (7.9) 

Exchange differences  1.2  1.1 

As of December 31, 2024  16.4  23.4 

Additions / Acquisitions  -   22.3 

Settlements  -   (10.0) 

Fair value - changes  -   (1.8) 

Exchange differences  (2.1)  (1.8) 

As of December 31, 2025  14.3  32.1 
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(vi) Capital Risk Management
The Group’s capital includes share capital, reserves, retained earnings and borrowings. The capital of the Group as of De-
cember 31, 2025, is CHF 2,269.1 million (2024: CHF 2,381.7 million). The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to 
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of asset-to-equity ratio and total debt-to-capitalization ratio. The asset-to-equity 
ratio is calculated as total assets divided by total equity. The total debt-to-capitalization ratio is calculated as total borrow-
ings divided by the sum of borrowings and equity attributable to the shareholders of the Group. The ratios as of Decem-
ber 31, 2025, and 2024, were as follows:

2025 2024

Asset-to-equity  3.0  2.9 

Total debt-to-capitalization 22.6% 23.6%

Covenants that require the Group to maintain certain agreed financial ratios are managed locally for subsidiary borrow-
ings and by Group Treasury for Group-level borrowings. As of December 31, 2025, and for the entire financial year 2025, 
the Group did not have any breaches of such loan agreements.

34. Events After Financial Reporting Date
There are no significant events after the financial position date.
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35. Principal Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2025

Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Holding and management companies

DKSH International Performance Materials Ltd., Zurich CHF 500 100

DKSH China Holding Ltd., Hong Kong 1 HKD 20,000 100

DKSH Corporate Shared Services Center Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 5,000 100

DKSH Holdings (Asia) Sdn Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 30,000 100

DKSH Holdings (Malaysia) Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 500,000 74.31

DKSH Management Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur MYR 1,600 100

DKSH Holding Philippines Inc., Manila 1 USD 212 99

DKSH Holding (S) Pte Ltd., Singapore 1 SGD 83,703 100

DKSH Management Pte Ltd., Singapore 1 SGD 2,000 100

DKSH Management (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 10,000 100

Hahn Healthcare Holdings Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD 10 100

DKSH Smollan Field Marketing Pte. Ltd., Singapore SGD 1,020 51

Ulfur Ltd., Zurich EUR 2,000 100

Operating companies

Switzerland

DKSH Switzerland Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 20,000 100

DKSH International Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 700 100

Diethelm & Co Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 3,000 100

Medinova Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 250 100

Refarmed Chemicals Ltd., Lugano CHF 100 100

Asia

DKSH Australia Pty Ltd., Hallam 1 AUD 135,965 100

DKSH Grocery Connect Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD 2 100

DKSH Performance Materials Operations Australia Pty Ltd., Melbourne AUD 98,182 100

DKSH Agrisolutions Pty Ltd., Melbourne AUD 1,400 100

Crossmark Australia Pty Ltd., Sydney2 AUD 15,694 100

Sales Team Providers Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD - 100

DKSH Hong Kong Ltd., Hong Kong 1 HKD 100,000 100

PT DKSH (Indonesia), Jakarta IDR 180,755,650 100

PT Wicaksana Overseas International Tbk, Jakarta 1 IDR 708,916,162 95.5

DKSH Market Expansion Services, Jakarta1 IDR 9,990,000 100

DKSH India Pvt. Ltd., Bombay-Mumbai INR 100,000 100

DKSH Japan K.K., Tokyo JPY 1,600,000 100

DKSH Market Expansion Services Japan K.K., Tokyo 1 JPY 700,100 100

DKSH (Cambodia) Ltd., Phnom Penh 1 KHR 4,320,000 100

DKSH Korea Ltd., Seoul 1 KRW 30,000,000 100

DKSH Performance Materials Korea Ltd., Seoul KRW 9,000,000 100

DKSH (Myanmar) Ltd., Yangon 1 MMK 10,000 100

DKSH Services Ltd., Yangon 1 MMK 1,929,921 100

The Glory Medicine Ltd., Macao MOP 120,000 100
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Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Asia (continued)

DKSH Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 50,000 74.31

DKSH Technology Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 69,770 100

The Famous Amos Chocolate Chip Cookie Corp (M) Sdn Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 1,000 74.31

DKSH Luxury & Lifestyle (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 335 100

DKSH Food Services (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd., Kuala Lumpur MYR 1,000 100

DKSH BRN Sdn Bhd, Brunei 1 BND 2,350 100

DKSH New Zealand Ltd., Auckland 1 NZD 26,230 100

C S Company Limited, Auckland NZD 100 100

Edward Keller (Philippines) Inc., Manila PHP 500,000 100

DKSH Philippines Inc., Manila PHP 80,000 100

DKSH Market Expansion Services, Taguig City1 PHP 12,000 100

DKSH Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore SGD 20,998 100

Favorex Pte Ltd., Singapore SGD 500 100

DKSH (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 200,000 75.55

The United Drug (1996) Co. Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 40,000 75.55

Diethelm Keller Logistics Ltd., Bangkok THB 6,000 100

DKSH Technology Limited, Bangkok THB 3,000 99.99

DKSH Performance Materials (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok THB 20,000 100

DKSH Taiwan Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 300,000 100

DKSH Supply Chain Solutions (Taiwan) Ltd., Tao Yuan County TWD 500,000 100

United International Drug Co. Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 5,000 100

Good Health Solutions International Co. Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 5,000 100

DKSH Vietnam Co. Ltd., Binh Duong 1 USD 3,300 100
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Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Asia (continued)

DKSH Technology Co. Ltd (VND), Ho Chi Minh City 1 USD 3,146 100

DKSH Pharma Vietnam Co, Ltd., Binh Duong USD 500 100

DKSH Shanghai Ltd., Shanghai 1 USD 200 100

DKSH (Shanghai) International Trade Ltd., Shanghai 1 CNY 15,000 100

DKSH Performance Materials China Ltd., Shanghai CNY 60,000 100

DKSH Laos Company Ltd. (LAK), Vientiane USD 400 100

DKSH Performance Materials Vietnam Co Ltd., Ho Chi Minh City USD 400 100

Europe

DKSH Nordic A/S, Birkerod DKK 500 100

DKSH France S.A., Miribel EUR 2,400 100

DKSH GmbH, Hamburg EUR 3,068 100

DKSH Luxury and Lifestyle Europe GmbH, Pforzheim 1 EUR 5,000 100

DKSH Marketing Services Spain S.A.U., Barcelona EUR 648 100

North America

DKSH North America Inc., Baltimore USD 500 100

DKSH Premium Brand Distribution Inc., Dover 1 USD 750 100

DKSH USA LLC., Maryland (MD) USD - 82.44

1	� Direct investments of DKSH Holding Ltd., Zurich.
2	� Investment of DKSH Smollan Field Marketing, Singapore.
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Maagplatz 1
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CH-8010 Zurich
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Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DKSH Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2025, the consolidated income state-
ment, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial  
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements (pages 58 to 125) give a true and fair view of the consolidated  
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2025 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consoli-
dated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and Swiss Standards 
on Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law, together with the requirements of the Swiss audit profession 
that are relevant to audits of the financial statements of public interest entities, as well as those of the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including  
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), as applicable to audits of financial statements of public interest 
entities. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of  
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide  
a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter  
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated  
financial statements” section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the  
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address 
the matters below, provide the basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

To the General Meeting of
DKSH Holding Ltd., Zurich

Zurich, February 16, 2026 

Report of the statutory auditor  

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
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Revenue recognition 

Risk Total net sales for the financial year 2025 amounted to CHF 11,070.6 million. DKSH generates 
revenue through multiple revenue streams arising from different types of customer contracts. 
These contracts require assessment regarding the timing of revenue recognition and the determi-
nation of whether revenue should be presented on a gross or net basis. The Group’s accounting 
policy is disclosed in Note 2(o) to the consolidated financial statements. Determining the appro-
priate timing of revenue recognition, whether control of goods or services transfers at a point in 
time or over time, requires judgement. In addition, assessing whether DKSH acts as a principal 
(gross presentation) or as an agent (net presentation) involves evaluating several qualitative  
and quantitative factors and requires judgement. Given the significance of revenue to the con-
solidated financial statements and the judgements involved, this area was considered a key audit 
matter.

Our audit  
response

We evaluated the design and implementation of Management’s controls relating to the revenue 
recognition process. On a sample basis, we examined customer contracts to assess whether any 
unusual terms existed and to evaluate Management’s principal versus agent assessment.  For 
selected transactions, we compared the revenue amounts recognized to the underlying contrac-
tual terms, focusing on the appropriateness of the timing of revenue recognition and whether 
revenue was presented on a gross or net basis in line with Management’s assessment. Our audit 
procedures did not lead to any reservations concerning the recognition, measurement and pre-
sentation of the net sales.

Valuation of goodwill

Risk As at 31 December 2025, DKSH reported goodwill of CHF 585.6 million. The carrying amounts 
of goodwill and other assets allocated to each cash generating unit (CGU) depend on estimates 
of future cash flows. Determining the recoverable amount requires judgment, particularly in 
estimating future performance, determining discount rates, and applying long-term growth 
rates. The annual impairment test is inherently complex and involves assumptions that are influ-
enced by expectations regarding future market and economic conditions. There is a risk that 
actual performance may differ from Management’s estimates. The key assumptions, sensitivities 
and results of the impairment tests are disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial state-
ments. Given the magnitude of goodwill and the level of judgment involved, this matter was 
considered a key audit matter.

Our audit  
response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s impairment testing process and evaluated the 
design and implementation of related controls. With the support of our valuation specialists, 
we assessed the methodology applied by Management and evaluated key assumptions, includ-
ing discount rates and long-term growth rates applied to each CGU. We compared projected 
future cash flows to the Group’s strategic plan prepared by Management and approved by the 
Executive Board. We challenged the reasonableness of Management’s assumptions by compar-
ing them with external market data and historical performance. We further evaluated the dis-
closures relating to key assumptions, sensitivities, and the results of the impairment test. Our 
audit procedures did not lead to any reservations concerning the valuation of goodwill.



Other information 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in-
cluded in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the stand-alone financial 
statements, the compensation report and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa-
tion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa-
tion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Board of Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, which give a true 
and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the provisions of Swiss law, and for such internal 
control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s abili-
ty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our  
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accor-
dance with Swiss law, ISA and SA-CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be ex-
pected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is located on EXPERT-
suisse’s website at: https://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms an integral part of our report.

41 58 286 31 11Phone: +Ernst & Young Ltd
Maagplatz 1
P.O. Box
CH-8010 Zurich

www.ey.com/en_ch
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In accordance with Art. 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, 
which has been designed for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to the instructions of 
the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

André Schaub				    María del Carmen Picazo González
Licensed audit expert			   FCCA
(Auditor in charge)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

41 58 286 31 11Phone: +Ernst & Young Ltd
Maagplatz 1
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CH-8010 Zurich
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in CHF millions Notes 2025 2024

Dividend income  57.0  128.7 

Management fees income 2  40.6  48.8 

Other operating income  -   0.1 

Personnel expenses  (15.6)  (19.4) 

Charges from Group Companies 2  (38.1)  (44.3) 

Other operating expenses  (11.5)  (16.6) 

Depreciation and valuation adjustments on non-current assets 6  (8.1)  (11.7) 

Financial income  5.9  11.7 

Financial expenses  (2.7)  (2.1) 

Profit before tax  27.5  95.2 

Income taxes  (0.2)  -  

Profit after tax  27.3  95.2 

Income Statement
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in CHF millions Notes 2025 2024

Cash and cash equivalents  50.4  110.3 

Other receivables

from third parties  0.8  0.9 

from group companies  248.8  427.9 

Accrued income and prepaid expenses

from third parties  0.6  0.3 

from group companies  1.1  2.4 

Current assets  301.7  541.8 

Loans to Group companies  12.3  -  

Investments 6  419.5  368.1 

Other non-current assets  0.1  0.1 

Non-current assets  431.9  368.2 

Total assets  733.6  910.0 

Interest bearing loans  -   40.0 

Other Liabilities

from third parties  8.4  1.3 

from group companies  3.7  13.9 

Deferred income and accrued expenses  10.0  14.8 

Current liabilities  22.1  70.0 

Other long-term liabilities  -   3.8 

Non-current liabilities  -   3.8 

Total liabilities  22.1  73.8 

Share capital 5  6.5  6.5 

Legal reserves from capital contribution  2.8  2.8 

Legal reserves from retained earnings  96.6  96.6 

Treasury shares 5  (4.0)  (4.6) 

Retained earnings  582.3  639.7 

Profit after tax  27.3  95.2 

Total equity  711.5  836.2 

Total equity and liabilities  733.6  910.0 

Statement of Financial Position
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1. General 
The financial statements of DKSH Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) have been prepared in accordance with 
the provisions of the Swiss Law on Accounting and Financial Reporting (32nd title of the Swiss Code 
of Obligations). Where not prescribed by law, the significant accounting and valuation principles ap-
plied as described below: 

Investments
The investments are recognized at the lower of cost or recoverable amount. 

Share-Based Payments
An accrual, for share-based payment on the expected number of shares to be delivered in the future 
is recognized.

Treasury Shares
Treasury shares are recognized at acquisition cost and deducted from equity.

Leases
Leases are recognized in the income statement at the time of the payment.

2. Management Fees
DKSH Holding Ltd. bears the costs of services such as management, information technology, license 
fees, administrative and legal services provided by different group companies. These costs, as well 
as additional services provided by corporate level (such as group accounting, human resources, legal 
services, media relations, communication, and other back-office services), are subsequently charged 
to the individual group companies.  

3. Number of Employees
The number of full-time positions did not exceed 50 employees, during the current and previous 
period.

4. Contingent Liabilities and Leases
The total of guarantees and commitments in favor of third parties and joint ventures amounted to 
CHF 216.6 million as of December 31, 2025 (2024: CHF 262.4 million).

DKSH Holding Ltd. is part of the value-added tax group of its Swiss subsidiaries and therefore has 
joint and several responsibilities toward the Swiss Tax Authority.

Committed lease contract maturity table

in CHF millions 2025 2024

Up to 12 months  0.1  0.4 

Over 12 months  -   0.1 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. Equity
Share Capital

Nominal value 
in CHF

Registered 
shares

Nominal value 
in CHF

As of January 1, 2025 0.1  65,042,963  6,504,296 

As of December 31, 2025 0.1  65,042,963  6,504,296 

Treasury shares
Number of 

shares
Total carrying 

amount1

As of January 1, 2024  92,976  6,786 

Acquisitions  50,000  3,102 

Allocations to employees  (71,811)  (5,253)

As of December 31, 2024  71,165  4,635 

Acquisitions  40,000  2,901 

Allocations to employees  (52,966)  (3,512)

As of December 31, 2025  58,199  4,023 

1	� In CHF thousands.

Share-based Payments
Performance share units (PSU) are granted to eligible key managers by, and at the full discretion of, the Board of Directors.

Number of PSUs allocated for the period 2025-2027 2025 2024

Executive Committee employed by DKSH Holding Ltd.  31,629  30,396 

Other employees of DKSH Holding Ltd.  4,088  3,379 

Total  35,717  33,775 

6. Investments

in CHF millions 2025 2024

As of January 1  368.1  350.7 

Increase  59.5  29.1 

Valuation adjustment  (8.1)  (11.7) 

As of December 31  419.5  368.1 
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The direct and principal indirect investments held by DKSH Holding Ltd. as of December 31, 2025: 

Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Holding and management companies

DKSH International Performance Materials Ltd., Zurich CHF 500 100

DKSH China Holding Ltd., Hong Kong 1 HKD 20,000 100

DKSH Corporate Shared Services Center Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 5,000 100

DKSH Holdings (Asia) Sdn Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 30,000 100

DKSH Holdings (Malaysia) Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 500,000 74.31

DKSH Management Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur MYR 1,600 100

DKSH Holding Philippines Inc., Manila 1 USD 212 99

DKSH Holding (S) Pte Ltd., Singapore 1 SGD 83,703 100

DKSH Management Pte Ltd., Singapore 1 SGD 2,000 100

DKSH Management (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 10,000 100

Hahn Healthcare Holdings Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD 10 100

DKSH Smollan Field Marketing Pte. Ltd., Singapore SGD 1,020 51

Ulfur Ltd., Zurich EUR 2,000 100

Operating companies

Switzerland

DKSH Switzerland Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 20,000 100

DKSH International Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 700 100

Diethelm & Co Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 3,000 100

Medinova Ltd., Zurich 1 CHF 250 100

Refarmed Chemicals Ltd., Lugano CHF 100 100

Asia

DKSH Australia Pty Ltd., Hallam 1 AUD 135,965 100

DKSH Grocery Connect Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD 2 100

DKSH Performance Materials Operations Australia Pty Ltd., Melbourne AUD 98,182 100

DKSH Agrisolutions Pty Ltd., Melbourne AUD 1,400 100

Crossmark Australia Pty Ltd., Sydney2 AUD 15,694 100

Sales Team Providers Pty Ltd., Sydney AUD - 100

DKSH Hong Kong Ltd., Hong Kong 1 HKD 100,000 100

PT DKSH (Indonesia), Jakarta IDR 180,755,650 100

PT Wicaksana Overseas International Tbk, Jakarta 1 IDR 708,916,162 95.5

DKSH Market Expansion Services, Jakarta1 IDR 9,990,000 100

DKSH India Pvt. Ltd., Bombay-Mumbai INR 100,000 100

DKSH Japan K.K., Tokyo JPY 1,600,000 100

DKSH Market Expansion Services Japan K.K., Tokyo 1 JPY 700,100 100

DKSH (Cambodia) Ltd., Phnom Penh 1 KHR 4,320,000 100

DKSH Korea Ltd., Seoul 1 KRW 30,000,000 100

DKSH Performance Materials Korea Ltd., Seoul KRW 9,000,000 100

DKSH (Myanmar) Ltd., Yangon 1 MMK 10,000 100

DKSH Services Ltd., Yangon 1 MMK 1,929,921 100

The Glory Medicine Ltd., Macao MOP 120,000 100
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Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Asia (continued)

DKSH Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 50,000 74.31

DKSH Technology Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 69,770 100

The Famous Amos Chocolate Chip Cookie Corp (M) Sdn Bhd., Petaling Jaya MYR 1,000 74.31

DKSH Luxury & Lifestyle (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur 1 MYR 335 100

DKSH Food Services (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd., Kuala Lumpur MYR 1,000 100

DKSH BRN Sdn Bhd, Brunei 1 BND 2,350 100

DKSH New Zealand Ltd., Auckland 1 NZD 26,230 100

C S Company Limited, Auckland NZD 100 100

Edward Keller (Philippines) Inc., Manila PHP 500,000 100

DKSH Philippines Inc., Manila PHP 80,000 100

DKSH Market Expansion Services, Taguig City1 PHP 12,000 100

DKSH Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore SGD 20,998 100

Favorex Pte Ltd., Singapore SGD 500 100

DKSH (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 200,000 75.55

The United Drug (1996) Co. Ltd., Bangkok 1 THB 40,000 75.55

Diethelm Keller Logistics Ltd., Bangkok THB 6,000 100

DKSH Technology Limited, Bangkok THB 3,000 99.99

DKSH Performance Materials (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok THB 20,000 100

DKSH Taiwan Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 300,000 100

DKSH Supply Chain Solutions (Taiwan) Ltd., Tao Yuan County TWD 500,000 100

United International Drug Co. Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 5,000 100

Good Health Solutions International Co. Ltd., Taipei 1 TWD 5,000 100

DKSH Vietnam Co. Ltd., Binh Duong 1 USD 3,300 100
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Company name Currency

Capital
Ownership and 

voting rights

in thousands in %

Asia (continued)

DKSH Technology Co. Ltd (VND), Ho Chi Minh City 1 USD 3,146 100

DKSH Pharma Vietnam Co, Ltd., Binh Duong USD 500 100

DKSH Shanghai Ltd., Shanghai 1 USD 200 100

DKSH (Shanghai) International Trade Ltd., Shanghai 1 CNY 15,000 100

DKSH Performance Materials China Ltd., Shanghai CNY 60,000 100

DKSH Laos Company Ltd. (LAK), Vientiane USD 400 100

DKSH Performance Materials Vietnam Co Ltd., Ho Chi Minh City USD 400 100

Europe

DKSH Nordic A/S, Birkerod DKK 500 100

DKSH France S.A., Miribel EUR 2,400 100

DKSH GmbH, Hamburg EUR 3,068 100

DKSH Luxury and Lifestyle Europe GmbH, Pforzheim 1 EUR 5,000 100

DKSH Marketing Services Spain S.A.U., Barcelona EUR 648 100

North America

DKSH North America Inc., Baltimore USD 500 100

DKSH Premium Brand Distribution Inc., Dover 1 USD 750 100

DKSH USA LLC., Maryland (MD) USD - 82.44

1	� Direct investments of DKSH Holding Ltd., Zurich.
2	� Investment of DKSH Smollan Field Marketing, Singapore.
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Proposal Appropriation 
of Available Earnings

The Board of Directors proposes the following appropriation of available earnings at the Ordinary Gen-
eral Meeting: 

in CHF 2025

Retained earnings

Retained earnings brought forward  582,268,425 

Retained earnings as of December 31, 2025  582,268,425 

Profit after tax  27,267,935 

Total available earnings  609,536,360 

Distribution of an ordinary dividend of CHF 2.50 per registered share1  162,607,408 

To be carried forward  446,928,952 

1	� The total dividend amount covers all outstanding shares (as per December 31, 2025: 65,042,963 shares). However, shares held in treasury on the 
date of the dividend declaration are not eligible for dividend payments. Hence, the reported total dividend amount will be adjusted accordingly.

Notes to the Financial Statements DKSH Holding Ltd.138 Proposal Appropriation of Available Earnings DKSH Holding Ltd.
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of DKSH Holding Ltd. (the Company), which comprise the statement  
of financial position as at 31 December 2025 and the income statement for the year then ended, and notes to the  
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements (pages 130 to 137) comply with Swiss law and the Company’s articles of  
incorporation.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Standards on Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities 
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the finan-
cial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the provisions of 
Swiss law and the requirements of the Swiss audit profession that are relevant to audits of the financial statements of 
public interest entities. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mat-
ters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial state-
ments” section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance 
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial state-
ments. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide 
the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Valuation of investments

Risk DKSH Holding Ltd. is the parent company of the DKSH Group. As at 31 December 2025, the 
Company reported investments of CHF 419.5 million, representing approximately 57% of 
total assets. Disclosures related to these investments are included in Notes 1 and 6 to the fi-
nancial statements. Management assessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of its 
investments using a variety of valuation methods, some of which are based on budgeted 
future cash flows and other key assumptions. The valuation process involves judgment, par-
ticularly in relation to forecasted cash flows, discount rates, and long-term growth assump-
tions. Given the magnitude of the investments and the level of judgment required in deter-
mining their recoverable amounts, we considered this area to be a key audit matter.

Our audit response We evaluated the valuation methodologies applied by Management and assessed the ap-
propriateness of key input parameters used in the value in use calculations. We reper-
formed selected elements of Management’s valuation models to assess mathematical accu-
racy and consistency with underlying assumptions. We also assessed whether indicators of 
impairment existed and whether the resulting presentation and disclosures met the require-
ments of the applicable financial reporting framework. Our audit procedures did not lead to 
any reservations concerning the valuation of the investments.

Other information 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information  
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the stand-alone financial 
statements, the compensation report and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of  
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,  
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa-
tion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Board of Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the provisions 
of Swiss law and the Company's articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors  
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to  
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Swiss law and SA-CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on EXPERTsuisse’s  
website at: https://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms an integral part of our report.

In accordance with Art. 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, 
which has been designed for the preparation of the financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of 
Directors.

Based on our audit in accordance with Art. 728a para. 1 item 2 CO, we confirm that the proposal of the Board  
of Directors complies with Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation We recommend that the financial 
statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

André Schaub				    María del Carmen Picazo González
Licensed audit expert			   FCCA
(Auditor in charge)
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Disclaimer
This publication may contain forward-looking statements that can be identified by words such as 
“expected,” “estimated,” “planned,” “potential” or similar expressions as to DKSH’s expectations 
concerning future developments of its business, products and the markets in which it operates and 
the political, economic, financial, legal and regulatory environment. A number of risks, uncertainties 
and other important internal and external factors could cause actual developments and results to
differ materially from DKSH’s expectations or other statements expressed in such forward-looking 
statements. These factors include, but are not limited to, future developments in the markets in which 
DKSH operates or to which it is exposed; the effect of possible political, economic, financial, legal and 
regulatory developments; changes in accounting standards or policies, and accounting determina-
tions or interpretations affecting the recognition of revenue, gain or loss, the valuation of goodwill 
and other matters; and DKSH’s ability to retain and attract key employees. In addition, DKSH’s busi-
ness and financial performance could be affected by other factors identified in its past and future fil-
ings and reports, including those filed with SIX Swiss Exchange. DKSH does not undertake any obliga-
tion to update or amend its forward-looking statements contained in this publication as a result of new 
information, future events, or otherwise. DKSH’s consolidated financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and presented in Swiss francs. DKSH also uses certain 
non-IFRS financial measures, such as NOC, Core RONOC, Core ROE, EBIT margin, Free cash flow or 
Net cash/(debt). DKSH uses these non-IFRS financial measures as supplemental indicators of its op-
erating performance and financial position. These measures do not have any standardized meaning 
prescribed by IFRS and should not be viewed as alternatives to measures of operating or financial per-
formance calculated in accordance with IFRS. 
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